T™ILLINGDON

LONDON

North Planning

Committee
Date: WEDNESDAY,
28 AUGUST 2013
Time: 8.00 PM
Venue: COMMITTEE ROOM 5
CIVIC CENTRE
HIGH STREET
UXBRIDGE
uUB8 1UW
Meeting Members of the Public and
Details: Press are welcome to attend

this meeting

This agenda and associated
reports can be made available
in other languages, in braille,
large print or on audio tape on
request. Please contact us for
further information.

This Agenda is available online at:

Public Document Pack

To Councillors on the Committee

Eddie Lavery (Chairman)
John Morgan (Vice-Chairman)
Raymond Graham

Michael Markham

Carol Melvin

David Yarrow

David Allam (Labour Lead)
Robin Sansarpuri

Published: Monday, 19 August 2013

Contact: Charles Francis

Tel: 01895 556454

Fax: 01895 277373
democratic@hillingdon.gov.uk

http://modgov.hillingdon.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?Cld=116&MId=1707&Ver=4

Lloyd White
Head of Democratic Services
London Borough of Hillingdon,

3E/05, Civic Centre, High Street, Uxbridge, UB8 1UW

www. hillingdon.gov.uk

R

ﬁi"
4

=

(—L“” -

INVESTOR IN PEOPLE



Useful information for
residents and visitors

Travel and parking g

=
\43“ A
Bus routes 427, U1, U3, U4 and U7 all stop at o j

the Civic Centre. Uxbridge underground station, X)%
Uxbri

with the Piccadilly and Metropolitan lines, is a
short walk away. Limited parking is available at

x :
the Civic Centre. For details on availability and Mgl LA = i
how to book a parking space, please contact s il 5 Chimes

Centre }
Democratic Services / Shopping o

Please enter from the Council’s main reception |
where you will be directed to the Committee et ,m
Room.

Muzraring
rar park

Accessibility

An Induction Loop System is available for use in
the various meeting rooms. Please contact us for
further information.

Electronic devices

Please switch off any mobile devices before the meeting. Any recording of the meeting is
not allowed, either using electronic, mobile or visual devices.

Emergency procedures

If there is a FIRE, you will hear a continuous alarm. Please follow the signs to the nearest
FIRE EXIT and assemble on the Civic Centre forecourt. Lifts must not be used unless
instructed by a Fire Marshal or Security Officer.

In the event of a SECURITY INCIDENT, follow instructions issued via the tannoy, a Fire
Marshal or a Security Officer. Those unable to evacuate using the stairs, should make
their way to the signed refuge locations.



A useful guide for those attending Planning Committee meetings

Security and Safety information

Fire Alarm - If there is a FIRE in the building the
fire alarm will sound continuously. If there is a
BOMB ALERT the alarm sounds intermittently.
Please make your way to the nearest FIRE EXIT.

Recording of meetings - This is not allowed,
either using electronic, mobile or visual devices.

Mobile telephones - Please switch off any mobile
telephones and BlackBerries before the meeting.

Petitions and Councillors

Petitions - Those who have organised a petition of
20 or more borough residents can speak at a
Planning Committee in support of or against an
application. Petitions must be submitted in
writing to the Council in advance of the meeting.
Where there is a petition opposing a planning
application there is also the right for the
applicant or their agent to address the meeting
for up to 5 minutes.

Ward Councillors - There is a right for local
councillors to speak at Planning Committees about
applications in their Ward.

Committee Members - The planning committee is
made up of the experienced Councillors who meet
in public every three weeks to make decisions on
applications.

How the Committee meeting works

The Planning Committees consider the most
complex and controversial proposals for
development or enforcement action.

Applications for smaller developments such as
householder extensions are generally dealt with
by the Council’s planning officers under delegated
powers.

An agenda is prepared for each meeting, which
comprises reports on each application

Reports with petitions will normally be taken at
the beginning of the meeting.

The procedure will be as follows:-

1. The Chairman will announce the report;

2. The Planning Officer will introduce it; with a
presentation of plans and photographs;

3. If there is a petition(s),the petition organiser
will speak, followed by the agent/applicant

followed by any Ward Councillors;

4. The Committee may ask questions of the
petition organiser or of the agent/applicant;

5. The Committee debate the item and may seek
clarification from officers;

6. The Committee will vote on the
recommendation in the report, or on an
alternative recommendation put forward by a
Member of the Committee, which has been
seconded.

About the Committee’s decision

The Committee must make its decisions by
having regard to legislation, policies laid down
by National Government, by the Greater London
Authority - under ‘The London Plan’ and
Hillingdon’s own planning policies as contained
in the ‘Unitary Development Plan 1998’ and
supporting guidance. The Committee must also
make its decision based on material planning
considerations and case law and material
presented to it at the meeting in the officer’s
report and any representations received.

Guidance on how Members of the Committee
must conduct themselves when dealing with
planning matters and when making their
decisions is contained in the ‘Planning Code of
Conduct’, which is part of the Council’s
Constitution.

When making their decision, the Committee
cannot take into account issues which are not
planning considerations such a the effect of a
development upon the value of surrounding
properties, nor the loss of a view (which in itself
is not sufficient ground for refusal of
permission), nor a subjective opinion relating to
the design of the property. When making a
decision to refuse an application, the Committee
will be asked to provide detailed reasons for
refusal based on material planning
considerations.

If a decision is made to refuse an application,
the applicant has the right of appeal against the
decision. A Planning Inspector appointed by the
Government will then consider the appeal.
There is no third party right of appeal, although
a third party can apply to the High Court for
Judicial Review, which must be done within 3
months of the date of the decision.



Agenda

Chairman's Announcements

1

a ~~ W0 N

Apologies for Absence

Declarations of Interest in matters coming before this meeting

To sign and receive the minutes of the meeting held on 18 July 2013 1-4
Matters that have been notified in advance or urgent

To confirm that the items of business marked Part 1 will be considered
in public and that the items marked Part 2 will be considered in private

Reports - Part 1 - Members, Public and Press

Items are normally marked in the order that they will be considered, though the Chairman
may vary this. Reports are split into ‘major’ and ‘minor’ applications. The name of the local
ward area is also given in addition to the address of the premises or land concerned.

Non Major Applications with a Petition

Address Ward Description & Recommendation Page
6 | 135 Swakeleys Road, | Ickenham | Erection of two storey building with | 5 — 28
Ickenham habitable roofspace for use as 5 x
2-bed self contained flats with 136 - 147
380/APP/2013/1450 associated parking and amenity
space, installation of bin and cycle
stores and removal of existing
front vehicular crossover.
Recommendation : Approval
subject to a S106 Agreement
7 | Land to rear of 94-96, | Northwood | 2 x Two storey 5-bedroom semi- 29-54
Green Lane, detached dwellings with habitable
Northwood roofspace with associated parking | 148 — 154
and amenity space and the
66134/APP/2012/718 installation of a vehicular
crossover.

Recommendation : Refusal




8 | Land rear of 41 and Northwood | 2 x two storey, 4-bed, detached 55 -68
43 The Drive, dwellings with associated amenity
Northwood space and parking and installation | 155 - 161
of vehicular crossover.
68458/APP/2013/1405
Recommendation : Refusal
Non Major Applications without a Petition
Address Ward Description & Recommendation Page
9 | Garages adjacent to Northwood | 2 x two storey, 4-bedroom, semi- 69 — 84
27, Lees Parade, detached dwellings with
Northwood associated parking and amenity
space and enlargement of 162 -177
69195/APP/2013/1310 vehicular crossover to front,
involving demolition of existing
garages.
Recommendation : Approval
subject to a S106 Agreement
10| Land rear of 81-93, Northwood | 2 x two storey, 3- bed detached 85—-104
Hilliard Road, Hills dwellings with associated parking
Northwood and amenity space, involving
demolition of existing material 178 - 187
64786/APP/2013/1434 shed, office building and material
storage shelter.
Recommendation : Approval
subject to a S106 Agreement
11| Land adjacent to 1, St | West Two storey, 4-bedroom, detached | 105 — 124
Catherines Road, Ruislip dwelling with associated amenity
Ruislip space and parking and installation
of vehicular crossover to front 188 - 195
33892/APP/2013/1337 involving demolition of existing

garage and amendments to
existing vehicular crossover
(Resubmission)

Recommendation : Approval




Part 2 - Members Only

The reports listed below are not made public because they contain confidential or
exempt information under paragraph 6 of Par 1 of Schedule 12A to the Local
Government (Access to Information) Act 1985 as amended.

12 Enforcement Report Pages 125-130
13 Enforcement Report Pages 131-136

Plans for North Planning Committee Pages 137 -196



Minutes 3&

NORTH PLANNING COMMITTEE

18 July 2013

KU,

LONDON

Meeting held at Committee Room 5 - Civic Centre,
High Street, Uxbridge UB8 1UW

Committee Members Present:
Councillors Eddie Lavery (Chairman)
John Morgan (Vice-Chairman)
Raymond Graham

Michael Markham

Carol Melvin

David Yarrow

David Allam (Labour Lead)

Robin Sansarpuri

LBH Officers Present:

James Rodger, Head of Planning, Sports and Green Spaces
Adrien Waite, Major Applications Manager

Syed Shah, Principal Highway Engineer

Tim Brown, Legal Advisor

Charles Francis, Democratic Services

Also Present:
Clir Douglas Mills

45.

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE (Agenda ltem 1)

None.

46.

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST IN MATTERS COMING BEFORE
THIS MEETING (Agenda ltem 2)

None.

47.

TO SIGN AND RECEIVE THE MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS
MEETING - 25 JUNE 2013 (Agenda ltem 3)

Were agreed as an accurate record.

48.

MATTERS THAT HAVE BEEN NOTIFIED IN ADVANCE OR
URGENT (Agenda ltem 4)

None.

49.

TO CONFIRM THAT THE ITEMS OF BUSINESS MARKED PART 1
WILL BE CONSIDERED IN PUBLIC AND THAT THE ITEMS
MARKED PART 2 WILL BE CONSIDERED IN PRIVATE (Agenda
ltem 5)

Page 1

Agenda ltem 3

FHILLINGDON




All items were considered in Part 1 with the exception of item 8 which
was considered in Part 2.

50.

18 PARK WAY, RUISLIP (Agenda ltem 6)

Demolition of existing detached garage and erection of single
storey detached outbuilding to rear to be used as a children's
activity business (Use Class D1 - Non-residential institutions).

In accordance with the Council’s constitution a representative of the
petition received in objection to the proposal was invited to address the
meeting. The lead petitioner raised the following points:

The proposal would adversely affect a quiet and peaceful
residential setting and be detrimental to the area.

It was accepted that most activity would take place within the
building. However, concern was expressed at the level of
disruption caused by adults and children using the site on an
ongoing basis.

The proposal lacked sufficient car parking space for its proposed
use and would result in the displaced parking along the road.
The displaced parking caused by the proposal could cause road
safety issues

The applicant raised the following points:

The applicant had spoken to numerous new mothers and there
was a local need for the service.

The proposal would not be run as a nursery but as a baby and
toddler activity class.

The classes for children and parents would be held inside in a
fully heated, sound insulated facility. No activities would be held
outside so there would be no disruption to local neighbours.

The proposal would be an attractive summer house design and
not be an eyesore to local residents.

It was anticipated that most local users would come by foot so
parking issues would not arise.

The applicant explained that as the family home was located
approximately 150 metres from the blind corner there were no
road safety issues.

A Ward Councillor spoke in objection to the proposal and the following
points were raised:

While being supportive of the need for an activity centre, this
proposal was not right for the arena and would affect the
amenity of local residents.

Most local residents were retired and any outdoor activity would
affect adjacent households

In adverse weather, users would be inclined to travel by car and
local parking issues would arise.

The proposal was situated on a very busy road

Changing the current usage to D2 would strike against the

Action by

James
Rodger &
Adrien Waite

Page 2




Authorities’ core planning policies
e The Committee were urged to refuse the application.

Members discussed the item and agreed with the ward Councillor that
while there was a need for this type of provision locally, they were
unable to support the proposal as the change of use was not
appropriate in this case.

The recommendation for refusal was moved, seconded and on being
put to the, vote was unanimously agreed.

Resolved — That the application be unanimously refused.

51. | 8106 QUARTERLY MONITORING REPORT - UP TO 3 MARCH 2013 Action by
(Agenda Item 7)
Officer introduced the monitoring report.
Resolved -
That the report be noted
52. | ENFORCEMENT REPORT (Agenda Item 8) Action by
The recommendations as set out in the officer's report was moved, James
seconded and on being put to the vote was agreed. Rodger &
Adrien Waite
Resolved:
1. That the enforcement actions as recommended in the officer’s
report be agreed.
2.That the Committee resolved to release their decision and the
reasons for it outlined in this report into the public domain,
solely for the purposes of issuing the formal breach of condition
notice to the individual concerned.
The report relating to this decision is not available to the public
because it contains information which reveals that the authority
proposes (a) to give under any enactment a notice under or by virtue of
which requirements are imposed on a person; and (b) to make an order
or direction under any enactment and the public interest in withholding
the information outweighs the public interest in disclosing it (exempt
information under paragraph 6 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A to the Local
Government (Access to Information) Act 1985 as amended).
53. | ANY ITEMS TRANSFERRED FROM PART 1 (Agenda ltem 9) Action by
None.
54. | ANY OTHER BUSINESS IN PART 2 (Agenda Item 10) Action by

None.

Page 3




The meeting, which commenced at 6.00 pm, closed at 6.28 pm.

These are the minutes of the above meeting. For more information on any of the
resolutions please contact Charles Francis on 01895 556454. Circulation of these
minutes is to Councillors, Officers, the Press and Members of the Public.

Page 4



Agenda ltem 6

Report of the Head of Planning, Sport and Green Spaces

Address 135 SWAKELEYS ROAD ICKENHAM

Development: Erection of two storey building with habitable roofspace for use as 5 x 2-bed
self contained flats with associated parking and amenity space, installation of
bin and cycle stores and removal of existing front vehicular crossover

LBH Ref Nos: 380/APP/2013/1450

Drawing Nos: 130503/03C
D&A
130503/08
130503/04/A
130503/05/A
130503/06
130503/07
130503/01
130503/09
130503/02

Date Plans Received: = 03/06/2013 Date(s) of Amendment(s): 03/06/2013
Date Application Valid: 07/06/2013
1. SUMMARY

The proposed scheme has been assessed against the relevant Council policies and the
London Plan and it is considered that the proposed increase in size, scale and bulk of the
original building would harmonise with the street scene and with the character and
amenities of the surrounding residential area.

The proposed on-site parking layout would be accessed via Thornhill Road and is
considered acceptable. All other matters relating to landscaping, tree protection and
amenity etc. can satisfactorily be achieved on site and controlled by appropriate
conditions.

The scale of previous permissions for redevelopment of this site into flats, whilst these
have now expired, have also been taken into account and the current proposal, which
raises no additional design issues, compares favourably in this regard.

For these reasons, and in terms of the general standard of design presented in the
proposal, which takes into account the corner position and nature of the surroundings,
the development of this site for flats is considered acceptable.

2. RECOMMENDATION

2.1 That delegated powers be given to the Head of Planning, Culture and Green
Spaces to grant planning permission, subject to the following:

i) That the Council enters into an agreement with the applicant under Section 106
of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 (as amended) and/or Section 278 of
the Highways Act 1980 (as amended) and/ or other appropriate legislation to

North Planning Committee - 28th August 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 5



secure:

a) A contribution of £8,628 towards capacity enhancements in local educational
establishments made necessary by the development;

2.2 That in respect of the application for planning permission, the applicant meets
the Council's reasonable costs in preparation of the Section 106 Agreement and
any abortive work as a result of the agreement not being completed.

2.3 That officers be authorised to negotiate and agree the detailed terms of the
proposed agreement.

2.4 That if any of the heads of terms set out above have not been agreed and the
S106 legal agreement has not been finalised within 6 months of the date of this
report, or any other period deemed appropriate by the Head of Planning, Culture
and Green Spaces then delegated authority be granted to the Head of Planning,
Culture and Green Spaces to refuse the application for the following reason:

'The development has failed to secure obligations relating to capacity
enhancements in local educational establishments made necessary by the
development. Accordingly, the proposal is contrary to policies R17 of the
Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012), the
Council's Planning Obligations SPD.

2.5 That subject to the above, the application be deferred for determination by the
Head of Planning, Culture and Green Spaces under delegated powers, subject to
the completion of the legal agreement under Section 106 of the Town and Country
Planning Act 1990 and other appropriate powers with the applicant.

2.6 That if the application is approved, the following conditions be imposed:

1 RES3 Time Limit

The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of three years
from the date of this permission.

REASON
To comply with Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990

North Planning Committee - 28th August 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 6



2 RES4 Accordance with Approved Plans

The development hereby permitted shall not be carried out except in complete
accordance with the details shown on the submitted plans, numbers 130503/01,
130503/02, 130503/03/C, 130503/04/A, 130503/05/A, 130503/06, 130503/07, 130503/08
and 130503/09.

and shall thereafter be retained/maintained for as long as the development remains in
existence.

REASON
To ensure the development complies with the provisions of the Hillingdon Local Plan:
Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012) and the London Plan (July 2011).

3 RES5 General compliance with supporting documentation

The development hereby permitted shall not be occupied until the following facilities have
been completed in accordance with the specified supporting plans and/or documents:
Amenity Space [130503/03/C]

Car Parking Space [130503/03/C]

Cycle Store [130503/03/C]

REASON
To ensure that the development complies with the objectives of Policies AM9, AM14,
BE23 of the Hillingdon Local Plan (November 2012).

4 RES12 No additional windows or doors

Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning (General Permitted
Development) Order 1995 (or any order revoking and re-enacting that Order with or
without modification), no additional windows, doors or other openings shall be
constructed in the walls or roof slopes of the development hereby approved facing Nos.
133 and 137 Swakeleys Road.

REASON
To prevent overlooking to adjoining properties in accordance with policy BE24 Hillingdon
Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012)

5 RES13 Obscure Glazing

The first floor bathroom window(s) and all second floor windows (rooflights) facing Nos.
133 and 137 Swakeleys Road shall be glazed with permanently obscured glass and non-
opening below a height of 1.8 metres taken from internal finished floor level for so long
as the development remains in existence.

REASON
To prevent overlooking to adjoining properties in accordance with Policy BE24 Hillingdon
Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012)

6 RES14 Outbuildings, extensions and roof alterations

Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning (General Permitted
Development) Order 1995 (or any order revoking and re-enacting that Order with or
without modification); no garage(s), shed(s) or other outbuilding(s), nor extension or roof
alteration to any dwellinghouse(s) shall be erected without the grant of further specific
permission from the Local Planning Authority.

REASON

North Planning Committee - 28th August 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 7



To protect the character and appearance of the area and amenity of residential occupiers
in accordance with Policies BE13, BE21, BE23 and BE24 Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two
Saved UDP Policies (November 2012)

7 NONSC Vehicular Crossover

Prior to occupation of the development hereby permitted, the existing vehicular access at
the site, on Swakeleys Road, shall be closed, the dropped kerb removed and the footway
reinstated to match the adjoining footway to the satisfaction of the Local Highway
Authority.

REASON

To ensure that pedestrian and vehicular safety is not prejudiced in accordance with
Policies AM3 and AM8 of the Hillingdon Local Plan - Saved Unitary Development Plan
Saved Policies (November 2012) and Chapter 6 of the London Plan (July 2011).

8 RES23 Visibility Splays - Pedestrian

The access for the proposed car parking shall be provided with those parts of 2.4m x
2.4m pedestrian visibility splays which can be accommodated within the site in both
directions and shall be maintained free of all obstacles to the visibility between heights of
0.6m and 2.0m above the level of the adjoining highway.

REASON
In the interests of highway and pedestrian safety in accordance with policy AM7
Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012)

9 RES9 Landscaping (car parking & refuse/cycle storage)

No development shall take place until a landscape scheme has been submitted to and
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The scheme shall include: -

1. Details of Soft Landscaping

1.a Written specification of planting and cultivation works to be undertaken;

1.b  Schedule of plants and trees giving species, plant sizes, and proposed
numbers/densities where appropriate.

2. Details of Hard Landscaping

2.a Hard Surfacing Materials;

2.b Means of enclosure/boundary treatments (including means to protect the privacy of
the front ground floor flats).

3. Details of Landscape Maintenance

3.a Landscape Maintenance Schedule for a minimum period of 5 years;

3.b Proposals for the replacement of any tree, shrub, or area of surfing/seeding within
the landscaping scheme which dies or in the opinion of the Local Planning Authority
becomes seriously damaged or diseased.

4. Schedule for Implementation

Thereafter the development shall be carried out and maintained in full accordance with
the approved details.

REASON
To ensure that the proposed development will preserve and enhance the visual amenities
of the locality and provide adequate facilities in compliance with Policies BE13, BE38 and

North Planning Committee - 28th August 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 8



AM14 Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012) and
Policies 5.11 (living walls and roofs) and 5.17 (refuse storage) of the London Plan (July
2011).

10 RES10 Tree to be retained

Trees, hedges and shrubs shown to be retained on the approved plan shall not be
damaged, uprooted, felled, lopped or topped without the prior written consent of the
Local Planning Authority. If any retained tree, hedge or shrub is removed or severely
damaged during construction, or is found to be seriously diseased or dying another tree,
hedge or shrub shall be planted at the same place or, if planting in the same place would
leave the new tree, hedge or shrub susceptible to disease, then the planting should be in
a position to be first agreed in writing with the Local Planning Authority and shall be of a
size and species to be agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority and shall be
planted in the first planting season following the completion of the development or the
occupation of the buildings, whichever is the earlier. Where damage is less severe, a
schedule of remedial works necessary to ameliorate the effect of damage by tree
surgery, feeding or groundwork shall be agreed in writing with the Local Planning
Authority. New planting should comply with BS 3936 (1992) 'Nursery Stock, Part 1,
Specification for Trees and Shrubs'

Remedial work should be carried out to BS BS 3998:2010 'Tree work -
Recommendations’ and BS 4428 (1989) 'Code of Practice for General Landscape
Operations (Excluding Hard Surfaces)'. The agreed work shall be completed in the first
planting season following the completion of the development or the occupation of the
buildings, whichever is the earlier.

REASON

To ensure that the trees and other vegetation continue to make a valuable contribution to
the amenity of the area in accordance with policy BE38 Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two
Saved UDP Policies (November 2012) and to comply with Section 197 of the Town and
Country Planning Act 1990.

11 RES16 Code for Sustainable Homes

The dwellings shall achieve Level 4 of the Code for Sustainable Homes. No development
shall commence until a signed design stage certificate confirming this level has been
received. The design stage certificate shall be retained and made available for
inspection by the Local Planning Authority on request.

The development must be completed in accordance with the principles of the design
stage certificate and the applicant shall ensure that completion stage certificate has been
attained prior to occupancy of each dwelling.

REASON
To ensure that the objectives of sustainable development identified in London Plan (July
2011) Policies 5.1 and 5.3.

12 RES18 Lifetime Homes/Wheelchair Units

All residential units within the development hereby approved shall be built in accordance
with 'Lifetime Homes' Standards. One of the units hereby approved shall be designed
and constructed to be fully wheelchair accessible or easily adaptable for residents who
are wheelchair users, as set out in the Council's Supplementary Planning Document
'‘Accessible Hillingdon'.

North Planning Committee - 28th August 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 9



REASON
To ensure that sufficient housing stock is provided to meet the needs of disabled and
elderly people in accordance with London Plan (July 2011) Policies 3.1, 3.8 and 7.2

13 RES15 Sustainable Water Management (changed from SUDS)

No development approved by this permission shall be commenced until a scheme for the
provision of sustainable water management has been submitted to and approved in
writing by the Local Planning Authority. The scheme shall clearly demonstrate that
sustainable drainage systems (SUDS) have been incorporated into the designs of the
development in accordance with the hierarchy set out in accordance with Policy 5.15 of
the London Plan and will:

i. provide information about the design storm period and intensity, the method employed
to delay and control the surface water discharged from the site and the measures taken
to prevent pollution of the receiving groundwater and/or surface waters;

ii. include a timetable for its implementation; and

iii. provide a management and maintenance plan for the lifetime of the development
which shall include the arrangements for adoption by any public authority or statutory
undertaker and any other arrangements to secure the operation of the scheme
throughout its lifetime.

The scheme shall also demonstrate the use of methods to minimise the use of potable
water through water collection, reuse and recycling and will:

iv. provide details of water collection facilities to capture excess rainwater;

v. provide details of how rain and grey water will be recycled and reused in the
development.

Thereafter the development shall be implemented and retained/maintained in accordance
with these details for as long as the development remains in existence.

REASON

To ensure the development does not increase the risk of flooding in accordance with
Policy OES8 Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012) and
London Plan (July 2011) Policy 5.12.

14 RES24 Secured by Design

The dwelling(s) shall achieve 'Secured by Design' accreditation awarded by the
Hillingdon Metropolitan Police Crime Prevention Design Adviser (CPDA) on behalf of the
Association of Chief Police Officers (ACPO). No dwelling shall be occupied until
accreditation has been achieved.

REASON

In pursuance of the Council's duty under section 17 of the Crime and Disorder Act 1998
to consider crime and disorder implications in excising its planning functions; to promote
the well being of the area in pursuance of the Council's powers under section 2 of the
Local Government Act 2000, to reflect the guidance contained in the Council's SPG on
Community Safety By Design and to ensure the development provides a safe and secure
environment in accordance with London Plan (July 2011) Policies 7.1 and 7.3.

15 RES6 Levels

No development shall take place until plans of the site showing the existing and proposed
ground levels and the proposed finished floor levels of all proposed buildings have been
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. Such levels shall be
shown in relation to a fixed and know datum point. Thereafter the development shall not
be carried out other than in accordance with the approved details.

North Planning Committee - 28th August 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 10



REASON

To ensure that the development relates satisfactorily to adjoining properties in
accordance with policy BE13 Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies
(November 2012)

INFORMATIVES

1 152 Compulsory Informative (1)

The decision to GRANT planning permission has been taken having regard to all relevant
planning legislation, regulations, guidance, circulars and Council policies, including The
Human Rights Act (1998) (HRA 1998) which makes it unlawful for the Council to act
incompatibly with Convention rights, specifically Article 6 (right to a fair hearing); Article 8
(right to respect for private and family life); Article 1 of the First Protocol (protection of
property) and Article 14 (prohibition of discrimination).

2 153 Compulsory Informative (2)

The decision to GRANT planning permission has been taken having regard to the
policies and proposals in the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies
(September 2007) as incorporated into the Hillingdon Local Plan (2012) set out below,
including Supplementary Planning Guidance, and to all relevant material considerations,
including the London Plan (July 2011) and national guidance.

BE13 New development must harmonise with the existing street scene.

BE15 Alterations and extensions to existing buildings

BE19 New development must improve or complement the character of the
area.

BE20 Daylight and sunlight considerations.

BE21 Siting, bulk and proximity of new buildings/extensions.

BE22 Residential extensions/buildings of two or more storeys.

BE23 Requires the provision of adequate amenity space.

BE24 Requires new development to ensure adequate levels of privacy to
neighbours.

BE38 Retention of topographical and landscape features and provision of
new planting and landscaping in development proposals.

H7 Conversion of residential properties into a number of units

HDAS-LAY Residential Layouts, Hillingdon Design & Access Statement,
Supplementary Planning Document, adopted July 2006

AM7 Consideration of traffic generated by proposed developments.

AM13 AM13 Increasing the ease of movement for frail and elderly people

and people with disabilities in development schemes through
(where appropriate): -

(i) Dial-a-ride and mobility bus services

(i) Shopmobility schemes

(iii) Convenient parking spaces

(iv) Design of road, footway, parking and pedestrian and street
furniture schemes

AM14 New development and car parking standards.

CACPS Council's Adopted Car Parking Standards (Annex 1, HUDP, Saved
Policies, September 2007)

OE1 Protection of the character and amenities of surrounding properties

and the local area
Use of planning obligations to supplement the provision of

North Planning Committee - 28th August 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 11



R17 recreation, leisure and community facilities

LPP 3.4 (2011) Optimising housing potential

LPP 3.5 (2011) Quality and design of housing developments
LPP 3.8 (2011) Housing Choice

LPP 5.13 (2011) Sustainable drainage

LPP 5.3 (2011) Sustainable design and construction

3 159 Councils Local Plan : Part 1 - Strategic Policies

On this decision notice policies from the Councils Local Plan: Part 1 - Strategic Policies
appear first, then relevant saved policies (referred to as policies from the Hillingdon
Unitary Development Plan - Saved Policies September 2007), then London Plan Policies.
On the 8th November 2012 Hillingdon's Full Council agreed the adoption of the Councils
Local Plan:; Part 1 - Strategic Policies. Appendix 5 of this explains which saved policies
from the old Unitary Development (which was subject to a direction from Secretary of
State in September 2007 agreeing that the policies were 'saved') still apply for
development control decisions.

4

You are advised that the development hereby approved represents chargeable
development under the Mayor of London's Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL). At this
time the CIL is estimated to be £14, 982.51 which is due on commencement of this
development. The actual CIL payment will be calculated at the time your development is
first permitted and a separate liability notice will be issued by the Local Planning
Authority. Should you require further information please refer to the Council's website
http://www.hillingdon.gov.uk/index.jsp?articleid=24738.

5 11 Building to Approved Drawing

You are advised this permission is based on the dimensions provided on the approved
drawings as numbered above. The development hereby approved must be constructed
precisely in accordance with the approved drawings. Any deviation from these drawings
requires the written consent of the Local Planning Authority.

6 12 Encroachment

You are advised that if any part of the development hereby permitted encroaches by
either its roof, walls, eaves, gutters, or foundations, then a new planning application will
have to be submitted. This planning permission is not valid for a development that results
in any form of encroachment.

7 13 Building Regulations - Demolition and Building Works

Your attention is drawn to the need to comply with the relevant provisions of the Building
Regulations, the Building Acts and other related legislation. These cover such works as -
the demolition of existing buildings, the erection of a new building or structure, the
extension or alteration to a building, change of use of buildings, installation of services,
underpinning works, and fire safety/means of escape works. Notice of intention to
demolish existing buildings must be given to the Council's Building Control Service at
least 6 weeks before work starts. A completed application form together with detailed
plans must be submitted for approval before any building work is commenced. For further
information and advice, contact - Planning & Community Services, Building Control,
3N/01 Civic Centre, Uxbridge (Telephone 01895 250804 / 805 / 808).

8 15 Party Walls
The Party Wall Act 1996 requires a building owner to notify, and obtain formal agreement

North Planning Committee - 28th August 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 12



from, any adjoining owner, where the building owner proposes to:

carry out work to an existing party wall;

build on the boundary with a neighbouring property;

in some circumstances, carry out groundworks within 6 metres of an adjoining building.
Notification and agreements under this Act are the responsibility of the building owner
and are quite separate from Building Regulations, or Planning Controls. The Building
Control Service will assume that an applicant has obtained any necessary agreements
with the adjoining owner, and nothing said or implied by the Council should be taken as
removing the necessity for the building owner to comply fully with the Party Wall Act.
Further information and advice is to be found in "the Party Walls etc. Act 1996 -
explanatory booklet" published by the ODPM, available free of charge from the Planning
& Community Services Reception Desk, Level 3, Civic Centre, Uxbridge, UB8 1UW.

9 16 Property Rights/Rights of Light

Your attention is drawn to the fact that the planning permission does not override
property rights and any ancient rights of light that may exist. This permission does not
empower you to enter onto land not in your ownership without the specific consent of the
owner. If you require further information or advice, you should consult a solicitor.

10 115 Control of Environmental Nuisance from Construction Work

Nuisance from demolition and construction works is subject to control under The Control
of Pollution Act 1974, the Clean Air Acts and other related legislation. In particular, you
should ensure that the following are complied with:-

A. Demolition and construction works which are audible at the site boundary shall only be
carried out between the hours of 08.00 and 18.00 hours Monday to Friday and between
the hours of 08.00 hours and 13.00 hours on Saturday. No works shall be carried out on
Sundays, Bank or Public Holidays.

B. All noise generated during such works shall be controlled in compliance with British
Standard Code of Practice BS 5228:2009.

C. Dust emissions shall be controlled in compliance with the Mayor of London's Best
Practice Guidance' The Control of dust and emissions from construction and demolition.

D. No bonfires that create dark smoke or nuisance to local residents.

You are advised to consult the Councilis Environmental Protection Unit
(www.hillingdon.gov.uk/noise Tel. 01895 250155) or to seek prior approval under Section
61 of the Control of Pollution Act if you anticipate any difficulty in carrying out
construction other than within the normal working hours set out in (A) above, and by
means that would minimise disturbance to adjoining premises.

11 147 Damage to Verge

The Council will recover from the applicant the cost of highway and footway repairs,
including damage to grass verges.

Care should be taken during the building works hereby approved to ensure no damage
occurs to the verge or footpaths during construction. Vehicles delivering materials to this
development shall not override or cause damage to the public footway. Any damage will
require to be made good to the satisfaction of the Council and at the applicant's expense.

North Planning Committee - 28th August 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 13



For further information and advice contact - Highways Maintenance Operations, Central
Depot - Block K, Harlington Road Depot, 128 Harlington Road, Hillingdon, Middlesex,
UB3 3EU (Tel: 01895 277524).

12 123 Works affecting the Public Highway - Vehicle Crossover

The development requires the alteration and stopping up of the existing vehicular
crossovers in Thornhill Road and Swakeleys Road, which will be constructed by the
Council. This work is also subject to the issuing of a separate licence to obstruct or open
up the public highway. For further information and advice contact: - Highways
Maintenance Operations, 4W/07, Civic Centre, Uxbridge, UB8 1TUW.

3. CONSIDERATIONS

3.1  Site and Locality

The site is a rectangular plot with an approximately 15 metre frontage to Swakeleys Road
and a depth of 49m that adjoins the front garden of No. 2 Thornhill Road. The site, located
at the junction of Swakeleys Road and Thornhill Road, has an area of 803 sq. metres
(0.0803 hectares).

The whole site, which is covered by an area Tree Preservation Order that includes 38
individually protected trees and two groups, is situated within the developed area as
identified in the Hillingdon Local Plan (November 2012).

There was a large two storey five bedroom house on the site until March 2013, forming
part of a residential area that comprises a mix of bungalows, two-storey detached and
semi-detached houses of varying sizes. The original house forms part of a continuous
frontage of two-storey houses, many substantial, and mostly set back some distance from
the road along this part of Swakeleys Road, a busy local traffic route connecting
Ickenham village centre with the A40 and beyond.

3.2 Proposed Scheme

The proposal is for the erection of a two storey building with habitable roofspace
contained under a hipped roof for use as 5 x 2 bedroom self-contained flats. The
dwellings would each comprise of two bedrooms at the front, in Flats A to D on the ground
and first floors with a large living room/kitchen. A fifth two bedroom unit, Flat E, would be
created within the roofspace. The front elevation would contain matching end bays and
the communal entrance.

The hipped roof rear projection at first floor would be 9.6m wide x 4m deep with a ridge
height kept 0.5m below that of the raised front roof space (maximum 9.95 metres high)
which would be converted into habitable accommodation by means of 4no. rooflights in
the front roof slope, two on the rear elevation and two/three on the side elevations. The
37.5 degrees angle of pitch to the main roof would create a small crown roof section in the
centre.

The proposal would provide spaces (2.4m x 4.8m in size) for eight cars/vehicles to park
within the site in two parallel rows with the existing vehicle access in Swakeleys Road
closed and a pedestrian gate installed. All vehicles would enter and leave the site via a
marginally widened crossover access in Thornhill Road. A timber cycle storage shed
(3.0m x 3.0m x 2.4m high) for up to five cycles is shown in the rear garden.

North Planning Committee - 28th August 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 14



At the rear of the new dwellings, a communal patio and garden area of approximately
15.8m wide by 17m to 17.5m deep would be laid out, with the existing 2m high perimeter
wall retained along most of the length of the site boundary in Thornhill Road and around to
the front, replaced at the entrance in Thornhill Road by brick wall and railings sections. All
existing trees would be retained at the rear and new planting areas laid out to the front of
the building and within the parking forecourt at the front including a newly planted Silver
Birch tree in the left hand corner.

The proposed external materials to be used in the development are a mixture of
Weinernerger and Henfield Multi Red facing bricks; Marley Eternit Dark Red concrete
plain roof tiles and white upvc windows and doors. For comparison, the materials used on
the original dwelling, now demolished, were brick and timber/white render (walls), brown
pantiles (roof) and white aluminium (fenestration).

3.3 Relevant Planning History

380/APP/2007/2871 135 Swakeleys Road Ickenham

ERECTION OF A TWO STOREY BUILDING (WITH ACCOMMODATION IN THE
ROOFSPACE) TO PROVIDE FOR 6 TWO-BEDROOM FLATS, WITH DORMER WINDOWS
ON ALL ELEVATIONS, 9 FRONTAGE PARKING SPACES, BIN STORE, A CYCLE STORE,
CLOSURE OF THE SWAKELEYS ROAD ACCESS AND USE OF EXISTING ACCESS IN
THORNHILL ROAD AS MAIN ACCESS, AND REDUCTION OF EXISTING FRONT AND SIDE
WALLS IN HEIGHT WITH ADDITION OF BLACK METAL RAILINGS BACK TO ORIGINAL
HEIGHT. (INVOLVING DEMOLITION OF EXISTING DWELLINGHOUSE).

Decision: 18-01-2008 Withdrawn

380/APP/2007/3901 135 Swakeleys Road Ickenham

ERECTION OF A TWO STOREY BUILDING (WITH ACCOMMODATION IN THE ROOF
SPACE) TO PROVIDE FOR 4 TWO-BEDROOM AND 2 ONE- BEDROOM RETIREMENT
FLATS, WITH ONE FRONT DORMER WINDOW AND ROOF LIGHTS ON SIDE AND REAR
ELEVATIONS, 9 FRONTAGE PARKING SPACES, BIN STORE, CYCLE STORE, CHANGE OF
EXISTING THORNHILL ROAD VEHICULAR ACCESS TO PEDESTRIAN ACCESS, USE OF
EXISTING ACCESS IN SWAKELEYS ROAD AS MAIN ACCESS AND ALTERATIONS TO
EXISTING FRONT BOUNDARY WALL TO INCLUDE METAL RAILINGS (INVOLVING
DEMOLITION OF EXISTING DWELLINGHOUSE). (AMENDED DESIGN AND
ACCOMMODATION)

Decision: 13-02-2009 Approved

380/APP/2008/2819 135 Swakeleys Road Ickenham

ERECTION OF A TWO STOREY BUILDING (WITH ACCOMMODATION IN THE ROOF
SPACE) TO PROVIDE FOR 4 TWO-BEDROOM AND 1 ONE-BEDROOM RETIREMENT
FLATS, WITH TWO FRONT DORMERS AND 1 SIDE/REAR DORMERS, 9 FRONTAGE
PARKING SPACES, BIN STORE, CYCLE STORE, CHANGE OF EXISTING THORNHILL
ROAD VEHICULAR ACCESS TO PEDESTRIAN ACCESS, USE OF EXISTING ACCESS IN
SWAKELEYS ROAD AS MAIN ACCESS AND ALTERATIONS TO EXISTING FRONT
BOUNDARY WALL TO INCLUDE METAL RAILINGS (INVOLVING DEMOLITION OF
EXISTING DWELLINGHOUSE)

Decision: 13-02-2009 Approved

North Planning Committee - 28th August 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 15



380/APP/2011/2655 135 Swakeleys Road Ickenham

Application for a Non-material amendment to raise a front window due to internal alterations,
following grant of planning permission ref. 380/APP/2007/ 3901 dated 13-02-2009 (Erection of a
two storey building (with accommodation in the roof space) to provide for 4 two-bedroom and 2
one-bedroom retirement flats, with one front dormer window and roof lights on side and rear
elevations, 9 frontage parking spaces, bin store, cycle store, change of existing Thornhill Road
vehicular access to pedestrian access, use of existing access in Swakeleys Road as main
access and alterations to existing front boundary wall to include metal railings (involving
demolition of existing dwellinghouse).

Decision: 16-12-2011 Refused

380/APP/2011/2656 135 Swakeleys Road Ickenham

Removal of condition no.20 of planning permission ref. 380/APP/2007/3901 dated 13-02-2009
to allow for no age limitation on residents (erection of a two storey building (with accommodation
in the roof space) to provide for 4 two-bedroom and 2 one- bedroom retirement flats, with one
front dormer window and roof lights on side and rear elevations, 9 frontage parking spaces, bin
store, cycle store, change of existing Thornhill Road vehicular access to pedestrian access, use
of existing access in Swakeleys Road as main access and alterations to existing front boundary
wall to include metal railings (involving demolition of existing dwellinghouse).

Decision: 28-03-2012 NFA

380/APP/2012/250 135 Swakeleys Road Ickenham

Part single storey part two storey rear extension; single storey front extension and entrance
porches plus raising of roof incorporating front/rear dormers and rooflights and alterations to
elevations to allow for conversion of existing dwelling to 2 x two storey with habitable roofspace,
6-bed semi-detached dwelling houses with associated amenity space and parking.

Decision: 05-04-2012 Refused

380/APP/2012/869 135 Swakeleys Road Ickenham

Conversion of existing dwelling to form 2 x 5 bed dwellings with associated parking and amenity
space, to include single storey front extension, part two storey part single storey rear extension

plus extension and conversion of roofspace to habitable use (to include 4 x front, 2 x rear and 2
x side rooflights) and new window to first floor side.

Decision: 25-06-2012  Approved

380/APP/2013/171 135 Swakeleys Road Ickenham

Conversion of existing dwelling to include a part two storey, part single storey rear extension to
form 2 x 2-bedroom and 2 x 3-bedroom self-contained flats with associated parking
incorporating habitable roofspace (to include 4 x front and 4 x rear rooflights) and involving
installation of bin and cycle stores.

Decision: 03-06-2013 NFA

380/APP/2013/443 135 Swakeleys Road Ickenham

Details pursuant to conditions 1-10 and 12 of Planning Permission 380/APP/2012/869 dated
25/06/2012 (Conversion of existing dwelling to form 2 x 5 bed dwellings with associated parking

North Planning Committee - 28th August 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 16



and amenity space, to include single storey front extension, part two storey part single storey
rear extension plus extension and conversion of roofspace to habitable use (to include 4 x front,
2 x rear and 2 x side rooflights) and new window to first floor side.)

Decision: 09-05-2013 Refused

Comment on Relevant Planning History

There have been two previous planning applications under refs. 380/APP/2007/3901 and
380/APP/2008/2819 for which permission was granted in February 2009 for the demolition
of the existing building and erection of a two-storey block to accommodate 4 two-bed and
2 one-bed flats; and 4 two-bed and 1 one-bed flats respectively. These proposals were
granted on the basis of their occupation by persons aged 60 years or over (or 60/55 years
in the case of couples) but other subsequent applications to amend the layout and remove
the age restriction were refused or became redundant when the time period for
implementation of either of these permissions expired.

A more recent application for extension and conversion of the existing dwelling in to 2no.
two storey (with habitable roofspace) 6-bed semi-detached dwelling houses under ref.
380/APP/2012/250 was refused in February 2012 for the following reasons (in short):

(1) Increased bulk, mass and height of the building and the height, size, scale and design
of the rear two storey extension (not subordinate to the original building in terms of scale,
size and proportion), contrary to UDP Policies BE13, BE15 and BE19;

(2) Unsatisfactory off street parking, manoeuvring and access arrangements leading to
potential reversing and on-street parking to the detriment of public and highway safety
generally, contrary to UDP Policies AM7 and AM14 and to the Council's adopted parking
standards;

(3) Number of children of school age, additional provision for whom would need to be
made in the schools serving the local area, and for which a legal agreement had not been
secured, contrary to UDP Policy R17.

However, a revised application for conversion and extensions to the existing dwelling to
form two 5 bedroom dwellings which addressed these reasons (under ref.
380/APP/2012/869) was granted approval in June 2012.

The most recent application for front/rear extensions and conversion of the existing
dwelling into five flats (under ref. 380/APP/2013/171) has had no further action taken
since June 2013 as the original dwelling on the site had been sustantially demolished due
to the structural deficiencies of its outer wall facing Thornhill Road, leaving only one other
original wall, on the opposite flank, standing.

4. Planning Policies and Standards

UDP / LDF Designation and London Plan
The following UDP Policies are considered relevant to the application:-

Part 1 Policies:

North Planning Committee - 28th August 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 17



PT1.BE1

(2012) Built Environment

Part 2 Policies:

BE13 New development must harmonise with the existing street scene.

BE15 Alterations and extensions to existing buildings

BE19 New development must improve or complement the character of the area.

BE20 Daylight and sunlight considerations.

BE21 Siting, bulk and proximity of new buildings/extensions.

BE22 Residential extensions/buildings of two or more storeys.

BE23 Requires the provision of adequate amenity space.

BE24 Requires new development to ensure adequate levels of privacy to neighbours.

BE38 Retention of topographical and landscape features and provision of new planting
and landscaping in development proposals.

H7 Conversion of residential properties into a number of units

HDAS-LAY Residential Layouts, Hillingdon Design & Access Statement, Supplementary
Planning Document, adopted July 2006

AM7 Consideration of traffic generated by proposed developments.

AM13 AM13 Increasing the ease of movement for frail and elderly people and people
with disabilities in development schemes through (where appropriate): -
(i) Dial-a-ride and mobility bus services
(i) Shopmobility schemes
(iii) Convenient parking spaces
(iv) Design of road, footway, parking and pedestrian and street furniture schemes

AM14 New development and car parking standards.

CACPS Council's Adopted Car Parking Standards (Annex 1, HUDP, Saved Policies,
September 2007)

OE1 Protection of the character and amenities of surrounding properties and the local
area

R17 Use of planning obligations to supplement the provision of recreation, leisure and
community facilities

LPP 3.4 (2011) Optimising housing potential

LPP 3.5 (2011) Quality and design of housing developments

LPP 3.8 (2011) Housing Choice

LPP 5.13 (2011) Sustainable drainage

LPP 5.3 (2011) Sustainable design and construction

5. Advertisement and Site Notice

5.1
5.2

Advertisement Expiry Date:- Not applicable
Site Notice Expiry Date:- Not applicable

North Planning Committee - 28th August 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 18



6. Consultations
External Consultees

12n0. neighbouring and nearby occupiers were consulted on 11.6.2013 (9no.) & 18.6.2013 (3no.).
In addition, a site notice was displayed on 17.6.2013. A total of nine representations and a petition
(with 22 signatures) against the proposal have been received with the following
objections/comments (summarised):

Form of development:
1. Houses are preferable to flats, which are not appropriate, in this neighbourhood;
2. Density too great.

Layout, Design & Appearance:

1. Building not properly set away from No. 137 for its full height;

2. Set back at front of No. 137 not maintained (will unbalance the visual coherence);

3. Higher than the neighbouring/approved buildings (9.95m) plus rear projection would be highly
visible from Thornhill Road (bulky/intrusive top heavy three-storey in appearance;

4. Detrimental impact on street scene which is modest detached two storey dwellings (larger on
Swakeleys Road);

5. Improved design/less bulk;

6. Lifetime Homes considerations not addressed;

7. Local flash flooding has occured on east side of Thornhill Road - steps to mitigate effects need
to be taken.

Parking, Traffic & Access:

1. Increase in vehicles/street parking (due to more occupants);

2. Proposed access would be dangerous to traffic/pedestrians (including school children)

3. Access on corner of busy junction with pedestrian crossing/bus stop nearby, traffic turning in
Thornhill Road/Swakeleys Road (950 cars have been recorded in the morning "rush hour);

4. Entrance in Thornhill Road will lead to right turns at blind corner (danger to traffic
flow/safety)/should be on Swakeleys Road;

5. Parking/access arrangements difficult for turning/inadequate number of spaces (8no.) leading to
on-street parking and reversing on to highway.

Miscellaneous:

1. High wall is safety hazard when walking round corner;

2. Flats are being built without planning permission (does this meet the Building Regulations?) after
demolition of original house during conversion;

3. Provision for school age children

Ickenham Residents Association (11.6.2013) - comment as follows:

1. Previous approval for a semi-detached building was a more appropriate proposal;

2. Roof has been raised some 9.3m to 9.95m and would tower over No. 137;

3. New ground floor plans appear slightly longer towards rear (15.050m) compared to approved
under ref. 380/APP/2012/869

Internal Consultees

Trees/Landscape Officer (25.6.2013) - No objection subject to condition relating to details of
sustainable drainage (SUDS).

Highways Officer (1.7.2013) - No objection subject to all parking spaces shown at 2.4 metres x 4.8
metres.

North Planning Committee - 28th August 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 19



Access Officer (29.7.2013) - No objection, subject to appropriate conditions.

7.01

7.02

7.03

7.04

7.05

7.07

MAIN PLANNING ISSUES
The principle of the development

A redevelopment of this site, which was until March 2013 occupied by a large detached
dwelling, has previously been accepted in 2009 (as flats) and in 2012 (a semi-detached
pair). The building density, form and site layout of those permitted schemes was
considered appropriate for this residential location and surroundings which comprises in
the main of substantial two storey properties.

There are national and local policies which presume in favour of maximising the potential
for sustainable housing sites which are accessible for public transport and other services.
In this location, close to the Local Centre of Ickenham village, there is no reason why such
a proposal for flats, subject to satisfactory details and design, layout and access etc.
should be refused.

In principle therefore, the proposal for flats on this ample corner site is acceptable subject
to an appropriately worded Section 106 legal agreement in respect of the future
educational needs of its occupants in the Borough.

Density of the proposed development

Paragraph 4.1 of HDAS Residential Layouts specifies that in new developments numerical
densities are considered to be more appropriate to larger sites and will not be used in the
assessment of schemes of less than 10 units, such as this proposal. The key
consideration is therefore whether the development sits comfortably within its environment
rather than a consideration of the density of the proposal.

Impact on archaeology/CAs/LBs or Areas of Special Character

Not applicable to this application.
Airport safeguarding

Not applicable to this application.
Impact on the green belt

Not applicable to this application.
Impact on the character & appearance of the area

The previously permitted schemes have established a principle for redevelopment of the
site that indicates the general scale and form of development that would be considered
acceptable in any subsequent proposals for the site. These were for new build and then
extension and conversion of the original house. The current proposal may thus be
considered comparable in terms of its visual impact on the character and appearance of
the surrounding area and the amenities of the residential area.

The site is not within the designated Ickenham Village Conservation Area or an Area of
Special Local Character. Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved Unitary Development
Plan Policies BE13 and BE19 seek to ensure that new development will harmonise with
the existing street scene and thus complement and improve the character and amenity of
the residential area in which it is located.

The immediately surrounding area contains a mixture of residential development, styles
and forms but predominantly comprises medium to large detached properties, semi-
detached houses (including Nos. 139/139a and 141/141a Swakeleys Road on the same
side) plus bungalows, notably in a row directly opposite the site, that have been built in the
last hundred years, essentially that of the single family detached dwelling house situated

North Planning Committee - 28th August 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 20



on a sizeable plot. Some infill development has evidently occurred and a number of the
larger original plots have been subdivided in the intervening years.

There are exceptions to this characteristic spacious layout with a comparatively more
dense and urban built form close to the site. For instance, Nos. 141 to 143b (6 houses)
Swakeleys Road to the west of the application site were approved in the 1980's and there
are others in Vinlake Avenue to the south.

The proposed building, which would occupy a similar width to the original dwelling, would
feature hipped roof ends whilst containing a relatively small and unobtrusive crown roof
section. This apart, the proposed front elevation facing Swakeleys Road, containing only
rooflights, would thus represent the most simplified form of roofscape available and is kept
to a height that would not look disproportionate for the plot width or out of
keeping/incongruous within the general street scene.

Accordingly, and given the variety of large properties in this part of Ickenham, the form of
dwellings proposed, in particular the symmetry of the front elevation, the proportions and
scale would harmonise successfully with the street scene and complement the amenity
and character of the residential area. The general building line to the front would be
retained and the gap to the side boundary with No. 137 (previously 0.5 metre) increased
to 1.0 metre minimum and likewise to the Thornhill Road boundary, hence it would not
result in the closure of any perceived gap in the street scene in Swakeleys Road.

The deeper and square footprint of the proposed building would give an overall depth of
the dwellings at first floor of 13.65 metres deep, which compares to that of the original
dwelling (8.9 metres) and the 15.6 metres of the previously approved scheme for flats. It
is therefore considered that the proposed depth compared to that of the previous approval
is acceptable. The depth of the two-storey flank wall of the existing building nearest to
Thornhill Road would be retained in the proposal and there is an existing 2m high
boundary wall along Thornhill Road that will partially screen the 3.3m high single-storey
element of the building on this site from that road.

Whilst this side of the development would be visible from Thornhill Road, the inset of the
flank walls on the first floor of the rear extension (over 3 metres) and the hipped roof
would limit its immediate impact in the street scene. The overall roof height at the apex,
9.95 metres, is greater when compared to the original dwelling on this site (which was
approximately 8.1 metres) but marginally lower (by 0.15 metre) than that of the previously
approved scheme for six flats. The adjoining house, No. 137, is approximately 8.6 metres
at the ridge (with a lowered section of 6.4m adjacent to the boundary).

The proposal, by extending mostly to the rear and only marginally forward on the front
elevation compared to the original house would maintain the depth of the set back from
Swakeleys Road. The maximum height of the proposed building would be greater than
that at the apex of the existing building but by keeping the eaves level facing Thornhill
Road the same would not appear overdominant and would integrate appropriately into the
general street scene. Also, by simplifying the roof form ie. with the use of front rooflights
instead of dormers, the current proposal gives no untowardly visible emphasis to the third
floor being created within, which was an unacceptable feature of the previous refused
scheme.

The overall height increase and new roof form may be considered to have been a logical
conclusion to the original dwelling, which was provided with a much shallower roof section
over its western half (repeated on No. 137). For the reasons given above therefore, the

North Planning Committee - 28th August 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 21



form and scale of this proposal and its subordinate rear addition are not considered to be
detrimental to the street scene. In particular, it would conform to the surrounding built
context which despite the variety of dwelling types maintains a visual coherence created
by the large detached dwellings that predominate in the area.

7.08 Impact on neighbours

The amenities of neighbouring occupiers are sought to be safeguarded under Hillingdon
Local Plan: Part Two - Saved Unitary Development Plan Policies BE20 (in terms of
outlook/proximity), BE21 (daylight/sunlight) and BE24 (privacy). The Council's adopted
Supplementary Planning Document, the Hillingdon Design and Accessibility Statement:
Residential Layouts contains design guidance for new dwellings.

Adequate sunlight and daylight should be available to all habitable rooms and kitchens
and to adjoining amenity space of new and existing dwellings with a minimum separation
distance of 15 metres. The level of daylight received to the windows of adjoining
properties should be protected, as measured by a 45 degree line taken from the centre of
such windows on plan.

The orientation of the site, its corner position and the proposal for the new dwellings which
would occupy broadly the same footprint and front/rear building lines as the former
dwellinghouse (excluding the part two storey rear extension element) meets these
requirements and would not result in any significant loss of daylight or sunlight to either of
the two adjoining properties, No. 2 Thornhill Road or 137 Swakeleys Road.

The privacy between new and existing dwellings should be protected and a minimum
distance between facing habitable room windows achieved (24m for patio areas). The
proposal would contain rear bedroom windows that are approximately 18 metres from the
rear boundary with No. 2 Thornhill Road. There is extensive hedge planting that maintains
a screen to that property's rear garden, notably along the rear boundary of No. 137 in
addition to the group of significant protected trees (including oak and hornbeam, plus
conifer and birch) positioned towards the boundary in this corner of the site which provide
both amenity and privacy between neighbouring properties and their gardens. The
separation from this boundary is the same as the previously approved schemes.

The two rear facing rooflights inserted at second floor level to serve the rear bedroom to
the upper flat would have high sill levels. There are thus no serious direct overlooking
issues, with the only side facing openings facing Thornhill Road being one window to a
first floor bathroom and two rooflights also with high sills to the kitchen on the second floor
principally to provide light and ventilation. All the windows and rooflights in the opposite
flank would be similarly obscure glazed and/or with raised sills.

The building would project approximately 3.5m beyond the rear wall of No. 137 (2.5m at
first floor level) but not beyond the line of a 45 degree angle taken from the centre of its
nearest ground and first floor habitable room windows.

Accordingly, it is not considered a refusal of the proposal for reasons of loss of amenity
(light or privacy) or overdominance could be substantiated, and therefore it is considered
that the proposal accords with UDP Policies and HDAS in this regard.

7.09 Living conditions for future occupiers

The proposal is considered to provide an adequate standard of internal living
accommodation in terms of size and layout, outlook, light and privacy plus external

North Planning Committee - 28th August 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 22



amenity area.

The Council's adopted Supplementary Planning Document, the Hillingdon Design and
Accessibility Statement - Residential Layouts contains design guidance for new dwellings.
The unit size of new two-storey two-bedroom flats should be a minimum of 63 square
metres. The proposal is for dwelling units ranging in sizes of between approximately 70
square metres (Flat D) and 112 square metres (Flat E) internal floor area each and
therefore satisfies this requirement.

Adequate sunlight and daylight should be available all habitable rooms and kitchens and
to adjoining amenity space of new and existing dwellings. In particular, this would be
ensured to the rear bedroom in ground floor Flat B by the inclusion of two side facing
windows, thus maximising the light received to this room beyond the two storey flank wall
and rear extension plus boundary wall (1.5m) to No. 137. The loft spaces are to be utilised
with roof lights to front, side and rear to provide as much natural light to these internal
areas as possible.

The proposed two-bedroom dwellings should be provided with communal outdoor amenity
space of at least 25 square metres per flat. The proposal incorporates over 265 square
metres of amenity space for the five dwellings, part of which has been divided off to create
private rear patios and thus to provide total privacy to the rear windows of the occupants
of the ground floor units (Flats A and B), the living rooms of which face on to this area.
The provision thus complies with Hillingdon Local Plan: Part two - Saved UDP Policy
BE23 and with HDAS in this respect.

The privacy of future occupants of the ground floor flats to the front of the building, with
bedrooms proposed to overlook the forecourt (an arrangement that was accepted in the
two previous approved flats schemes in 2009) could nonetheless be ensured by a
combination of landscaping and rail fence, the depth of the planting just inside the site
entrance being determined by the minimum passing space for two vehicles (of 4.1
metres). The applicant has also indicated the provision of external screening in the form of
trellis fences, to either side of the flats entrance. It is considered therefore, that this aspect
of the development can be satisfactorily dealt with by means of the landscaping condition.

7.10 Traffic impact, car/cycle parking, pedestrian safety

The amount of additional traffic likely to be generated by a proposal and its impact on the
safety of vehicle flows and pedestrian movements in the vicinity of the site generally are
considered by Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Saved Policy AM7.

There are no overriding traffic flow or highways safety related issues arising with the
proposed development, which makes adequate access/egress arrangements for the
relatively few vehicle movements of future occupiers and visitors anticipated.

The Highways Engineer considers alternative access arrangements from Swakeleys Road
could present conditions predudicial to highways safety and the free flow of traffic.
Accordingly, the Highways Engineer has recommended that the proposal for vehicles to
enter and exit the site in Thornhill Road is accepted in the interests of highway safety
generally.

The availability of sufficient pedestrian visibility splays at the vehicle accesses is also
necessary in Thornhill Road. This requirement can be controlled by an appropriate
condition and may involve alteration of the existing pillars, 3m apart, but there appears to

North Planning Committee - 28th August 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 23



7.1

712

713

7.14

be ample space for achieving this within the proposed site layout.

Under Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policy AM14, all proposals should
demonstrate that there is sufficient off-street parking capacity and satisfactory
arrangements within the site to meet the Council's adopted car parking standards.

The level of parking provision made in the proposal meets the Council's maximum parking
standards for single family dwellings of two vehicles with parking in the curtilage. The use
of the existing vehicular access in Thornhill Road is considered acceptable and there is
ample manouevring space within the front hardstanding area.

In the circumstances, and given the on site capacity for parking the number of residents
vehicles associated with the occupation of two five bedroom houses in addition to visitors
likely to be arriving at the site would be unlikely to exceed the practicable on-site provision
and therefore regular overspill parking close to the junction in Thornhill Road is unlikely to
occur.

The proposal is thus considered to be in accordance with UDP Saved Policy AM14 in this
regard.
Urban design, access and security

The design of the development, in terms of both its impact upon the character of the area,
and the standard of living accommodation provided for future occupants, including
accessibility matters have been considered elsewhere within this report.

The security of the site and all dwelling units is ultimately for the developer to ensure,
however a Secured by Design accreditation should be achieved in this location, and is
secured by means of a condition.

Disabled access

The Access Officer has requested that Lifetime Homes compliance is indicated on the
plans, including level access and bathroom facilities and dimensions. The applicant has
confirmed his intention to comply with all the relevant Lifetime Homes standards and it is
considered that the development is capable of complying with these standards. An
appropriate condition is recommended to ensure the final development complies.
Provision of affordable & special needs housing

Not applicable to this application.
Trees, Landscaping and Ecology

The siting and layout of the development would have very limited impact on any significant
landscape features or protected trees within and around the site, the nearest of which
would be over 10 metres away in the rear garden. Subject to the standard controls on
these aspects, such as the protection of trees from construction related activities the
proposal therefore accords with UDP Saved Policy BE38.

In accordance with the Council's Supplementary Guidance HDAS: Residential Extensions,
a minimum 25% of the front garden, which is currently fully occupied by a hardstanding
area, should comprise soft landscaping and planted areas. Most of this proportion would
be around the perimeter of the parking area with the remainder in front of the dwellings.
The front forecourt layout proposes only half this amount, most of which would be visible
from the street at the entrance whilst the remainder would be hidden by the existing
boundary walls. In so much as there is none at present, this will nonetheless represent an
amenity to the future occupants and with the new tree to be planted at the front, some
visual enhancement of the area.

North Planning Committee - 28th August 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 24



7.15

7.16

717

7.18

719

7.20

7.21

Notwithstanding the indications of planting, means of enclosure and hardstandings etc.
made in the application therefore, these aspects of the development can be satisfactorily
controlled by means of landscaping and sustainable drainage conditions.

Sustainable waste management

A timber clad refuse bin enclosure (3.65m x 3.4m x 1.8m high) is indicated to the front of
the flats. This would be largely unseen from the road but nonetheless is satisfactorily
positioned within the site only 12 metres from the highway boundary (as represented by
the back edge of the footpath) for the convenience of refuse collectors.

Renewable energy / Sustainability

A requirement to meet Level 4 of the government's "Code for Sustainable Homes" is
considered applicable to the proposed scheme, which can be ensured by means of a
condition.

Flooding or Drainage Issues

The proposal retains the existing hardstanding/paved area to the front of the site.
Nonetheless, the Trees/Landscape Officer has recommended that the surface water
drainage capabilities of the site as a result of the development, should be demonstrated
by the applicant and this can best be achieved through means of a condition.

Noise or Air Quality Issues

Not applicable.
Comments on Public Consultations

The comments received have been considered elsewhere in this report.
Planning Obligations

The proposed development to create five new dwellings has been assessed in terms of
the financial contribution to be sought by the Council from the developer to provide for the
educational needs of its future occupants. This contribution is considered to be required
where a development proposes a net increase off six or more habitable rooms on the site

The proposal comprises 20 habitable rooms compared to the original five bedroom
dwelling on the site which comprised 11 and is still taken into account for these purposes
as it has only recently been demolished. The total payable in this respect for Ickenham
ward is calculated as £8,628 (£1,631 Nursery, £5,335 Primary School, and £1,662
Secondary School level). The applicant has agreed to make this contribution, payable on
a date to be agreed but no later than the first occupation of the development, and the
obligation entered into by means of a Section 106 legal agreement.

The proposed development is also subject to the Mayor of London's Community
Infrastructure Levy (or CIL) which came into force in April 2012. This charge, which is
payable on commencement of the development, is calculated on the net additional gross
internal floor area to be created by the development on the application site. It is estimated
that the proposal would result in 430 sq.m. At the current CIL rate the amount payable
would be approximately £14,982.51. The applicant has agreed in principle to making this
payment (the exact amount is subject to index adjustment), and an informative to this
effect can be included on the permission.

Expediency of enforcement action

Since March 2013, following demolition of the former dwellinghouse on this site,
substantial building works (up to first floor level before the end of July) have been
undertaken without the benefit of planning permission with the full knowledge of the
applicant. These building works appear to accord with the details submitted and now
being considered for approval in the current proposal.

North Planning Committee - 28th August 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 25



In the circumstances therefore, no enforcement action is considered expedient pending
consideration of this application however the applicant has been advised that these works
are proceeding entirely at his own risk and is thus fully aware of the implications for future
enforcement action, penalties etc. should planning permission be refused and the building
works be retained.

7.22 Other Issues

The development is for five new dwellings and therefore would be chargeable under the
Mayor of London's Community Infrastructure Levy which came into force on 1st April
2012. The applicant has been advised and an informative to this effect is added.

8. Observations of the Borough Solicitor

When making their decision, Members must have regard to all relevant planning
legislation, regulations, guidance, circulars and Council policies. This will enable them to
make an informed decision in respect of an application.

In addition Members should note that the Human Rights Act 1998 (HRA 1998) makes it
unlawful for the Council to act incompatibly with Convention rights. Decisions by the
Committee must take account of the HRA 1998. Therefore, Members need to be aware
of the fact that the HRA 1998 makes the European Convention on Human Rights (the
Convention) directly applicable to the actions of public bodies in England and Wales. The
specific parts of the Convention relevant to planning matters are Article 6 (right to a fair
hearing); Article 8 (right to respect for private and family life); Article 1 of the First Protocol
(protection of property) and Article 14 (prohibition of discrimination).

Article 6 deals with procedural fairness. If normal committee procedures are followed, it is
unlikely that this article will be breached.

Article 1 of the First Protocol and Article 8 are not absolute rights and infringements of
these rights protected under these are allowed in certain defined circumstances, for
example where required by law. However any infringement must be proportionate, which
means it must achieve a fair balance between the public interest and the private interest
infringed and must not go beyond what is needed to achieve its objective.

Article 14 states that the rights under the Convention shall be secured without
discrimination on grounds of 'sex, race, colour, language, religion, political or other
opinion, national or social origin, association with a national minority, property, birth or
other status'.

9. Observations of the Director of Finance

10. CONCLUSION

The proposed development is comparable with many aspects of the previously approved
schemes for flats. The mass of the current proposal would be similar, when viewed from
both Swakeleys Road and Thornhill Road and the residential use of the site would be
maximised, providing appropriate living conditions for its future occupants without
detriment to neighbouring amenities.

The design of the proposal has also been assessed in terms of how it relates to the
original building on the site, and to this end the taller hipped roof and additions to the rear

North Planning Committee - 28th August 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 26



are considered to be an acceptable form and design.

The vehicle access arrangements and general parking provision are also now considered
satisfactory.

11. Reference Documents

Hillingdon Local Plan (November 2012);

The London Plan (July 2011);

National Planning Policy Framework;

Hillingdon Supplementary Planning Document: Planning Obligations (July 2008) and
Revised Chapter 4 (September 2010).

Contact Officer: Daniel Murkin Telephone No: 01895 250230

North Planning Committee - 28th August 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 27



—

.
AN Bt

Site boundary

For identification purposes only.

This copy has been made by or with
the authority of the Head of Committee
Services pursuant to section 47 of the
Copyright, Designs and Patents

Act 1988 (the Act).

Unless the Act provides a relevant
exception to copyright.

© Crown copyright and database

rights 2013 Ordnance Survey
100019283

Site Address

135 Swakeleys Road
Ickenham

LONDON BOROUGH
OF HILLINGDON

Residents Services

Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1UW
Telephone No.: Uxbridge 250111

Planning Application Ref: Scale
380/APP/2013/1450 1:1,250
Planning Committee Date u'!t‘
August
North Page 28 2013 HILLINGDON




Agenda ltem 7

Report of the Head of Planning, Sport and Green Spaces

Address LAND TO REAR OF 94-96 GREEN LANE NORTHWOOD

Development: 2 x Two storey 5-bedroom semi-detached dwellings with habitable roofspace
with associated parking and amenity space and the installation of a vehicular
crossover

LBH Ref Nos: 66134/APP/2012/718

Drawing Nos: Design and Access Statement
1:1250 Location Plan
E56 07
Arboricultural Report
Sustainable Energy Assessment
GBA 0212.02
0701/101D
0701/102B
0701/103C

Date Plans Received:  27/03/2012 Date(s) of Amendment(s): 27/03/2012
Date Application Valid: 13/04/2012 19/04/2012

1. SUMMARY

This application seeks permission for the erection of 2 x two storey, semi-detached
dwellinghouses with associated parking and amenity space. The scheme has been
revised following the dismissal of an appeal for a larger three storey flatted block of 6 two
bedroom units and replacement garage on this site in 2011.

Although it is considered that this revised scheme for a pair of semi-detached houses
overcomes the Inspector's concerns as regards the scale and design of the flatted block,
the lack of off-street parking and the three storey building being overbearing upon the
occupiers of Nos. 9 and 11 Chester Road, it is considered that the scheme would still
result in the loss of trees that make a significant contribute to the amenity of the locality
and their loss would be harmful to the arboreal/wooded character of the area. Retained
trees would also overshadow the amenity space of the new houses, which would result in
pressure for further tree loss. Furthermore, as the scheme is being recommended for
refusal, no contributions have been offered at this stage towards additional education
facilities.

The scheme is recommended for refusal.
2. RECOMMENDATION
REFUSAL for the following reasons:

1 NON2 Non Standard reason for refusal

The application fails to make adequate provision for the long-term protection of several
trees on and off-site and does not take into account the future growth/size of three
protected Ash trees, thereby threatening their long-term survival. Furthermore, the loss of
garden land and the trees that form the large part of the tree mass of this area of
suburban woodland, to be replaced with buildings and hardstanding will have a
detrimental impact on the green vista and arboreal/wooded character of the area,

North Planning Committee - 28th August 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 29



including the Old Northwood Area of Special Local Character. The proposal is therefore
contrary to the National Planning Policy Framework (March 2012), Policies 3.5, 7.4 and
7.21 of the London Plan (July 2011), Policy BE1 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 1 -
Strategic Policies and Policies BE5, BE13, BE19 and BE38 of the Hillingdon Local Plan:
Part 2 - Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (November 2012).

2 NONZ2 Non Standard reason for refusal

The proposed rear amenity area would be overshadowed by protected trees on and
close to the site to such an extent that the area would not afford sufficiently usable space
for the future occupiers of the proposed houses. As such, the proposal is contrary to
Policy BE23 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Unitary Development Plan Saved
Policies (November 2012).

3 NON2 Non Standard reason for refusal

The development is estimated to give rise to a number of children of school age and
additional provision would need to be made in the locality due to the shortfall of places in
schools serving the area. Given that a legal agreement at this stage has not been offered
or secured, the proposal is considered to be contrary to Policy R17 of the Hillingdon
Local Plan: Part 2 - Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (November 2012) and the
adopted London Borough of Hillingdon Planning Obligations Supplementary Planning
Document.

INFORMATIVES

1 152 Compulsory Informative (1)

The decision to REFUSE planning permission has been taken having regard to all
relevant planning legislation, regulations, guidance, circulars and Council policies,
including The Human Rights Act (1998) (HRA 1998) which makes it unlawful for the
Council to act incompatibly with Convention rights, specifically Article 6 (right to a fair
hearing); Article 8 (right to respect for private and family life); Article 1 of the First
Protocol (protection of property) and Article 14 (prohibition of discrimination).

2 153 Compulsory Informative (2)

The decision to REFUSE planning permission has been taken having regard to the
policies and proposals in the Hillingdon Local Plan (November 2012) set out below,
including Supplementary Planning Guidance, and to all relevant material considerations,
including the London Plan (July 2011) and national guidance.

NPPF4

NPPF6

NPPF7

NPPF10

NPPF11

NPPF12

LPP 3.1 (2011) Ensuring equal life chances for all

LPP 3.3 (2011) Increasing housing supply

LPP 3.4 (2011) Optimising housing potential

LPP 3.5 (2011) Quality and design of housing developments
LPP 5.3 (2011) Sustainable design and construction

LPP 5.13 (2011) Sustainable drainage

LPP 7.4 (2011) Local character

LPP 7.21 (2011) Trees and woodland

EC2 Nature conservation considerations and ecological assessments

North Planning Committee - 28th August 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 30



EC5 Retention of ecological features and creation of new habitats

BE5 New development within areas of special local character

BE13 New development must harmonise with the existing street scene.

BE19 New development must improve or complement the character of the
area.

BE20 Daylight and sunlight considerations.

BE21 Siting, bulk and proximity of new buildings/extensions.

BE22 Residential extensions/buildings of two or more storeys.

BE23 Requires the provision of adequate amenity space.

BE24 Requires new development to ensure adequate levels of privacy to
neighbours.

BE38 Retention of topographical and landscape features and provision of
new planting and landscaping in development proposals.

H5 Dwellings suitable for large families

OE1 Protection of the character and amenities of surrounding properties
and the local area

OES8 Development likely to result in increased flood risk due to additional
surface water run-off - requirement for attenuation measures

R17 Use of planning obligations to supplement the provision of
recreation, leisure and community facilities

AM7 Consideration of traffic generated by proposed developments.

AM14 New development and car parking standards.

HDAS-LAY Residential Layouts, Hillingdon Design & Access Statement,
Supplementary Planning Document, adopted July 2006

LDF-AH Accessible Hillingdon , Local Development Framework,

Supplementary Planning Document, adopted January 2010
3. CONSIDERATIONS

3.1 Site and Locality

The application site is situated to the east of Ashurst Close, between Green Lane to the
north and Chester Road to the south and forms a 0.07 hectare 'L' shaped plot comprising
part of the rear garden areas of 2 adjoining properties, Nos. 94 and 96 Green Lane, a
previously open area of land at the rear of No. 34 Ashurst Close which has now been
enclosed with fencing and part of the grassed verge of Ashurst Close.

The site contains a detached double garage serving No. 94 Green Lane and a number of
mature trees and is covered by Tree Protection Order Nos. 56, 57 and 653. This is an
established traditional residential area, with good quality housing dating from the late
Victorian period with more modern infill development, including the purpose built 1960's
flatted blocks of Ashurst Close, which are grouped around a central landscaped area.
Adjoining the site to the north are detached two storey houses fronting Green Lane which
appear to be Edwardian or possibly slightly later with detached and terraced two and three
storey houses fronting Ashurst Close and Chester Road to the south, with properties on
the northern side of Ashurst Close being three storey flatted blocks with basement
parking. The site slopes from north to south and the southern part of the site is within the
Old Northwood Area of Special Local Character as identified in the Hillingdon Local Plan
(November 2012).

North Planning Committee - 28th August 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 31



3.2 Proposed Scheme

The application proposes 2, two storey detached five bedroom houses (a room shown as
a study on the first floor could easily be used as an additional bedroom with no alterations
required and has therefore been considered as such). Accommodation is proposed within
the roofspace, contained within a mansard type roof with flat roofed front and rear dormer
windows. Two double garages are proposed, one for the new development, and one
replacement garage provided for the occupiers of No.94 Green Lane.

The houses would be located within the rear half of the rear gardens of Nos. 94 and 96
Green Lane, at the northern end of the application site. They would front onto Ashurst
Close with the house set back from the back edge of the pavement in Ashurst Close by a
minimum of 4.5m. To the rear of 94 Green Lane a garden depth of 19m would be retained
for that property, with the new plot divided by a 1.8m close boarded fence.

Each house would be 7.2m wide and 9.8m deep, with a further single storey element to
the side of each house that would be 1.8m wide, set back 4.7m from the front elevation. A
two storey flat roofed front bay window would also extend 0.6m in front of the main
elevation of each house.

The ground floor would comprise a hallway, living room and kitchen/dining room and utility
room. The first floor would comprise three bedrooms (one of which is shown as a study)
and bathroom, whilst the accommodation within the roof would provide a two further
bedrooms and a shower room.

Elevations would be of a traditional form similar to the adjoining flats, comprising facing
brickwork with brick feature string courses and detailing, and a synthetic slate roof.

The garage blocks would be sited to the south of the houses with hardstanding between
them accessed from Ashurst Close. The garage nearest to the house would provide a
single space each for the occupants of the new houses and would be 6.25m wide and
5.6m deep. The replacement garage for No. 94 Green Lane would be provided at the
southern end of the site and be 5.6m wide and 5.6m deep. Each garage would have a
tiled roof with gable ends rising from 2.8m at eaves level up to 4.4m ridge height, with the
parapet walls on the gable ends rising a further 0.3m. They would be set back
approximately 3m away from the back edge of the pavement, with a 10.8m gap between
the two garages, to include two parking spaces to the south of the northern garage, one
for each of the new houses.

Each house would have a garden depth of between 10.4m and 10.8m, with additional
space to the side of each house (3m to the main side elevation of the northern house and
5.8m to the side of the southern house.

A number of relatively minor changes have been made to the design of the houses and
their garage block, following advice given by officers.

The application is accompanied by a Design and Access Statement, Landscape Plan,
Arboricultural Report and a Sustainable Energy Statement.

3.3 Relevant Planning History

66134/APP/2011/294 Land To Rear Of 94-96 Green Lane Northwood

Three storey detached building comprising 6, two-bedroom flats with associated parking and
amenity space and installation of 2 vehicular crossovers, involving demolition of existing

North Planning Committee - 28th August 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 32



detached garage and erection of a replacement garage.

Decision: 25-08-2011 Appeal: 25-08-2011 Dismissed

66134/APP/2011/296 Land To Rear Of 94-96 Green Lane Northwood

Three storey detached building comprising 6, two-bedroom flats with associated parking and
amenity space and installation of 2, vehicular crossovers, involving demolition of existing
detached garage and erection of a replacement garage (Duplicate Application)

Decision: 02-06-2011 Refused

Comment on Relevant Planning History

There have been a number of applications submitted over the years which have proposed
residential development on this or parts of this site. On the southern part of the site, these
have involved a 3 storey block comprising 4 one-bedroom and one two-bedroom self-
contained flats with integral garages at ground floor (59708/APP/2004/1750 refers) which
was refused permission on 19/4/04 and a detached house which was dismissed at appeal
on 10/3/05 (59708/APP/2005/164 refers).

The two most recent applications on this site (one being a duplicate) sought to erect a
three storey block turned through 90 degrees to Ashurst Close, comprising 6 two-
bedroom flats with associated parking and amenity space, together with a replacement
double garage for No. 94 Green Lane (66134/APP/2011/292 and 294 refer). The latter
application was appealed for non-determination which was subsequently dismissed in the
Inspector's decision letter dated 25/8/11 (attached at Appendix 1), whereas the former
application was refused at the North Planning Committee meeting of 2/6/11 for the
following reasons:

1. The proposed three storey block, together with the provision of an extensive area of
hardstanding adjacent to Ashurst Close, by reason of its siting, density, size, bulk and
design, would appear as a cramped development that would fail to harmonise with the
architectural composition of adjoining buildings and the open and verdant character and
appearance of the surrounding area, including the Old Northwood Area of Special Local
Character. The proposal is therefore contrary to Policies BE5, BE10, BE13 and BE19 of
the adopted Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September 2007),
Policies 3A.3, 4B.1 and 4B.8 of the London Plan, guidance within The London Plan
Interim Housing Supplementary Planning Guidance, April 2010 and Planning Policy
Statement 3: Housing (as amended).

2. The application fails to make adequate provision for the long-term protection of several
trees on and off-site and does not take into account the future growth/size of three
protected Ash trees. Furthermore, the loss of the trees forming the large part of the tree
mass will have a detrimental impact on the green vista and arboreal/wooded character of
the area. The proposal therefore does not comply with policy BE38 of the Adopted
Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September 2007).

3. The proposal fails to provide adequate off-street car parking in accordance with the

North Planning Committee - 28th August 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 33



Council's adopted Car Parking Standards. The proposal would therefore be likely to give
rise to additional on-street parking, prejudicial to highway and pedestrian safety, contrary
to policies AM7(ii) and AM14 of the adopted Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved
Policies (September 2007).

4. The development is estimated to give rise to a number of children of school age and
additional provision would need to be made in the locality due to the shortfall of places in
schools serving the area. Given that a legal agreement at this stage has not been offered
or secured, the proposal is considered to be contrary to Policy R17 of the adopted
Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September 2007) and the adopted
London Borough of Hillingdon Planning Obligations Supplementary Planning Document
(July 2008).

4. Planning Policies and Standards

UDP / LDF Designation and London Plan
The following UDP Policies are considered relevant to the application:-

Part 1 Policies:
PT1.30 To promote and improve opportunities for everyone in Hillingdon, including in
particular women, elderly people, people with disabilities and ethnic minorities.

PT1.39 To seek where appropriate planning obligations to achieve benefits to the
community related to the scale and type of development proposed.

2012) Housing Growth
2012) Heritage

PT1.H1
PT1.HE1
PT1.BE1 2012) Built Environment

(2012)
(2012)
(2012)
PT1.EM1 (2012) Climate Change Adaptation and Mitigation
(2012)
(2012)
(2012)

PT1.EM6 2012) Flood Risk Management
PT1.EM8 2012) Land, Water, Air and Noise
PT1.CI1 2012) Community Infrastructure Provision
Part 2 Policies:

NPPF4

NPPF6

NPPF7

NPPF10

NPPF11

NPPF12

LPP 3.1 (2011) Ensuring equal life chances for all
LPP 3.3 (2011) Increasing housing supply

LPP 3.4 (2011) Optimising housing potential

North Planning Committee - 28th August 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 34



LPP 3.5 (2011) Quality and design of housing developments

LPP 5.3 (2011) Sustainable design and construction

LPP 5.13 (2011) Sustainable drainage

LPP 7.4 (2011) Local character

LPP 7.21 (2011) Trees and woodland

EC2 Nature conservation considerations and ecological assessments

EC5 Retention of ecological features and creation of new habitats

BES5 New development within areas of special local character

BE13 New development must harmonise with the existing street scene.

BE19 New development must improve or complement the character of the area.

BE20 Daylight and sunlight considerations.

BE21 Siting, bulk and proximity of new buildings/extensions.

BE22 Residential extensions/buildings of two or more storeys.

BE23 Requires the provision of adequate amenity space.

BE24 Requires new development to ensure adequate levels of privacy to neighbours.

BE38 Retention of topographical and landscape features and provision of new planting
and landscaping in development proposals.

H5 Dwellings suitable for large families

OE1 Protection of the character and amenities of surrounding properties and the local
area

OE8 Development likely to result in increased flood risk due to additional surface water
run-off - requirement for attenuation measures

R17 Use of planning obligations to supplement the provision of recreation, leisure and
community facilities

AM7 Consideration of traffic generated by proposed developments.

AM14 New development and car parking standards.

HDAS-LAY  Residential Layouts, Hillingdon Design & Access Statement, Supplementary
Planning Document, adopted July 2006

LDF-AH Accessible Hillingdon , Local Development Framework, Supplementary Planning
Document, adopted January 2010

5. Advertisement and Site Notice
5.1  Advertisement Expiry Date:- Not applicable
5.2  Site Notice Expiry Date:- Not applicable

6. Consultations
External Consultees

39 neighbouring properties have been consulted on 18th April 2012 and 2 site notices were
displayed on 14th May 2012. A further period of re-consultation was carried out on 30th April 2013,
following the receipt of amended plans.

North Planning Committee - 28th August 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 35



A petition with 38 signatories has been received, together with 7 individual responses.
The petition states that the signatories object to the planning application on the following grounds:

1. That despite the description of the development the use would be for two 6/7 bedroom three
storey dwellings by providing accommodation within the roof, thereby affecting density figures.

2. That the additional parking requirements and traffic generated by the development would create
unacceptable overuse, density, congestion and danger in Ashurst Close. The relocated garage for
94 would be very remote from the house, accessible only by a circuitous route, rendering the
occupier likely to add pressure by parking in the road.

3. The development would make it difficult to access and egress the underground car parks to the
adjoining flats on Ashurst Close.

4. The excessive density would be contrary to the policies relevant to the Old Northwood Area of
Special Local Character by reason of its overall size and proportion which would be over dominant,
incongruous and detrimental to the visual amenities and changing the character of the area.

5. The loss of significant trees which collectively provide an attractive suburban woodland of high
amenity value. Retained trees would be unable to provide adequate screening and trees lost have
the potential to provide a more attractive enclave and a significant wildlife haven. An independent
Arboricultural Report has been provided by the petitioners.

6. That the 3 storey proposed mass situated on higher land to 9 and 11 Chester Road would be
overbearing, the car parking area resulting in noise and disturbance, and south facing windows
resulting in overlooking and loss of privacy.

7. Points made in paragraphs 4 and 5 (Siting, scale and design), 6 (Trees), 7 and 8 (Parking and
highway issues) in the Inspector's previous letter have not been overcome.

8. The hard surfacing will adversely affect water drainage and flooding in the area.

The petition is also accompanied by a letter/report from an aboriculturist who raises concern about
the direct and indirect loss of trees and inevitable alteration of the well treed character of the area,
potential pressure for the removal of trees by the new residents in the future, and potential
neighbour disputes given the size of some of the trees outside of the site that may result in
excessive shade for the application properties.

The Ashurst Close (Flats) Ltd object to the application on the grounds that the open spaces around
Ashurst Close are important to the character of the area and well maintained by residents. The
proposed development would in effect nullify the Tree Protection Orders in the area. The proposal
would also result in driving hazards and parking problems, especially being opposite the
underground car park to the existing flats.

The individual responses raise the following concerns:

(i) The proposed plot is extremely small, with the building shoe-horned into place. The density of
dwellings is totally at odds with the character of the immediate buildings and the proposed parking
would result in the loss of a greatly valued green space. The scale of the design is totally out of
keeping with the houses that enclose it and would dominate the surrounding area. Although the
development broadly references the building scale of Ashurst Close flats, no reference is made to
housing features in the direct locality in the proposed design. Mansard roofs in particular would be
unsightly and fail to harmonise with the buildings in the area, including the designated Old
Northwood Area of Special Local Character and the adjoining Edwardian buildings in Green Lane
and Nos. 9 and 11 Chester Road which share common characteristics such as detached family
houses with large gardens. Materials specified do not resonate with the character of the area,

(i) The proposed site is a perfect example of back garden development: namely, those of the
former No. 7 Chester Road and current 94 and 96 Green Lane,

(iii) Not enough outdoor amenity space for residents,

(iv) Insufficient parking provision as 2 parking spaces per residence does not leave sufficient

North Planning Committee - 28th August 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 36



spaces for visitors, particularly if the houses are occupied by disabled people. Access already
severely restricted on Ashurst Close as this is single lane, with parking spaces judged to be unable
to accommodate any additional traffic by the inspectors of the previous application. Refuse
Collection vehicles already often need to reverse along the close due to restricted access. The
siting of a garage (for No. 94) on a 90 degree bend in the road will provide an additional hazard
both for residents in the town houses in Ashurst Close trying to access garages and for motorists
using a road that is already congested. Increased traffic flow not only through Ashurst Close but
also on Hallowell Road which is already a busy and over congested road both for resident's parking
and for local through traffic. It is already a notorious rat run. With 2 churches and 2 clubs in
Hallowell Road as well as the new Youth Centre, the potential for congestion, accidents and injuries
will only increase if this proposal goes ahead. Site is also close to popular independent school.
Proposal would be likely to create unacceptable congestion and disruption from builders, occupiers
and others, representing a risk to children,

(v)The area is over populated at present,

(vi) The back gardens of 94 and 96 Green Lane slope downwards towards Chester Road and the
current houses, although taller than my property, are screened in the summer months by many
trees currently covered by a blanket TPO. Any additional three storey building sited close to the
southern boundary would have a detrimental impact on privacy of surrounding properties,
particularly No. 9 Chester Road as it would dominate the outlook and directly overlook both the
house and garden thereby removing any remaining privacy that is currently enjoyed, both perceived
and actual. The plans indicate that the bathroom would directly overlook back garden of No. 9, the
only remaining area that still affords limited privacy,

(vii) Proposal would be detrimental to the view from surrounding properties, once trees have been
removed which will detract from enjoyment of gardens,

(viii) Proposal would result in loss of trees and greenery from the area, including those which lie on
the boundary with 9 Chester Road which are not referred to. These trees currently offer natural
screening between the garage and house at No. 94 Green Lane, house at 96 Green Lane and 9
Chester Road,

(ix) Site provides wildlife habitat, particularly for birds including green and spotted woodpeckers,
songbirds and even sparrow hawks,

(x) Increased noise levels would arise from side access to the utility room and positioning of bins to
No. 9 Chester Road. The garages are sited extremely close to each other and additional parking
(presumably on the approach to each garage) would exacerbate this situation. Over the past thirty-
five years, infiling at the former Nos. 5-7 Chester Road and the development of dwellings in
Ashurst Close have drastically reduced the amount of privacy previously enjoyed at this address
whilst simultaneously increasing noise levels. The current proposal would further compound these
issues,

(xi) Proposal would set precedent for other rear gardens to be used for development,

(xii) Proposal threatens surrounding buildings,

(xiii) Developers argue that this proposal would provide more accommodation for people with
special needs, but this proposal will completely prevent future residential, social or care home
development of a potentially much larger site by blocking access to land at the rear of numbers 98,
100 and 102 Green Lane. As, in the not too distant past, all the owners of the 5 properties in this
row have agreed to sell off part of their gardens to developers, we feel that this proposal would
effectively waste an opportunity for a more beneficial development.

11 further responses were received in response to the neighbour re-consultation on the amended
plans. These mainly re-iterate the comments received on the original consultation but include the
following additional comments:-

(xiv) There has been no significant changes to this application so previous objections still apply,
(xv) Proposal would increase demand on local services,

(xvi) Proposal may disrupt local utilities - flash flooding, surface water disposal and foul water
drains are already a local problem,

North Planning Committee - 28th August 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 37



(xvii) Ashurst Close has been well maintained for many years,

(xviii) This small plot of land may be suitable for a small bungalow but little else,

(xix) Application refers to two semi-detached 4 bedroomed houses but studies could be used as
another bedroom,

(xx) Proposal would limit rental income from surrounding properties,

(xxi) Construction traffic and storage of materials will add to congestion on road.

THAMES WATER

Thames Water would advise that with regard to sewerage infrastructure we would not have any
objection to the above planning application. With regard to surface water drainage it is the
responsibility of a developer to make proper provision for drainage to ground, water courses or a
suitable sewer. In respect of surface water it is recommended that the applicant should ensure that
storm flows are attenuated or regulated into the receiving public network through on or off site
storage. When it is proposed to connect to a combined public sewer, the site drainage should be
separate and combined at the final manhole nearest the boundary. Connections are not permitted
for the removal of Ground Water. Where the developer proposes to discharge to a public sewer,
prior approval from Thames Water Developer Services will be required. They can be contacted on
0845 850 2777. Reason - to ensure that the surface water discharge from the site shall not be
detrimental to the existing sewerage system. With regard to water supply, this comes within the
area covered by the Veolia Water Company.

Internal Consultees
URBAN DESIGN/ CONSERVATION OFFICER:

The scheme has been amended as regards the design of the pair of semi-detached houses in
accordance with officer advice so that no objections are raised on design grounds

The scheme would involve the loss of trees and open space that would adversely affect the setting
of the Old Northwood Area of Special Local Character.

TREES AND LANDSCAPE OFFICER:

NOTE: For clarity, and because the area order TPO does not describe individual trees, where
individual trees are referred to, this report refers to the tree numbers used by the applicant's
arboricultural consultant.

TPO / Conservation Area: This site is covered by TPQO's 56, 57 and 653: The southern part of the
site is also within the Old Northwood Area of Special Local Character.

Significant trees / other vegetation of merit in terms of Saved Policy BE38 (on-site): All of the trees
within the rear garden of 96 and 98 Green Lane (and 9 and 11 Chester Road, and 1 and 2
Wychwood Way) are covered by TPO 653 (an Area order).

The trees are predominantly Ash, some of which form a continuous line of trees along the site's
southern and eastern boundaries, which surround a smaller group, and provide a buffer to the
adjacent gardens. This mass of mostly young to middle-aged trees forms a small urban woodland
and green vista which significantly contributes to the arboreal / wooded character of the area and
can be seen from the surrounding local roads. The small urban woodland is valued by local
residents, has a high (collective) amenity value and should be afforded long-term retention and
protection.

The scheme proposes to remove a young Bhutan Pine, a few small fruit trees and two protected
Ash trees (T8 and T11 on report). There is no objection to the removal of the Pine and fruit trees;

North Planning Committee - 28th August 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 38



however the removal of the two protected Ash trees will effectively remove the inner group of trees
from the small urban woodland, and will result in the remaining trees forming only a staggered line
of Ash along the site's eastern and southern boundaries.

The applicant's tree consultant has stated that the larger of the Ash trees (T11 - which is formed
from two, twin-stemmed Ashes - i.e. four main stems) that will be removed has a very poor
structure and states there are weak forks present. However, each of the two separate close-
growing Ash trees has good form with a well-spaced main fork. If left to grow, it is reasonable to
assume that one of the expanding trunks (of the two separate trees) would eventually fail due to the
pressure exerted on it by the other. It would, however, be very straight-forward to remove one of
these trees to let the other develop normally.

The second, smaller Ash (T8 on report) that has been earmarked for removal has good form and
has the potential to develop into a good, central tree. If this application were to be approved
(resulting in the removal of these central Ash trees), then their loss would need to be mitigated by
good quality planting on the site's western boundary. This would need to be designed to soften the
visual impact on the residents at 10 - 21 Ashurst Close (to the north-west).

There is also a group of three Ash trees to the south-west of the proposed building (T12, T13 and
T14 on report). These trees are very important because they provide a visual buffer / green screen
between the properties in Wychwood Way and Ashurst Close from those in this part of Green
Lane. This group of trees, along with the linear group of trees along the site's eastern boundary, will
cast shade onto the proposed rear garden / amenity space. The applicant's arboricultural
consultant considers this to be a sustainable relationship because Ash trees only cast dappled
shade and there are no significant windows on the southern side of the proposed building; however
irrespective of the type of crowns that may develop, Ash trees are ultimately very large trees and
will eventually dominate the proposed rear gardens, especially the southern-most one. Any future
occupier would rightly be concerned about the close proximity of such large trees to their property
and there would inevitably be pressure to heavily prune or remove the trees in the future, which
would be detrimental to the amenity value of the group of trees and the amenity of the area.
Furthermore, because this group of trees have all grown into maturity together and have provided
mutual shelter during strong winds, the proposed removal of the inner group of could affect the
stability of these remaining Ash trees

Significant trees / other vegetation of merit in terms of Saved Policy BE38 (off-site): There are three
protected Lime trees (T26, T27 & T28 on TPO 57) situated in the rear garden of 94 Green Lane.
These trees fall just outside of the proposed site's northern boundary, however there is a possibility
that construction-related activities / storage of materials could affect their root protection areas
(RPA's). This matter has not been addressed by the tree survey / report.

There is a mature, protected Ash (T21 on the report / T35 on TPO 56) on the land to the south-
west of 94 Green Lane, and there is also a group of three conifer trees (not protected) close to the
entrance of the proposed development. These trees contribute to the arboreal / wooded character
of the area and help to screen the properties in Ashurst Close from those in Green Lane.

The applicant's arboricultural consultant (and the independent arboricultural consultant
commissioned by the Ashurst Close [Flats] Ltd) states that the Ash (T21 / T35 on TPO 56) has a
potentially weak fork at 1.5 m; however this contention has not been substantiated. The lower part
of the stem is covered in ivy, however when this was cut back, it revealed that although the stems
are growing quite close together, the union appeared to be sound, and in any event, if it were
shown that a weakness was present, the stems of the tree could be supported by installing non-
invasive bracing, or the crown of the tree could be lightened in weight by pruning.

The proposed surfacing between the proposed building and garages has been placed very close to

North Planning Committee - 28th August 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 39



the protected Ash (T21 / T35 on TPO 56), as has the proposed garage, and although 'no dig'
construction has been proposed, no further details have been provided to explain how the change
in levels between the proposed 'no dig' surface and the surrounding, existing ground levels will be
addressed. Furthermore, no information has been provided to show how the proposed garage will
be constructed without causing damage to the tree and its roots.

Appraisal: The proposed scheme is not sustainable in terms of the long-term retention of several of
the protected Ash trees, and furthermore, the scheme will have an adverse impact on the green
vista and arboreal / wooded character of the area.

Scope for new planting: Suggestions for new shrubs have been included at this stage; however it
may be appropriate to submit a more detailed landscaping plan at a later stage. If the various tree
matters can be resolved, this matter can be dealt with by condition.

Does scheme conform to HDAS: The design and access statement suggest that two parking
spaces will be provided for each dwelling. However, the proposed scheme only appears to provide
a double garage for car parking (with a second garage for the residents of 94 Green Lane). It is not
clear whether or not other parking is to be provided, however HDAS recommends that 1.5 spaces
per dwelling are required and therefore this matter will need to be clarified.

Does scheme conform to SUDS: The scheme proposes to use permeable surfaces, however no
details have been provided. This matter can be dealt with by condition.

Recommendations: None.

Conclusion (in terms of Saved Policy BE38): The application is not acceptable, because the
scheme does not make provision for the long-term protection of several trees on and off-site, nor
does it take into account the future growth / size of three protected Ash trees. Furthermore, the loss
of the trees forming the large part of the tree mass will have a detrimental impact on the green vista
and arboreal / wooded character of the area.

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION UNIT
Do not wish to object to this proposal. Please ensure informative 115 is applied.
SECTION 106 OFFICER

Education contributions will be required as per normal practice, and the applicant should be
advised that the development is CIL liable.

7. MAIN PLANNING ISSUES
7.01 The principle of the development

There is normally no in principle objection to the intensification of the residential use within
an established residential area, subject to normal development control criteria.

In this instance, the proposal would involve the loss of rear garden land and protected
trees.

As regards national guidance, paragraph 53 of the NPPF (March 2012) advises:-

'Local planning authorities should consider the case for setting out policies to resist
inappropriate development of residential gardens, for example where development would
cause harm to the local area.'

North Planning Committee - 28th August 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 40



With regard to the London Plan, Policy 3.5 "Quality and design of housing developments"
states that housing developments should be of the highest quality internally, externally
and in relation to their context and to the wider environment, taking account of strategic
policies in the Plan to protect and enhance London's residential environment and
attractiveness as a place to live. Boroughs may in their LDFs introduce a presumption
against development on back gardens or other private residential gardens where this can
be locally justified.

The London Plan comments in Paragraph 3.34 that "Directly and indirectly back gardens
play important roles in addressing many of these policy concerns, as well as being a much
cherished part of the London townscape contributing to communities' sense of place and
quality of life. Pressure for new housing means that they can be threatened by
inappropriate development and their loss can cause significant local concern. This Plan
therefore supports development plan-led presumptions against development on back-
gardens where locally justified by a sound local evidence base..."

Policy BE1 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part One - Strategic Policies (November 2012)
advises at point 9 that all new development should amongst other criteria:-

'Not result in the inappropriate development of gardens and green spaces that erode the
character and biodiversity of suburban areas and increase the risk of flooding through loss
of permeable area;'

Previous applications have been refused on the grounds of the impact of those
developments on the character of the area, the last one of which was upheld on appeal.
Given that there remain significant concerns regarding the impact of the development on
the character of the area through the loss of the open aspect and the impact on trees, it is
considered that any development of this site remains inappropriate, contrary to policies
seeking to safeguard rear gardens from development.

The loss of part of the rear gardens and trees would be detrimental to the character of the
area, part of which is located within the Old Northwood Area of Special Local Character.
On entering Ashurst Close from Hallowell Road, the orientation of the road permits in
depth views to the east over the adjoining rear gardens of properties on Chester Road
and Wychwood Way in the south and Green Lane in the north. The gardens contain many
mature trees and shrubs which gives the eastern end of the road an open and verdant
character. Whilst the buildings have been reduced in scale and form from that previously
considered unacceptable, the character of this part of the Close and the area in general
would be adversely harmed by the proposal. It would still add to the built-up appearance
of Ashurst Close, restricting outward views, which would be detrimental to the open
character of the eastern end of Ashurst Close. The scheme would therefore be
detrimental to the contribution that the rear gardens and trees make in terms of the local
context and character of the area.
7.02 Density of the proposed development

Policy 3.4 of the London Plan (July 2011) advises that Boroughs should ensure that
development proposals maximise housing output having regard to local context, design
principles, density guidance in Table 3.2 and public transport accessibility. Table 3.2
establishes a density matrix to establish a strategic framework for appropriate densities at
different locations.

The site is located within a suburban area and has a Public Transport Accessibility Level
(PTAL) of 2, where 6 is the most accessible and 1 the least. Taking the site parameters

North Planning Committee - 28th August 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 41



7.03

7.04

7.05

7.06

7.07

7.08

into account, the matrix recommends a density of 35-65 u/ha and 150-250 hr/ha, with an
average unit size of 3.8 - 4.6 hr/u. With 8 habitable rooms (counting habitable rooms over
20sgm which could be subdivided as 2 rooms as advised by Paragraph 4.2 of the
Council's HDAS: Residential Layouts) the proposed houses are larger than the largest
category of house in the guidance. However, this proposal equates to a density of 29 u/ha
and 229 hr/ha, with the number of units being less than that advocated by the Mayor's
guidance. However, given the spacious characer of the surrounding area, no objections
are raised to the proposed density.

Impact on archaeology/CAs/LBs or Areas of Special Character

There are no surrounding conservation areas or statutory listed or locally listed buildings
that would be affected by the proposed development. Furthermore, the site is not located
within an area that is likely to contain archaeological remains.

The southern part of the site does forms part of the Old Northwood Area of Special Local
Character, which in this particular location is defined by a mix of old and new buildings, set
within relatively spacious plots with areas of ancillary open space adjacent to the streets.

The proposal would result in residential development on an area of rear garden that
contains an area of suburban woodland of high amenity value. The loss of trees would
harm the arboreal character and appearance of the area, detrimental to the character and
appearance of the Old Northwood Area of Special Local Character. The scheme fails to
comply with policies BE5, BE13 and BE19 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved
UDP Policies (November 2012).

Airport safeguarding

There are no airport safeguarding issues raised by this application.
Impact on the green belt

The site is not situated within or near to Green Belt land. No Green Belt issues are
therefore raised by this application.
Environmental Impact

With the exception of the impact upon trees, which is dealt with elsewhere in this report,
there are no other environmental impacts raised by this application.
Impact on the character & appearance of the area

The Inspector on considering the previous appeal for the proposed 3 storey block of 6
flats noted that although the dwellings in the immediate vicinity of the site are widely
varied in terms of their age, size, type and design, the immediate setting is providing by
the Georgian style 1960s flatted blocks in Ashurst Close. The Inspector was critical of the
scale and design of the proposed 3 storey flatted block, concluding that:-

'..the layout, design and scale of the building does not reflect the urban grain or general
architectural quality of the immediate surroundings. Accordingly, | find the proposal would
harm the character and appearance of the locality and the Old Northwood ASLC.'

This scheme now proposes a more traditional pair of semi-detached houses. The
proposed houses have been turned through 90 degrees so that they now front the road.
The mansard roof is a characteristic roof form in the area so that no objections can be
raised to its inclusion here. Revised plans have been received, making detailed design
alterations to the scheme in response to the Council's Urban Design/Conservation Officer
comments and the design of the houses is now considered acceptable.

Impact on neighbours

The Council's Supplementary Planning Document HDAS: Residential Layouts requires

North Planning Committee - 28th August 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 42



buildings of two or more storeys to maintain at least a 15m separation distance from
adjoining properties to avoid appearing overdominant and a 21m distance between facing
habitable room windows and private amenity space, considered to be a 3m deep 'patio’
area adjoining the rear elevation of a property to safeguard privacy.

The main bulk of the two storey houses would be sited some 22m from the rear elevation
of No. 94 Green Lane. As regards the three storey flatted blocks on Ashurst Close, the
houses would be sited 16m from ther nearest cornner of the block to the north (Nos. 16 to
210 and some 16m from the side elevation of the flatted block on the opposite side of
Ashurst Close (Nos. 1 - 9). To the south, the houses would be sited some 39m from the
front elevation of the nearest property, No. 34 Ashurst Close. The only distance that would
not fully comply with design guidance is the relationship of the proposed houses with the
adjacent block at Nos. 1 - 9 Ashurst Close as this does contain 3 side windows, one on
each floor, that would overlook the frontage of the application site. Although the nearest
bay windows on one of the houses would be sited within approximately 19m of the side
windows at Nos. 1 to 9, given that these windows would face onto a road where privacy
would already be compromised and at a distance and angle sufficient to avoid any
significant loss of privacy, an additional reason for refusal could not be justified on this
ground. No objections were raised by officers. Members of the Inspector to a simialr
relationshiopm with the prevuious scheme for a flatted block (66134/APP/2011/292 and
294 refer).

The Inspector did however raise concern as regards the overbearing impact of the
previously proposed 3 storey flatted block on the rear garden of No. 9 Chester Close. The
current scheme proposes a pair of two storey houses which have been turned through 90
degress so that only a small length of the side elevation of the pair would adjoin this
boundary. This revised relationship is considered to have overcome the previous
Inspector's concerns.

The proposal is therefore considered to comply with policies BE20, BE21 and BE24 of the
adopted Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September 2009).
7.09 Living conditions for future occupiers

The London Plan (July 2011) within Table 3.3 sets out minimum internal floor space
standards for different types and sizes of dwelling. Although there is no recommended
standard for a 5 bedroom, 3 storey house, for the largest size of 3 storey house, a 4
bedroom, 6 person, a minimum floor area of 113sqm is required. Paragraph 3.36 further
advises that additional 10sqm should be added for each additional bedspace to give a
minimum floor area of 153sqm, assuming all the rooms would be doubles. In this
instance, the houses would have an internal floor area of 166sgm, so that the proposals
comply with the Mayor's minimum floor space standards.

Furthermore, all habitable room windows would have a satisfactory outlook and receive
adequate daylight.

The Council's SPD also advises that amenity space should be provided for houses at a
minimum level of 100m? per unit and that space needs to be usable, attractively laid out
and conveniently located.

The proposal would provide a minimum of 112m2 for the northernmost property,
exceeding the minimum stated requirements. The southernmost property would have a
slightly greater amount of amenity space, but in both cases the rear amenity space would
be dominated by the trees within the rear gardens of the properties beyond the site.

North Planning Committee - 28th August 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 43



7.10

7.1

712

713

7.14

The Council's Trees/Landscape Officer advises that contrary to the applicant's
arboricultural consultant's claims that this is a sustainable relationship, Ash trees are
ultimately very large trees which will eventually dominate the proposed rear gardens,
especially the southern-most one. Any future occupier would rightly be concerned about
the close proximity of such large trees to their property and there would inevitably be
pressure to heavily prune or remove the trees in the future.

It is therefore considered that the development would provide a satisfactory standard of
residential amenity due to the quality of the external amenity space which would be
overshadoweed and dominated by the surrounding trees. As such, the scheme fails to
comply with Policy BE23 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Unitary Development Plan
Saved Policies (November 2012).

Traffic impact, car/cycle parking, pedestrian safety

The proposal includes a detached double garage on the southern side of the houses,
which would provide a covered parking space for each of the houses with an additional
external space for each house provided on the garage forecourt. This arrangement is
considered to be acceptable and would satisfy the Council's car parking standards which
requires a maximum of 2 spaces per dwelling.

Cycle parking could be provided within the curtilage of each house.

As previously proposed, a replacement double garage for No. 94 Green Lane would be
sited on the southern boundary of the site, adjacent to the front garden of No. 34 Ashurst
Close. As previously stated in the officer's report to the North Planning Committee on
2/6/11, the garage would be somewhat remote from this property, sited on the southern
side of the new development with no direct pedestrian link through the proposed
development. Users of the garage would have a circuitous walk, along Ashurst Close,
Hallowell Road and Green Lane to access the property at No. 94. However, it has been
suggested that the garage would only be used occasionally and as there is already
adequate off-street parking at No. 94 within their front garden area, an objection could not
be sustained on the grounds that No. 94 would not have adequate replacement parking.
The Inspector did not raise concerns with the previous proposal on parking grounds.

As such, it is considered that the scheme complies with Policies AM7 and AM14 of the
Hillingdon Local Plan: Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November
2012).

Urban design, access and security

Urban design issues have been covered elsewhere in the report and with regard to access
and security, had the application not been recommended for refusal, conditions would
have been sufficient to ensure compliance with these requirements.

Disabled access

The London Plan (2011) requires all new residential development to satisfy Lifetime
Homes standards and detailed guidance is provided by the Council's SPD: Accessible
Hillingdon.

If the proposal had not been recommended for refusal, ensuring compliance with Lifetime
Homes standards could have been dealt with by way of a condition.
Provision of affordable & special needs housing

Not applicable to this application.
Trees, Landscaping and Ecology

North Planning Committee - 28th August 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 44



Policy BE38 of the Saved UDP requires development proposals to retain and utilise
landscape features of merit and provide new planting wherever appropriate.

This site comprises the rear garden areas of adjoining properties and forms a small urban
woodland of mostly young to middle-aged trees which significantly contributes to the
arboreal / wooded character of the area which is viewable from surrounding roads and
has a high group amenity value which should be afforded long-term retention and
protection. The site is covered by TPOs 56, 57 and 653. The trees are predominantly Ash,
some of which form a continuous line of trees along the site's southern and eastern
boundaries, which surround a smaller group, and provide a buffer to the adjacent
gardens.

The Inspector, in considering the scheme for a flatted block on this site noted that the
proposal would involve the loss of a number of trees covered by TPOs which had been
identified by the submitted arboricultural report as being mainly poorer quality spindly
specimens. However, the proposed flats would also intrude into the canopies of retained
trees, leading to pressure for their removal or significant crown reduction. The Inspector
also noted that the trees were spindly due to growing close to others so that when
neighbouring trees are removed, they would be susceptible to 'wind-blow'. This, and the
shading caused by the trees would result in further pressure for their removal on safety
and amenity grounds. The Inspector concluded on this issue:

'In sum, | consider the proposal would result in the unacceptable loss or threat to the
welfare of protected trees on and adjacent to the site, which together form a small,
suburban area of woodland that has a high amenity value.'

The current proposal for a pair of semi-detached houses would have a smaller building
footprint than that of the flatted block. The Council's Trees and Landscape Officer advises
that the current scheme would involve the loss of a young Bhutan Pine, a few small fruit
trees and two protected Ash trees (T8 and T11 on the submitted arboricultural report).
The officer advises that there is no objection to the removal of the Pine and fruit trees; but
the removal of the two protected Ash trees will effectively remove the inner group of trees
from the small urban woodland, and will result in the remaining trees forming only a
staggered line of Ash along the site's eastern and southern boundaries.

The Trees and Landscape Officer also queries a number of statements and conclusions
reached within the applicant's submitted arboricultural report. In particular, the officer
considers that the larger of the Ash trees proposed for removal (T11 - which is formed
from two, twin-stemmed Ashes - i.e. four main stems) which is described as having a very
poor structure with weak forks present does have long term potential, particularly if
appropriately managed. The officer also considers the second, smaller Ash (T8 on report)
that has been earmarked for removal to have good form and has the potential to develop
into a good, central tree.

The Trees and Landscape Officer also advises that a group of three Ash trees to the
south-west of the proposed building (T12, T13 and T14 on report) are very important as
they provide a visual buffer / green screen between the properties in Wychwood Way and
Ashurst Close from those on this part of Green Lane. This group of trees, together with a
linear group of trees along the site's eastern boundary, would cast shade onto the
proposed rear gardens of the houses. The applicant's arboricultural consultant considers
this to be a sustainable relationship because Ash trees only cast dappled shade and there
are no significant windows on the southern side of the proposed building. However, the
Council's Trees and Landscape Officer advises that irrespective of the type of crowns that

North Planning Committee - 28th August 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 45



may develop, Ash trees are ultimately very large trees and will eventually dominate the
proposed rear gardens, especially the southern-most one. Justifiably, any future occupier
would be concerned about the close proximity of such large trees to their property and
there would inevitably be pressure to heavily prune or remove the trees in the future. The
Trees and Landscape Officer advises that this would be detrimental to the amenity value
of the group of trees and the amenity of the area.

Furthermore, the Council's Trees and Landscape Officer advises that because this group
of trees have all grown into maturity together and have provided mutual shelter during
strong winds, the proposed removal of the inner group could affect the stability of the
remaining Ash trees.

The Trees and Landscape Officer also advises that there are three protected Lime trees
(T26, T27 & T28 on TPO 57) situated in the rear garden of 94 Green Lane. These trees
fall just outside of the proposed site's northern boundary, however there is a possibility
that construction-related activities / storage of materials could affect their root protection
areas (RPA's) which has not been addressed by the tree survey / report.

There is a mature, protected Ash (T21 on the report / T35 on TPO 56) on the land to the
south-west of 94 Green Lane, and there is also a group of three conifer trees (not
protected) close to the entrance of the proposed development. These trees contribute to
the arboreal / wooded character of the area and help to screen the properties in Ashurst
Close from those in Green Lane. The applicant's arboricultural consultant (and the
independent arboricultural consultant commissioned by the Ashurst Close [Flats] Ltd)
states that the Ash (T21 / T35 on TPO 56) has a potentially weak fork at 1.5m; however
this contention has not been substantiated. The lower part of the stem is covered in ivy,
however when this was cut back, it revealed that although the stems are growing quite
close together, the union appeared to be sound, and in any event, if it were shown that a
weakness was present, the stems of the tree could be supported by installing non-
invasive bracing, or the crown of the tree could be lightened in weight by pruning.

The proposed surfacing between the proposed building and garages has been placed
very close to the protected Ash (T21 / T35 on TPO 56), as has the proposed garage, and
although 'no dig' construction has been proposed, no further details have been provided to
explain how the change in levels between the proposed 'no dig' surface and the
surrounding, existing ground levels will be addressed. Furthermore, no information has
been provided to show how the proposed garage will be constructed without causing
damage to the tree and its roots.

The Trees and Landscape Officer concludes by advising that the proposed scheme is not
acceptable as it fails to provide for the long-term protection of several trees on and off-
site; does not take into account the future growth / size of three protected Ash trees and
the loss of the trees forming the large part of the tree mass will have a detrimental impact
on the green vista and arboreal / wooded character of the area. As such, the scheme is
contrary to Policy BE38 of the Hillingdon Local Plan.

7.15 Sustainable waste management

Although there is no requirement for proposals for residential houses with their own
curtilages to show the provision to be made for refuse and recycling storage, the
submitted plans do show bin storage for two bins at the side of each house. This provision
is considered adequate.

7.16 Renewable energy / Sustainability

If the proposal had not been recommended for refusal, ensuring compliance with

North Planning Committee - 28th August 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 46



renewable energy requirements and sustainability standards could have been dealt with
by way of a condition.
7.17 Flooding or Drainage Issues

Policy OE8 seeks to ensure that new development incorporates appropriate measures to
mitigate against any potential increase in the risk of flooding. The site is not within a flood
zone. A sustainable urban drainage condition could have been attached had the
application not been recommended for refusal.

7.18 Noise or Air Quality Issues

It is considered that the proposal would not give rise to any additional noise or air quality
issues of concern.
7.19 Comments on Public Consultations

As regards the points raised by the petitioners, Points 1 - 6 and 8 have been dealt with in
the officer's report. As regards Point 7, the Inspector was considering a different scheme
with a parking provision of 1 space per flat. The Inspector stated that this by itself would
not justify a reason for refusal. The Inspector also agreed with the Council that the
replacement garage would be highly inconveniently to use but did not raise this as an
additional refusal to refuse the application.

As regards the individual comments, points (i), - (iv), (viii), (xiii) and (xix) are dealt with in
the officer's report. Points (v), (xiv), (xvi), (xvii), (xviii), (xx) and (xxi) are noted but in the
main do not raise specific material planning objections to the scheme and additionally in
the case of point (xvi), a sustainable drainage condition could have been attached if the
application had not of been recommended for refusal. Point (vi) is mainly dealt with in the
report but as regards overlooking by the side bathroom window, this could be mitigated by
obscure glazing which could of been conditioned had the application not of been
recommended for refusal. Point (vii) is noted but restriction of a view is not by itself a
material planning consideration. Point (ix) concerning site providing wildlife habitat,
particularly for birds is noted and tree loss forms a reason for refusal of the application. As
regards Point 10, noise generated for the proposal would not give rise to concern given
the relationship of surrounding properties and the scale of the development. Point (xi) is
noted but all applications have to be considered on their merits. Point (xii) does not raise a
planning objection. As regards Point (xv), a contribution towards school places would have
been sought if the application had been recommended for approval.

The points raised have been referred to throughout this report, where they are material
planning considerations.
7.20 Planning Obligations

Policy R17 of the adopted Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies
(September 2007) is concerned with securing planning obligations where appropriate to
offset the additional demands made by new development upon recreational open space,
facilities to support arts, cultural and entertainment activities, and other community, social
and education facilities in conjunction with other development proposals. This is supported
by more specific supplementary planning guidance.

It is considered that the scale and nature of development proposed would generate a
potential need for additional school facilities and Education Services and this scheme
would need to make a contribution to mitigate the impact of the development. As the
application is being recommended for refusal, no detailed negotiations have been entered
into with the prospective developer in respect of this contribution. Whilst the applicant has
offered a willingness to provide such a contribution, there is no agreement in place to
secure this and the proposal would thus not comply with Policy R17 of the UDP Saved

North Planning Committee - 28th August 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 47



Policies (September 2007).
7.21 Expediency of enforcement action

There are no enforcement issues raised by this application.
7.22 Other Issues

The only other relevant planning consideration raised by this application is the likely
impact of the proposal upon the development potential of adjoining rear garden land.
Although the proposal would restrict access to a possible larger site, given that the
proposal involving the loss of garden land is considered inappropriate, development upon
a larger area of garden land would also not be encouraged. As such, it is considered that
the scheme would not be contrary to Policy BE14 of the adopted Hillingdon Unitary
Development Plan Saved Policies (September 2007).

8. Observations of the Borough Solicitor

When making their decision, Members must have regard to all relevant planning
legislation, regulations, guidance, circulars and Council policies. This will enable them to
make an informed decision in respect of an application.

In addition Members should note that the Human Rights Act 1998 (HRA 1998) makes it
unlawful for the Council to act incompatibly with Convention rights. Decisions by the
Committee must take account of the HRA 1998. Therefore, Members need to be aware of
the fact that the HRA 1998 makes the European Convention on Human Rights (the
Convention) directly applicable to the actions of public bodies in England and Wales. The
specific parts of the Convention relevant to planning matters are Article 6 (right to a fair
hearing); Article 8 (right to respect for private and family life); Article 1 of the First Protocol
(protection of property) and Article 14 (prohibition of discrimination).

Article 6 deals with procedural fairness. If normal committee procedures are followed, it is
unlikely that this article will be breached.

Article 1 of the First Protocol and Article 8 are not absolute rights and infringements of
these rights protected under these are allowed in certain defined circumstances, for
example where required by law. However any infringement must be proportionate, which
means it must achieve a fair balance between the public interest and the private interest
infringed and must not go beyond what is needed to achieve its objective.

Article 14 states that the rights under the Convention shall be secured without
discrimination on grounds of 'sex, race, colour, language, religion, political or other
opinion, national or social origin, association with a national minority, property, birth or
other status'.

9. Observations of the Director of Finance
Not applicable to this application.

10. CONCLUSION

The proposal would involve the loss of garden land which contains a number of trees and
landscaping which contribute to the character and appearance of the surrounding area,
part of which forms part of the Old Northwood Area of Special Local Character. The
proposal also does not make adequate provision for the retention of trees on and adjacent
to the site. The proposed rear amenity space would also be overshadowed and dominated
to an unacceptable extent by retained trees which would result in additional pressure for

North Planning Committee - 28th August 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 48



their removal. In the absence of a S106 Agreement, the scheme also does not make
adequate provision for additional education space within the locality.

The application is recommended for refusal.

11. Reference Documents

NPPF (March 2012)

London Plan (July 2011).

Hillingdon Local PLan (November 2012).

Hillingdon Design and Accessibility Statement: Residential Layouts.

Hillingdon Design and Accessibity Statement: Acessible Hillingdon.

Hillingdon Planning Obligations Supplementary Planning Document July( 2008) and
updated chapter 4 Education (August 2010).

Council's Adopted Car Parking Standards (Annex 1, Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan,
Saved Policies, September 2007).

Consultation responses

Contact Officer: Richard Phillips Telephone No: 01895 250230

North Planning Committee - 28th August 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 49



The Planning

: Inspectorate

Appeal Decision
Site visit made on 15 August 2011

by E C Grace DipTP FRTPI FBEng PPIAAS

an Inspector appointed by the Secretary of State for Communities and Local Government

Decision date: 25 August 2011

Appeal Ref: APP/R5510/A/11/2151527
Land rear of 94 & 96 Green Lane, Northwood HA6 1A]

The appeal is made under section 78 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990
against a failure to give notice within the prescribed period of a decision on an
application for planning permission.

The appeal is made by Alburgh Developments Ltd against the Council of the London
Borough of Hillingdon.

The application Ref 66134/APP/2011/294 is dated 1/2/11.

The development proposed is the construction of 6 two bedroom flats and associated
parking.

Decision

1.

The appeal is dismissed.

Main Issues

2.

In light of the Council’s indication that they would have refused planning
permission on four grounds, I consider the main issues are whether the
proposal would: a) harm the character and appearance of the locality, which
includes the Old Northwood Area of Special Local Character (ASLC); b) result in
the unacceptable loss or threat to the welfare of trees on and adjacent to the
site; c) give rise to additional kerbside parking with ensuing inconvenience to
residents and dangers for users of the highway; and d) fail to make adequate
provision by means of a legal agreement for educational requirements that
would be generated by the intended occupants.

Reasons

3.

The site comprises the rearmost parts of the gardens of two large detached
Edwardian houses and has within it the double garage of 94 Green Lane which
has access onto Ashurst Close. The garden land is fenced and it contains a
number of trees subject to Tree Preservation Orders (TPOs), which confers it
with a predominantly wooded appearance. The narrower southern portion of
the site currently has the appearance of an amenity space, being open to the
road and mainly laid to grass. I understand it is a residual area following the
construction of housing on the former rear gardens of 5 and 7 Chester Road
and lies within the designated Old Northwood ASLC. The proposal would entail
constructing a contemporarily designed three storey block of flats in the treed
area, set at right angles to the road, while the grassed area is intended to
accommodate the six car parking spaces for the proposed flats and a re-sited
double garage for No.94. Bin and cycle stores would be positioned between
the flats and the parking area. The land slopes down from north to south with
an overall fall of approximately 3.83m.

http://www.planning-inspectorate.gov.uk

Page 50



Appeal Decision APP/R5510/A/11/2151527

4,

Although the dwellings in the immediate vicinity of the site are widely varied in
terms of their age, size, type and design, I consider the immediate setting is
provided by the Georgian style 1960s development of flats in Ashurst Close.
The development has a relatively spacious ambience due to its generous well-
maintained landscaped setting, the incorporation of basement parking, and by
the buildings being set back from the highway. The Council’s Urban Design
and Conservation Officer regards the orientation of the proposed flats as not
addressing either the street frontage or the courtyard of the adjacent flats, and
considers it would therefore relate poorly to the established layout of the area.
The Council also state that the loss of open garden area from the dwellings
would be detrimental to the spacious character of the locality and indicate the
density of the flats would exceed the maximum recommended in the London
Plan for a suburban area of this nature.

I agree that the presentation of a secondary fagade to the highway combined
with its close proximity to the road would be damaging to the street scene. Its
harm would be compounded by the height and bulk of the building relative to
its plot size and the loss of trees and open landscaping along an extensive
length of Ashurst Close due to the structures and hard surfacing. The Council
also criticises the design of the proposed flats regarding it as being mundane,
with the shallow roof appearing disproportionate to the overall facade and the
fenestration fussy and lacking cohesion. It is evident the modern design of the
building would differ from the surrounding structures, but notwithstanding the
wide variety of styles hereabouts, I agree that the layout, design and scale of
the building does not reflect the urban grain or general architectural quality of
the immediate surroundings. Accordingly, I find the proposal would harm the
character and appearance of the locality and the Old Northwood ASLC.

In the second issue, it is apparent that the proposal would entail the removal of
a number of trees which are subject to TPOs. The appellant has submitted an
arboricultural report which describes the affected trees as being mainly poorer
quality spindly specimens. Peripheral planting is to be retained to maintain a
green appearance to the site and additional planting is proposed. Nonetheless,
I saw that the proposed flats would intrude into the canopies of some of the
trees shown to be retained, which would inevitably lead to pressure for either
their removal or significant crown reduction. I observed that many of the trees
were indeed spindly due to them having grown close to others, whereby, when
neighbouring trees are removed they would be susceptible to “wind-blow"” with
the consequence again of pressure to remove them in the interest of safety.
The Council’s Trees and Landscape Officer has indicated that the trees are
predominantly ash which is a large species and likely to lead to significant
shading and thus also lead to increased pressure for their removal. In sum, I
consider the proposal would result in the unacceptable loss or threat to the
welfare of protected trees on and adjacent to the site, which together form a
small, suburban area of woodland that has a high amenity value.

Turning to issue three, the appellant regards the provision of 1 car space per
flat as adequate and indicates that it would fall within the Council’s maximum
standard of 1.5 spaces per flat. Whilst the Council agree that is correct they
have highlighted that in a previous appeal in respect of a proposal for a 3 bed
house on the site, the Inspector noted that the provision of less than 2 spaces
would likely result in on-street parking. I saw that there is considerable local
parking pressure and the lack of any parking for visitors would be likely to lead
to residents’ parking spaces being usurped for this purpose.

http://www.planning-inspectorate.gov.uk

Pade 51



Appeal Decision APP/R5510/A/11/2151527

10.

11.

Whilst this factor on its own would not necessarily have been regarded as so
severe to warrant refusal, I regard it as adding weight to the other two
concerns, being likely to give rise to inconvenience to residents both in the
proposed and nearby flats. In addition, I was advised that there are already
hazards to road users due to the narrowness of the Close, the regular abuse of
yellow line parking prohibition and obstruction of accesses. Additional demand
on the limited available kerbside parking would further exacerbate an already
fraught situation with attendant increased dangers for users of the highway. I
also agree with the Council’s observation that the proposed replacement
garage for No. 94 would be very remote from the house and accessible only by
an extremely circuitous route, rendering it highly inconvenient to use.

The fourth issue concerns the absence of any legal agreement for educational
requirements that would be generated by the intended occupants. However,
the appellant considers there is no justification for the Council’s request for a
sum of £15,788 as it relates to a potential need for additional school facilities
and the Education Officer states that the measures to provide additional school
places to meet rising demand are still in development. The Council highlighted
UDP Policy R17 as the background to securing planning obligations in respect of
provision of various infrastructure requirements, and Supplementary Planning
Guidance containing justification for seeking education contributions. Although
the appellant indicated that they would submit a Unilateral Undertaking to
address this matter if it was the only unresolved issue, in the absence of any
indication as to precisely where these monies would be applied, I cannot satisfy
myself that the requirement is compliant with the three statutory tests in the
Community Infrastructure Levy Regulations. Accordingly, I am unable to reach
a definitive conclusion on this issue.

I have taken account of the views of local residents and other interested
parties and I note that the Council assessed the distances between windows in
the proposed flats and those in nearby properties, whereby they concluded that
distances separating them would avoid any significant loss of privacy. Whilst
that may be the case in terms of building to building views, I saw that the
proposed flats would be positioned between 4m and 5.6m from the boundary of
9 and 11 Chester Road. I was afforded the opportunity to view the site from
the adjoining garden of 9 Chester Road and I consider a three storey building
of the mass proposed, situated on higher land so close to the boundary would
be overbearing in appearance, while the car parking area adjacent to their
flank boundary would lead to increased noise and disturbance. No. 9 has a
summer house and associated sitting out area close to the boundary fence,
which would be overlooked at close quarters by bedroom and kitchen/dining
room windows in the first and second floors of the proposed flats. I conclude
this would result in a considerable loss of privacy through actual or perceived
overlooking and thus, the enjoyment of their garden would be seriously
compromised.

For the reasons given above I conclude that the proposal would contravene
UDP Policies BE13, BE19 and BE38 and that the appeal should be dismissed.

Edward Grace

Inspector

http://www.planning-inspectorate.gov.uk

Page 52



Swimming Pool

\

NOR

OD

\
\
\
\
\
\
\
\
\
\ \
(R —
\ \
\ \
\ \
\ \
\ \
\ \
\ \
\ \
\ \
\ \
\ \
\ \
A \

\ NS B

\ -
\75.0m™ =< -7

'
P

STCLOSE __--7.7

ASHUR

Little
St Helen's
School

Chester
House

Site boundary

For identification purposes only.

This copy has been made by or with
the authority of the Head of Committee
Services pursuant to section 47 of the

Site Address

Land to the rear of
94 - 96 Green Lane

LONDON BOROUGH
OF HILLINGDON

Residents Services

Copyright, Designs and Patents
Act 1988 (the Act).
Unless the Act provides a relevant

exception to copyright.

© Crown copyright and database
rights 2013 Ordnance Survey
100019283

Northwood Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1UW
Telephone No.: Uxbridge 250111
Planning Application Ref: Scale
66134/APP/2012/718 1:1,250 SR
Planning Committee Date u‘t‘
North Page 53 Avaust | HILLINGDON

LONDON




This page is intentionally left blank

Page 54



Agenda Iltem 8

Report of the Head of Planning, Sport and Green Spaces

Address LAND REAR OF 41 & 43 THE DRIVE NORTHWOOD

Development: 2 x two storey, 4-bed, detached dwellings with associated amenity space and
parking and installation of vehicular crossover

LBH Ref Nos: 68458/APP/2013/1405

Drawing Nos: 12/3265/11 A
12/3265/13
Tree Protection Plan Rev C
RC/LOC-PLAN
12/3265/10
12/3265/12
Design and Access Statement
Appendix to Design and Access Statement
Arboricultural and Planning Integration Report
Energy Statement

Date Plans Received:  29/05/2013 Date(s) of Amendment(s): 29/05/2013
Date Application Valid: 07/06/2013 07/06/0013
29/05/0013

1. SUMMARY

A previous application for 4 dwellings was refused on this site on the grounds of being
backland development, detrimental to the verdant character of the area, loss of a
significant number of trees, and failure to provide contributions towards the improvement
of services and facilities.

This application seeks permission for the erection of 2 detached houses within an area of
land to the rear of 41 and 43 The Drive, Northwood. The 2 houses would be accessed off
the southern arm of Knoll Crescent.

The site is considered to be a backland development. In the light of recent changes in
policy and guidance in relation to backland development, and given the harm that would
be caused to the character and appearance arising from this development and its
piecemeal nature it is considered that the development would be unacceptable.

The application is therefore recommended for refusal.
2 RECOMMENDATION
REFUSAL for the following reasons:

1 NON2 Non Standard reason for refusal

The proposed development would constitute a piecemeal form of backland development
that would fail to maintain the open and verdant character and appearance of the
surrounding area. The proposal is therefore contrary to Part One Policy BE1 and Part 2
Policies BE13 and BE19 of the adopted Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP
Policies (November 2012), and Policy 3.5 of the London Plan (July 2011).

2 NON2 Non Standard reason for refusal

North Planning Committee - 28th August 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 55



The applicant has failed to provide contributions towards the improvement of services
and facilities as a consequence of demands created by the proposed development,
including a contribution for education facilities. The scheme therefore conflicts with Policy
R17 of the adopted Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November
2012) and the Hillingdon Planning Obligations Supplementary Document (July 2008).

INFORMATIVES

1 152 Compulsory Informative (1)

The decision to REFUSE planning permission has been taken having regard to all
relevant planning legislation, regulations, guidance, circulars and Council policies,
including The Human Rights Act (1998) (HRA 1998) which makes it unlawful for the
Council to act incompatibly with Convention rights, specifically Article 6 (right to a fair
hearing); Article 8 (right to respect for private and family life); Article 1 of the First
Protocol (protection of property) and Article 14 (prohibition of discrimination).

2 153 Compulsory Informative (2)

The decision to REFUSE planning permission has been taken having regard to the
policies and proposals in the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies
(September 2007) as incorporated into the Hillingdon Local Plan (2012) set out below,
including Supplementary Planning Guidance, and to all relevant material considerations,
including the London Plan (July 2011) and national guidance.

AM7 Consideration of traffic generated by proposed developments.

AMS8 Priority consideration to pedestrians in the design and
implementation of road construction and traffic management
schemes

AM9 Provision of cycle routes, consideration of cyclists' needs in design
of highway improvement schemes, provision of cycle parking
facilities

AM14 New development and car parking standards.

BE13 New development must harmonise with the existing street scene.

BE19 New development must improve or complement the character of the
area.

BE20 Daylight and sunlight considerations.

BE22 Residential extensions/buildings of two or more storeys.

BE23 Requires the provision of adequate amenity space.

BE24 Requires new development to ensure adequate levels of privacy to
neighbours.

BE38 Retention of topographical and landscape features and provision of
new planting and landscaping in development proposals.

H4 Mix of housing units

H5 Dwellings suitable for large families

H6 Considerations influencing appropriate density in residential
development.

H9 Provision for people with disabilities in new residential
developments

R17 Use of planning obligations to supplement the provision of
recreation, leisure and community facilities

HDAS-LAY Residential Layouts, Hillingdon Design & Access Statement,
Supplementary Planning Document, adopted July 2006

LPP 3.5 (2011) Quality and design of housing developments

(2011) Sustainable design and construction

North Planning Committee - 28th August 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 56



LPP 5.3

3 159 Councils Local Plan : Part 1 - Strategic Policies

On this decision notice policies from the Councils Local Plan: Part 1 - Strategic Policies
appear first, then relevant saved policies (referred to as policies from the Hillingdon
Unitary Development Plan - Saved Policies September 2007), then London Plan Policies.
On the 8th November 2012 Hillingdon's Full Council agreed the adoption of the Councils
Local Plan: Part 1 - Strategic Policies. Appendix 5 of this explains which saved policies
from the old Unitary Development (which was subject to a direction from Secretary of
State in September 2007 agreeing that the policies were 'saved') still apply for
development control decisions.

3. CONSIDERATIONS

3.1 Site and Locality

The application site is situated to the rear of Nos. 41 and 43 The Drive. Though it should
be noted that all of the application land is in the ownership of No. 43 The Drive, a currently
vacant property. The site is oblong in shape, measuring 19.1m wide by 71.7m deep, and
comprises the rear garden of No 41 The Drive and also extends to the rear of No. 43 The
Drive. The site comprises of areas of lawn, trees and vegetation, has an overall area of
0.13Ha, can best be described as verdant in character, and is the subject of area TPO
No. 124 which covers land at 35-49 The Drive.

It is worth noting that since the refusal of planning permission for a previous scheme, tree
felling and general vegetation removal has been undertaken on the site. However, no
protected trees have been removed.

The southern boundary of the site adjoins the southern arm of Knoll Crescent, which
currently terminates in the form of a turning area adjacent to the site. Knoll Crescent is
characterised by relatively modern properties of several different designs situated within a
pleasant semi-urban environment.

The application site forms part of an area of generally wooded garden land which
separates the northern and southern arms of Knoll Crescent.

The application site slopes down in an easterly direction from the host dwelling. Therefore
the properties in Knoll Crescent [south] are at a considerably lower level than those in The
drive.

Beyond the south eastern boundary is land designated as Green Belt and a Site of
Interest for Nature Conservation.

3.2 Proposed Scheme

The application site remains the same as for the refused scheme but now only proposes 2
detached houses to be built within the rear garden area with access from Knoll Crescent,
effectively forming an extension of the existing Knoll Crescent street scene. These
properties would be on the same area as Plots 1 and 2 on the scheme previously refused.
The remaining land to the east, previously known as Plots 3 and 4 is shown within the
current application site but the application does not show the applicants intention for this
area.

North Planning Committee - 28th August 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 57



Each of the houses would be the similar in style and form. The ground floor would
comprise lounge, study, utility room, kitchen and dining area. The first floor would provide
4 bedrooms and bathroom facilities; no accommodation is shown within the roof space.
Each house would have two external parking spaces, hard standing for bins and rear
amenity space. Plot 1 would have a rear amenity space of 60m? and Plot 2 would have
70m?2.

The properties would be similar in bulk and massing to the existing detached houses on
the west side of Knoll Crescent, with external materials comprising of brick, tile hanging
and tiled roof.

It should however be emphasised that the application fails to demonstrate how the
scheme takes into account the sloping nature of the site.

The application is accompanied by a combined Design and Access/Planning Statement
the conclusions of which may be summarised as follows:

- The open and verdant character of the area is retained.

- The scheme relates directly to the existing street scene.

- By only having development on the western side, the Council's previous objections
regarding trees are directly addressed as the Council's previous concerns only related to
Plots 3 and 4.

- The applicant has no objection to a planning condition securing funding towards
educational and school places/community facilities.

Arboriculture and Energy statements have also been submitted.

3.3 Relevant Planning History

68458/APP/2012/779 Land Rear Of 41 & 43 The Drive Northwood

4 x two storey, 4-bed, detached dwellings with associated amenity space and parking and
installation of vehicular crossover to front

Decision: 08-08-2012 Refused

Comment on Relevant Planning History

Under ref: 68458/APP/2012/779, planning permission was refused for the erection of 4 x
two storey, 4-bed, detached dwellings with associated amenity space and parking and
installation of vehicular crossover to front on the same area of land for the following
reasons:

1.The proposed development would constitute backland development that would fail to
maintain the open and verdant character and appearance of the surrounding area. The
proposal is therefore contrary to Policies BE13 and BE19 of the adopted Hillingdon
Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September 2007), and Policy 3.5 of the
London Plan (July 2011).

2.The proposal would result in the loss of a significant number of trees (including
protected trees)and would adversely impact on the green vista and arboreal character of
the area. The proposal does not take into account the future growth / size of trees and the
impact that this growth would have on the amenities of the proposed occupiers. The
proposal therefore does not comply with Policy BE38 of the Adopted Hillingdon Unitary

North Planning Committee - 28th August 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 58



Development Plan Saved Policies (September 2007).

3.The applicant has failed to provide contributions towards the improvement of services
and facilities as a consequence of demands created by the proposed development,
including a contribution for education facilities. The scheme therefore conflicts with Policy
R17 of the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Polices (September 2007) and the
Hillingdon Planning Obligations Supplementary Document (July 2008).

4, Planning Policies and Standards
Not applicable.
UDP / LDF Designation and London Plan
The following UDP Policies are considered relevant to the application:-

Part 1 Policies:

PT1.BE1 (2012) Built Environment

Part 2 Policies:

AM7 Consideration of traffic generated by proposed developments.

AMS8 Priority consideration to pedestrians in the design and implementation of road
construction and traffic management schemes

AM9 Provision of cycle routes, consideration of cyclists' needs in design of highway
improvement schemes, provision of cycle parking facilities

AM14 New development and car parking standards.

BE13 New development must harmonise with the existing street scene.

BE19 New development must improve or complement the character of the area.

BE20 Daylight and sunlight considerations.

BE22 Residential extensions/buildings of two or more storeys.

BE23 Requires the provision of adequate amenity space.

BE24 Requires new development to ensure adequate levels of privacy to neighbours.

BE38 Retention of topographical and landscape features and provision of new planting
and landscaping in development proposals.

H4 Mix of housing units

H5 Dwellings suitable for large families

H6 Considerations influencing appropriate density in residential development.

H9 Provision for people with disabilities in new residential developments

R17 Use of planning obligations to supplement the provision of recreation, leisure and

community facilities

HDAS-LAY Residential Layouts, Hillingdon Design & Access Statement, Supplementary
Planning Document, adopted July 2006

LPP 3.5 (2011) Quality and design of housing developments
LPP 5.3 (2011) Sustainable design and construction
5. Advertisement and Site Notice

North Planning Committee - 28th August 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 59



5.1 Advertisement Expiry Date:- Not applicable
5.2 Site Notice Expiry Date:- Not applicable

6. Consultations
External Consultees

38 consultations have been undertaken which expired on the 16th July 2013 and site notices
posted in both The Drive and Knoll Crescent. In addition the case officer as well as visiting the site
and surrounding area, also visited one of the adjoining properties and took photographs from their
property as requested.

15 letters of objection along with a petition with 62 signatures objecting to the scheme have been
received along with a letter from the Right Honourable N Hurd MP who advises that he has been
contacted by several extremely concerned constituents and trusts the application will be refused as
was the case last year. The objections raised may be summarised as follows:

(i) Does not address the previous grounds of refusal.
(i) Backland development.

(iii) Loss of a significant number of trees.

(iv) The scheme fails to address loss of privacy and traffic issues.

(v) The scheme fails to maintain the open and verdant character and appearance of the area,
contrary to Policy BE21.

(vi) What will happen to the land left at the far end of the site?

(vii) No assessment of flood risk.

Thames water Utilities advise as follows:

With regard to surface water drainage it is the responsibility of a developer to make proper
provision for drainage to ground, water courses or a suitable sewer. In respect of surface water it is
recommended that the applicant should ensure that storm flows are attenuated or regulated into
the receiving public network through on or off site storage. When it is proposed to connect to a
combined public sewer, the site drainage should be separate and combined at the final manhole
nearest the boundary. Connections are not permitted for the removal of Ground Water. Where the
developer proposes to discharge to a public sewer, prior approval from Thames Water Developer
Services will be required. Legal changes under The Water Industry (Scheme for the Adoption of
private sewers) Regulations 2011 mean that the sections of pipes you share with your neighbours,
or are situated outside of your property boundary which connect to a public sewer are likely to have
transferred to Thames Water's ownership. Should your proposed building work fall within 3 metres
of these pipes we recommend you contact Thames Water to discuss their status in more detail and
to determine if a building over / near to agreement is required. You can contact Thames Water on
0845 850 2777 or for more information please visit our website at www.thameswater.co.uk Water
Comments With regard to water supply, this comes within the area covered by the Affinity Water
Company. For your information the address to write to is - Veolia Water Company The Hub,
Tamblin Way, Hatfield, Herts, AL10 9EZ - Tel - 0845 782 3333.

Internal Consultees

Highways (Transportation and Traffic) advise that they have had regard to the very poor Ptal
reading of 1a but consider two parking spaces per dwelling would be acceptable and therefore
raise no objection subject to an Informative advising the applicant to contact the Council's
Highways team in relation to the construction of the proposed vehicular cross overs.

The Environmental protection Unit advise that there would be no significant contamination issues.

North Planning Committee - 28th August 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 60



They therefore have no objections subject to a planning condition requiring the minimisation of the
risk of contamination from the garden and landscaped areas in accordance with Policy OE11.

The Tree/Landscape Officer advises as follows:

There are a number of mature protected trees at this site which significantly contribute to the
amenity and arboreal character of the area in which they are situated. There were also several
mature non-protected trees at the site; however these have recently been removed. The remaining
trees are not particularly visible from the Drive; however, as a group of trees they are visible from
parts of Knoll Crescent, which is where the access to the proposed development will be located.
The extensive rear gardens (and the trees within in them) contribute to the amenity and arboreal
character of the area and provide a green vista which should be retained. The group of trees,
including several protected trees, situated mainly to the side (north-east) of 113 Knoll Crescent has
a high (collective) amenity value.

Since the previous (withdrawn) application, the proposals have been significantly reduced in scale.
The proposed plots 3 & 4 are no longer part of the application to develop the site, and this is where
the majority of my previous concerns existed. The remaining trees on this part of the site will not be
affected. The proposed plot 1 will be situated quite close to two large protected Ash (T40 and T41),
however these two Ash have a history of pruning (crown reductions were last approved in 2010)
and there is no reason why they should not continue to be managed in this way to provide a
sustainable relationship between trees and property. An adequate level of tree protection has been
proposed to protect these trees' root protection areas (RPA's) during construction.

There are no tree constraints relating to the development of plot 2.

Scope for new planting? yes: The locations of several new trees has been shown on the plans. The
specifications of the proposed trees and other landscape matters can be dealt with by condition.
Conclusion (in terms of Saved Policy BE38): Acceptable, subject to conditions RES8
(implementation of proposed protection), RES9 (1, 2,4, 5, 6) and RES10.

ACCESS OFFICER
No objections, subject to the development providing level access in accordance with the building
regulations and a condition to ensure full compliance with Lifetime Homes standards.

7. MAIN PLANNING ISSUES
7.01 The principle of the development

As with the previous application, this proposal would represent backland development to
which there have been recent changes to policy, as contained within bothe the London
plan 2011 and the Nationla Planning Policy Framework.

With regard to the London Plan, Policy 3.5 states that developments should be of the
highest quality internally, externally and in relation to their context and to the wider
environment, taking account of strategic policies in the plan to protect and enhance
london's residential environemnt and attractiveness as a place to live. Boroughs may in
their LDF's introduce a presumption against development on back gardens where this can
be locally justified.

The London Plan comments in Paragraph 3.34 comments that "Directly and indirectly
back gardens play important roles in addressing many of these policy concerns, as well as
being a much cherished part of the London townscape contributing to communities' sense
of place and quality of life. Pressure for new housing means that they can be threatened
by inappropriate development and their loss can cause significant local concern. This Plan
therefore supports development plan-led presumptions against development on
backgardens where locally justified by a sound local evidence base..."

North Planning Committee - 28th August 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 61



7.02

7.03

7.04

7.05

7.07

7.08

It is considered that this proposal is clearly a backland development. The loss of the rear
gardens and the impact of two new buildings on an otherwise green space, adjacent to
the Green Belt and clearly visible from both public and private areas would be detrimental
to the character of the area.

With a strong policy justification now in place to refuse such inappropriate and piecemeal
development, the principle of this scale of residential development on this site is
unacceptable. However, this in principle objection has to be considered against other
planning policies and considerations as detailed below.

Density of the proposed development

The London Plan advises that Boroughs should ensure that development proposals
achieve the maximum intensity of use compatible with the local context, design principles
and public transport accessibility.

The proposed houses would result in a density of 15 units per hectare which is below the
guidance set out in the London Plan. However, notwithstanding the in principle objection
to the development the density of the proposed development is considered acceptable
and would not materially affect the established density in the area. The development
would, however, affect the character of the area.

Impact on archaeology/CAs/LBs or Areas of Special Character

The site is not within or adjacent a special character area.
Airport safeguarding

There are no airport safeguarding issues raised by this application.
Impact on the green belt

The site is not situated within Green Belt land although it is adjacent to it. However, given
the existing built environment and its relationship with the boundary, it is considered on
balance that there would be no adverse impact on the openness of the Green Belt. Where
seen from within the adjoining Green Belt the buildings would be seen as a continuation of
the Knoll Crescent properties. No Green Belt issues are therefore raised by this
application.

Impact on the character & appearance of the area

As detailed elsewhere in this report, the proposed development would impact on the
character and appearance of the area, resulting in the loss of an area of open space that
contributes to the character of the area and the amenities of existing residents that
surround the site.

This is particularly apparent from the end of Knoll Crescent, where the access to the
proposed site would be created and the houses constructed. This area currently forms an
essential break in the built form and an area of amenity that contributes to the street
scene. It also provides a useful turning area for vehicles, emphasising its openness. The
loss of this area to further buildings would harm this openness and amenity value.
Similarly the open aspect from the rear of the properties in The Drive, including the donor
property and No.41, would be lost.

The proposal would therefore fail to retain the open and green nature that is characteristic
of the area, and would be contrary to Policies BE13 and BE19 of the adopted Hillingdon
Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012) and Policy 3.5 of the
London Plan (July 2011).

Impact on neighbours

North Planning Committee - 28th August 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 62



The Council's Supplementary Planning Document HDAS: Residential Layouts requires
buildings of two or more storeys to maintain at least a 15m separation distance from
adjoining properties to avoid appearing overdominant and a 21m distance maintained
between facing habitable room windows and private amenity space, considered to be a
3m deep 'patio’ area adjoining the rear elevation of a property to safeguard privacy.

Whilst the proposed development would result in a change in character of the area, it is
considered that there would be no material impact on the amenities of adjoining
occupiers. Appropriate conditions could be imposed on any planning permission granted
to ensure that there would be no adverse impact on the amenities of the adjoining
occupiers, such as, for example through the provision of obscure glazing, or preventing
the installation of roof extensions and dormers, or outbuildings.

The new buildings would be sited at a lower level than the properties in The Drive, similar
to the existing relationship with other properties in The Drive and Knoll Crescent. The
relationship between the new buildings with the properties adjacent in Knoll Crescent
would also be satisfactory.

There would thus be no significant adverse impact in terms of loss of light or privacy, or
overlooking or any overbearing impact or visual intrusion that would justify a refusal of
planning permission.

In this respect the proposal is therefore considered to comply with Policies BE20, BE21
and BE24 of the adopted Hilingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies
(November 2012)

7.09 Living conditions for future occupiers

London Plan Policy 3.5 states that LDF's should incorporate minimum internal space
standards that generally conform with Table 3.3 - Minimum space standards for new
development. The recommended minimum space standard for new 2 storey 4 bedroom 5
person houses is 100 sq m based on gross internal area. The Council's Supplementary
Planning Document HDAS: Residential Layouts, paragraph 4.15 states that a minimum
92m? of internal floor space should be provided for a 2 storey 4 bed house house in order
to achieve satisfactory living conditions.

The proposal would meet these requirements with a floor area of approximately 142m2 for
each house. Furthermore, all habitable room windows would have a satisfactory outlook
and receive adequate daylight.

The SPD also advises that amenity space should be provided for houses at a minimum
level of 100m? per unit and that space needs to be usable, attractively laid out and
conveniently located. The side/rear amenity space meets these requirements and
therefore would provide a satisfactory standard of residential amenity for future
householders. The level of amenity space retained for the use of no.43 The Drive would
also remain acceptable in accordance with the Council's guidance. As such, the scheme
complies with Policies BE23 and BE24 of the adopted Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two -
Saved UDP Policies (November 2012).
7.10 Traffic impact, car/cycle parking, pedestrian safety

Two parking spaces are provided for each dwelling. This is considered satisfactory and in
accordance with the Council's parking standards.

The Council's Highways Engineer raises no objection to the proposed parking and access
arrangements (other than in respect of waste collection facilities). As such, it is considered

North Planning Committee - 28th August 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 63



7.1

712

713

7.14

7.15

7.16

717

7.18

7.19

7.20

that the scheme complies with Policies AM7 and AM14 of the adopted Hillingdon Local
Plan: Part Two -Saved UDP Policies (November 2012).
Urban design, access and security

Notwithstanding the in principle objection to the development and the impact of the
development on the verdant character of the area the design of the houses and their
relationship with each other, in their own right, are considered acceptable.

With regard to access and security, had the application not been recommended for
refusal, conditions would have been sufficient to ensure compliance with the requirements
of Policy BE18 of the adopted Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two -Saved UDP Policies
(November 2012) and the Council's Supplementary Planning Guidance on Community
Safety by Design.

Disabled access

If the application had not been recommended for refusal, a suitably worded planning
condition could have been added in respect of each dwelling to achieve Lifetime Homes
Standard.

Provision of affordable & special needs housing

Not applicale to this application.
Trees, Landscaping and Ecology

No objections are raised subject to appropriate conditions.
Sustainable waste management

The houses would have individual bin stores and the future occupiers could bring their
rubbish to the end of the proposed access drive on refuse collection day accordingly the
waste management provision is not considered to raise a concern.

Renewable energy / Sustainability

If the proposal had not been recommended for refusal, ensuring compliance with
renewable energy requirements and sustainability standards could have been dealt with
by way of a condition. The Energy Statement submitted with the application indicates that
the proposed houses would provide at least 20% of the developments energy demand
from on-site renewable energy sources. This would be primarily through the use of an air
sourced heat pump in this instance.

In this respect the proposal is therefore considered to comply with the policies of the
adopted Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two -Saved UDP Policies (November 2012) and
Policy 5.3 of the London Plan (2011).

Flooding or Drainage Issues

Policy OE8 seeks to ensure that new development incorporates appropriate measures to
mitigate against any potential increase in the risk of flooding. The site is not within a flood
zone. A sustainable urban drainage condition could have been attached had the
application not been recommended for refusal.

Noise or Air Quality Issues

It is considered that the proposal would not give rise to any additional noise or air quality
issues of concern.
Comments on Public Consultations

These are addressed in the main body of the report.
Planning Obligations

Policy R17 of the adopted adopted Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two -Saved UDP Policies
(November 2012) is concerned with securing planning obligations where appropriate to
offset the additional demands made by new development upon recreational open space,
facilities to support arts, cultural and entertainment activities, and other community, social

North Planning Committee - 28th August 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 64



and education facilities in conjunction with other development proposals. This is supported
by more specific supplementary planning guidance.

It is considered that the scale and nature of development proposed would generate a
need for additional school facilities and Education Services and this scheme would need
to make a contribution to mitigate the impact of the development; to be calculated in
accordance with the Council's Planning Obligatons SPD.

As the application is being recommended for refusal, no detailed negotiations have been
entered into with the prospective developer in respect of this contribution. Although, the
applicant has indicated a willingness to provide such a contribution by planning condition
only as no Unilateral Undertaking has been completed to ensure the application would
comply with Policy R17 of the adopted Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP
Policies (November 2012) In the absence of such an undertaking and the unsuitableness
of a planning condition as a mechanism to achieve this. The application is also therefore
recommended for refusal for this reason.

Had the application been recommended for approval it would have also been liable to pay
approximately £9,860.58 towards the Mayoral Community Infrastructure Levy.
7.21 Expediency of enforcement action

There are no enforcement issues raised by this application.
7.22 Other Issues

The other relevant planning consideration raised by this application are the likely

impact of the proposal upon the development potential of adjoining rear garden land and
the uncertainty of how the remainder of the application site is to be utilised, leading to a
piecemeal form of development.

Although the proposal would restrict access to a possible larger site, given that the
proposal involving the loss of garden land is considered inappropriate, development upon
a larger area of garden land would also not be encouraged. As such, it is considered that
the scheme would not be contrary to Policy BE14 of the adopted Hillingdon Local Plan:
Part Two -Saved UDP Policies (November 2012).

Turning to the remaining land, given the lack of any certainty as to its function within the
context of the overall application site, this leads to a poor, piecemeal and incongruous
form of development and would result in further detriment to the character of the area.

8. Observations of the Borough Solicitor

When making their decision, Members must have regard to all relevant planning
legislation, regulations, guidance, circulars and Council policies. This will enable them to
make an informed decision in respect of an application.

In addition Members should note that the Human Rights Act 1998 (HRA 1998) makes it
unlawful for the Council to act incompatibly with Convention rights. Decisions by the
Committee must take account of the HRA 1998. Therefore, Members need to be aware
of the fact that the HRA 1998 makes the European Convention on Human Rights (the
Convention) directly applicable to the actions of public bodies in England and Wales. The
specific parts of the Convention relevant to planning matters are Article 6 (right to a fair
hearing); Article 8 (right to respect for private and family life); Article 1 of the First Protocol
(protection of property) and Article 14 (prohibition of discrimination).

North Planning Committee - 28th August 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 65



Article 6 deals with procedural fairness. If normal committee procedures are followed, it is
unlikely that this article will be breached.

Article 1 of the First Protocol and Article 8 are not absolute rights and infringements of
these rights protected under these are allowed in certain defined circumstances, for
example where required by law. However any infringement must be proportionate, which
means it must achieve a fair balance between the public interest and the private interest
infringed and must not go beyond what is needed to achieve its objective.

Article 14 states that the rights under the Convention shall be secured without
discrimination on grounds of 'sex, race, colour, language, religion, political or other
opinion, national or social origin, association with a national minority, property, birth or
other status'.

9. Observations of the Director of Finance
Not applicable to this application.

10. CONCLUSION

The proposal would involve the loss of garden land and landscaping which contribute to
the character and appearance of the surrounding area. The matter regarding loss of trees,
raised in respect of the previous application is not an issue within the current proposal.

Although, the applicant has indicated a willingness to provide contributions by planning
condition only, this is not considered the appropriate mechanism and as no Unilateral
Undertaking has been completed no contributions can be assured, contrary to Policy
R.17.

There is now a greater policy emphasis against back garden development such as this. It
is considered that the development would be contrary to these policies.

Fir these reasons it is recommended for refusal.

11. Reference Documents

The adopted Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 1, Pt BE1 and Part Two -Saved UDP Policies
(November 2012).

Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Hillingdon Design and Accessibity Statement:
Residential Layouts.

Hillingdon Design and Accessibity Statement: Acessible Hillingdon.

Hillingdon Planning Obligations Supplementary Planning Document July( 2008) and
updated chapter 4 Education (August 2010)

Contact Officer: Mark Baker Telephone No: 01895 250230

North Planning Committee - 28th August 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 66



Notes

Site boundary

For identification purposes only.

This copy has been made by or with
the authority of the Head of Committee
Services pursuant to section 47 of the
Copyright, Designs and Patents

Act 1988 (the Act).

Unless the Act provides a relevant
exception to copyright.

© Crown copyright and database
rights 2013 Ordnance Survey
100019283

Site Address

Land rear of
41 and 43 The Drive
Northwood

LONDON BOROUGH
OF HILLINGDON

Residents Services

Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1UW
Telephone No.: Uxbridge 250111

Planning Application Ref: Scale
68458/APP/2013/1405 1:1,250
Planning Committee Date

North Page 67

July
2013

TILLIN

LONDON




This page is intentionally left blank

Page 68



Agenda ltem 9

Report of the Head of Planning, Sport and Green Spaces

Address GARAGES LAND ADJACENT TO 27 LEES AVENUE NORTHWOOD

Development: 2 x two storey, 4-bedroom, semi-detached dwellings with associated parking
and amenity space and enlargement of vehicular crossover to front, involving
demolition of existing garages

LBH Ref Nos: 69195/APP/2013/1310

Drawing Nos: 13005/003/C
133005/013/A
13005/002/A
Design and Access Statement
13005/001/A
13005/004/B
13005/005/B
13005/006/B
13005/009/A
13005/012
CC/2013/1755/TS01
2013/1755/001/A
13005/007
13005/008
13005/010
13005/011

Date Plans Received:  21/05/2013 Date(s) of Amendment(s): 21/05/2013
Date Application Valid: 05/06/2013 05/06/2013

1. SUMMARY

Planning permission is sought for the erection of 2 No. two storey 4 bedroom dwellings
with associated parking and amenity space. The proposed development is considered to
be acceptable with regards to its impact on visual and neighbouring amenity. It would
provide adequate amount of internal floorspace and is capable of fulfiling the
requirements of the Lifetime Homes. Suitable parking arrangements would be provided.
The proposed scheme is therefore recommended for approval, subject to a legal
agreement for the education contribution.

2. RECOMMENDATION

2.1 That delegated powers be given to the Head of Planning, Culture and Green
Spaces to grant planning permission, subject to the following:

i) That the Council enters into an agreement with the applicant under Section 106
of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 (as amended) and/or Section 278 of
the Highways Act 1980 (as amended) and/ or other appropriate legislation to
secure:

a) A contribution of £25,593 towards capacity enhancements in local
educational establishments made necessary by the development;

2.2 That in respect of the application for planning permission, the applicant meets

North Planning Committee - 28th August 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 69



the Council's reasonable costs in preparation of the Section 106 Agreement and
any abortive work as a result of the agreement not being completed.

2.3 That officers be authorised to negotiate and agree the detailed terms of the
proposed agreement.

2.4 That if any of the heads of terms set out above have not been agreed and the
S$106 legal agreement has not been finalised within 6 months of the date of this
report, or any other period deemed appropriate by the Head of Planning, Culture
and Green Spaces then delegated authority be granted to the Head of Planning,
Culture and Green Spaces to refuse the application for the following reason:

'The development has failed to secure obligations relating to capacity
enhancements in local educational establishments made necessary by the
development. Accordingly, the proposal is contrary to policies R17 of the
Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012), the
Council's Planning Obligations SPD.

2.5 That subject to the above, the application be deferred for determination by the
Head of Planning, Culture and Green Spaces under delegated powers, subject to
the completion of the legal agreement under Section 106 of the Town and Country
Planning Act 1990 and other appropriate powers with the applicant.

2.6 That if the application is approved, the following conditions be imposed:

1 RES3 Time Limit

The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of three years
from the date of this permission.

REASON
To comply with Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990

2 RES4 Accordance with Approved Plans

The development hereby permitted shall not be carried out except in complete
accordance with the details shown on the submitted plans, numbers 13005/001/A,
13005/002/A, 13005/003/C, 13005/004/B, 13005/005/B, 13005/006/B, 13005/007,
13005/008, 13005/009/A, 13005/010, 13005/011, 13005/012, 13005/013/A,
2013/1755/001/A & CC/2013/1755/TS01 and shall thereafter be retained/maintained for
as long as the development remains in existence.

REASON
To ensure the development complies with the provisions of the Hillingdon Local Plan:
Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012) and the London Plan (July 2011).

3 RES7 Materials (Submission)

No development shall take place until details of all materials and external surfaces, ,
including details of balconies have been submitted to and approved in writing by the
Local Planning Authority. Thereafter the development shall be constructed in accordance
with the approved details and be retained as such.

Details should include information relating to make, product/type, colour and
photographs/images.

North Planning Committee - 28th August 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 70



REASON
To ensure that the development presents a satisfactory appearance in accordance with
Policy BE13 Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012)

4 RES12 No additional windows or doors

Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning (General Permitted
Development) Order 1995 (or any order revoking and re-enacting that Order with or
without modification), no additional windows, doors or other openings shall be
constructed in the walls or roof slopes of the development hereby approved facing 27
Lees Avenue.

REASON
To prevent overlooking to adjoining properties in accordance with policy BE24 Hillingdon
Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012)

5 RES14 Outbuildings, extensions and roof alterations

Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning (General Permitted
Development) Order 1995 (or any order revoking and re-enacting that Order with or
without modification); no garage(s), shed(s) or other outbuilding(s), nor extension or roof
alteration to any dwellinghouse(s) shall be erected without the grant of further specific
permission from the Local Planning Authority.

REASON

To protect the character and appearance of the area and amenity of residential occupiers
in accordance with policies BE13, BE21, BE23 and BE24 Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two
Saved UDP Policies (November 2012)

6 RES16 Code for Sustainable Homes

The dwelling(s) shall achieve Level 4 of the Code for Sustainable Homes. No
development shall commence until a signed design stage certificate confirming this level
has been received. The design stage certificate shall be retained and made available for
inspection by the Local Planning Authority on request.

The development must be completed in accordance with the principles of the design
stage certificate and the applicant shall ensure that completion stage certificate has been
attained prior to occupancy of each dwelling.

REASON
To ensure that the objectives of sustainable development identified in London Plan (July
2011) Policies 5.1 and 5.3.

7 RES9 Landscaping (car parking & refuse/cycle storage)

No development shall take place until a landscape scheme has been submitted to and
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The scheme shall include: -

1. Details of Soft Landscaping

1.a Planting plans (at not less than a scale of 1:100),

1.b Written specification of planting and cultivation works to be undertaken,

1.c Schedule of plants giving species, plant sizes, and proposed numbers/densities
where appropriate

North Planning Committee - 28th August 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 71



2. Details of Hard Landscaping

2.a Refuse Storage

2.b Cycle Storage

2.c Means of enclosure/boundary treatments
2.e Hard Surfacing Materials

2.f External Lighting

3. Schedule for Implementation

Thereafter the development shall be carried out and maintained in full accordance with
the approved details.

REASON

To ensure that the proposed development will preserve and enhance the visual

amenities of the locality and provide adequate facilities in compliance with policies BE13,
BE38 and AM14 Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012)
and Policies 5.11 (living walls and roofs) and 5.17 (refuse storage) of the London Plan
(July 2011)

8 RES8 Tree Protection

No site clearance or construction work shall take place until the details have been
submitted to, and approved in writing by, the Local Planning Authority with respect to:

1. A method statement outlining the sequence of development on the site including
demolition, building works and tree protection measures.

2. Detailed drawings showing the position and type of fencing to protect the entire root
areas/crown spread of trees, hedges and other vegetation to be retained shall be
submitted to the Local Planning Authority for approval. No site clearance works or
development shall be commenced until these drawings have been approved and the
fencing has been erected in accordance with the details approved. Unless otherwise
agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority such fencing should be a minimum
height of 1.5 metres.

Thereafter, the development shall be implemented in accordance with the approved
details. The fencing shall be retained in position until development is completed.

The area within the approved protective fencing shall remain undisturbed during the
course of the works and in particular in these areas:

2.a There shall be no changes in ground levels;

2.b No materials or plant shall be stored;

2.c No buildings or temporary buildings shall be erected or stationed.

2.d No materials or waste shall be burnt; and.

2.e No drain runs or other trenches shall be dug or otherwise created, without the prior
written consent of the Local Planning Authority.

REASON

To ensure that trees and other vegetation can and will be retained on site and not
damaged during construction work and to ensure that the development conforms with
policy BE38 Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012)

9 RES10 Tree to be retained

North Planning Committee - 28th August 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 72



Trees, hedges and shrubs shown to be retained on the approved plan shall not be
damaged, uprooted, felled, lopped or topped without the prior written consent of the
Local Planning Authority. If any retained tree, hedge or shrub is removed or severely
damaged during construction, or is found to be seriously diseased or dying another tree,
hedge or shrub shall be planted at the same place or, if planting in the same place would
leave the new tree, hedge or shrub susceptible to disease, then the planting should be in
a position to be first agreed in writing with the Local Planning Authority and shall be of a
size and species to be agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority and shall be
planted in the first planting season following the completion of the development or the
occupation of the buildings, whichever is the earlier. Where damage is less severe, a
schedule of remedial works necessary to ameliorate the effect of damage by tree
surgery, feeding or groundwork shall be agreed in writing with the Local Planning
Authority. New planting should comply with BS 3936 (1992) 'Nursery Stock, Part 1,
Specification for Trees and Shrubs'

Remedial work should be carried out to BS BS 3998:2010 'Tree work -
Recommendations’ and BS 4428 (1989) 'Code of Practice for General Landscape
Operations (Excluding Hard Surfaces)'. The agreed work shall be completed in the first
planting season following the completion of the development or the occupation of the
buildings, whichever is the earlier.

REASON

To ensure that the trees and other vegetation continue to make a valuable contribution to
the amenity of the area in accordance with policy BE38 Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two
Saved UDP Policies (November 2012) and to comply with Section 197 of the Town and
Country Planning Act 1990.

10 RES15 Sustainable Water Management (changed from SUDS)

No development approved by this permission shall be commenced until a scheme for the
provision of sustainable water management has been submitted to and approved in
writing by the Local Planning Authority. The scheme shall clearly demonstrate that
sustainable drainage systems (SUDS) have been incorporated into the designs of the
development in accordance with the hierarchy set out in accordance with Policy 5.15 of
the London Plan and will:

i. provide information about the design storm period and intensity, the method employed
to delay and control the surface water discharged from the site and the measures taken
to prevent pollution of the receiving groundwater and/or surface waters;

ii. include a timetable for its implementation; and

iii. provide a management and maintenance plan for the lifetime of the development
which shall include the arrangements for adoption by any public authority or statutory
undertaker and any other arrangements to secure the operation of the scheme
throughout its lifetime.

The scheme shall also demonstrate the use of methods to minimise the use of potable
water through water collection, reuse and recycling and will:

iv. provide details of water collection facilities to capture excess rainwater;

v. provide details of how rain and grey water will be recycled and reused in the
development.

Thereafter the development shall be implemented and retained/maintained in accordance
with these details for as long as the development remains in existence.

REASON

To ensure the development does not increase the risk of flooding in accordance with
Policy OES8 Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012) and
London Plan (July 2011) Policy 5.12.

North Planning Committee - 28th August 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 73



1 RES24 Secured by Design

The dwelling(s) shall achieve 'Secured by Design' accreditation awarded by the
Hillingdon Metropolitan Police Crime Prevention Design Adviser (CPDA) on behalf of the
Association of Chief Police Officers (ACPO). No dwelling shall be occupied until
accreditation has been achieved.

REASON

In pursuance of the Council's duty under section 17 of the Crime and Disorder Act 1998
to consider crime and disorder implications in excising its planning functions; to promote
the well being of the area in pursuance of the Council's powers under section 2 of the
Local Government Act 2000, to reflect the guidance contained in the Council's SPG on
Community Safety By Design and to ensure the development provides a safe and secure
environment in accordance with London Plan (July 2011) Policies 7.1 and 7.3.

12 RES5 General compliance with supporting documentation

The development hereby permitted shall not be occupied until the following facilities have
been completed in accordance with the specified supporting plans and/or documents:
External Amenity Space [13005/003/C]

Thereafter the development shall be retained/maintained in accordance with these details
for as long as the development remains in existence.

REASON
To ensure that the development complies with the objectives of Policies BE23 of the
Hillingdon Local Plan (November 2012).

13 RES6 Levels

No development shall take place until plans of the site showing the existing and proposed
ground levels and the proposed finished floor levels of all proposed buildings have been
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. Such levels shall be
shown in relation to a fixed and know datum point. Thereafter the development shall not
be carried out other than in accordance with the approved details.

REASON

To ensure that the development relates satisfactorily to adjoining properties in
accordance with policy BE13 Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies
(November 2012)

14 NONSC Non Standard Condition

The parking areas (including where appropriate, the marking out of parking spaces)
including the garages shown on the approved plans, shall be constructed, designated
and allocated for the sole use of parking of occupants or their visitors motor vehicles prior
to the occupation of the development and thereafter be permanently retained and used
for no other purpose.

REASON

To ensure that an appropriate level of car parking provision is provided on site in
accordance with Policy AM14 of the Hilingdon Local Plan Part 2 Saved Policies
(November 2007).

15 NONSC Non Standard Condition

The dwelling hereby permitted shall be built in accordance with 'Lifetime Homes'
Standards, as set out in the Council's Supplementary Planning Document 'Hillingdon

North Planning Committee - 28th August 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 74



Design and Accessibility Statement: Accessible Hillingdon'. No development shall take
place until plans and/or details to demonstrate compliance with the standards have been
submitted to an approved in writing by the Local

Planning Authority. The development shall thereafter be constructed in accordance with
the approved details.

REASON

To ensure the proposed development is accessible to all and comply with London Plan
Policy 3.8.

16 RES18 Lifetime Homes/Wheelchair Units

All residential units within the development hereby approved shall be built in accordance
with 'Lifetime Homes' Standards.

REASON
To ensure that sufficient housing stock is provided to meet the needs of disabled and
elderly people in accordance with London Plan (July 2011) Policies 3.1, 3.8 and 7.2

INFORMATIVES

1 147 Damage to Verge

The Council will recover from the applicant the cost of highway and footway repairs,
including damage to grass verges.

Care should be taken during the building works hereby approved to ensure no damage
occurs to the verge or footpaths during construction. Vehicles delivering materials to this
development shall not override or cause damage to the public footway. Any damage will
require to be made good to the satisfaction of the Council and at the applicant's expense.

For further information and advice contact - Highways Maintenance Operations, Central
Depot - Block K, Harlington Road Depot, 128 Harlington Road, Hillingdon, Middlesex,
UB3 3EU (Tel: 01895 277524).

2 152 Compulsory Informative (1)

The decision to grant planning permission has been taken having regard to all relevant
planning legislation, regulations, guidance, circulars and Council policies, including The
Human Rights Act (1998) (HRA 1998) which makes it unlawful for the Council to act
incompatibly with Convention rights, specifically Article 6 (right to a fair hearing); Article 8
(right to respect for private and family life); Article 1 of the First Protocol (protection of
property) and Article 14 (prohibition of discrimination).

3 153 Compulsory Informative (2)

The decision to grant planning permission has been taken having regard to the policies
and proposals in the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September
2007) as incorporated into the Hillingdon Local Plan (2012) set out below, including
Supplementary Planning Guidance, and to all relevant material considerations, including
the London Plan (July 2011) and national guidance.

AM7 Consideration of traffic generated by proposed developments.
AM14 New development and car parking standards.

BE13 New development must harmonise with the existing street scene.
BE18 Design considerations - pedestrian security and safety

BE15 Alterations and extensions to existing buildings

North Planning Committee - 28th August 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 75



BE19 New development must improve or complement the character of the

area.

BE20 Daylight and sunlight considerations.

BE21 Siting, bulk and proximity of new buildings/extensions.

BE22 Residential extensions/buildings of two or more storeys.

BE23 Requires the provision of adequate amenity space.

BE24 Requires new development to ensure adequate levels of privacy to
neighbours.

BE38 Retention of topographical and landscape features and provision of
new planting and landscaping in development proposals.

H4 Mix of housing units

H5 Dwellings suitable for large families

LPP 3.1 (2011) Ensuring equal life chances for all

LPP 3.4 (2011) Optimising housing potential

LPP 3.5 (2011) Quality and design of housing developments

LPP 3.8 (2011) Housing Choice

LPP 5.3 (2011) Sustainable design and construction

LPP 7.2 (2011) An inclusive environment

LPP 7.3 (2011) Designing out crime

LPP 6.13 (2011) Parking

LPP 7.4 (2011) Local character

LPP 7.6 (2011) Architecture

HDAS-LAY Residential Layouts, Hillingdon Design & Access Statement,
Supplementary Planning Document, adopted July 2006

4 159 Councils Local Plan : Part 1 - Strategic Policies

On this decision notice policies from the Councils Local Plan: Part 1 - Strategic Policies
appear first, then relevant saved policies (referred to as policies from the Hillingdon
Unitary Development Plan - Saved Policies September 2007), then London Plan Policies.
On the 8th November 2012 Hillingdon's Full Council agreed the adoption of the Councils
Local Plan: Part 1 - Strategic Policies. Appendix 5 of this explains which saved policies
from the old Unitary Development (which was subject to a direction from Secretary of
State in September 2007 agreeing that the policies were 'saved') still apply for
development control decisions.

5

You are advised that the development hereby approved represents chargeable
development under the Community Infrastructure Levy. The applicant will be liable to pay
the Community Infrastructure Levy to the sum of £6515.65 on commencement of this
development (please note this amount may change on final calculation). A separate
liability notice will be issued by the Local Planning Authority, however you are advised
that it is your responsibility to notify the Local Planning Authority of the anticipated
commencement date and any changes in liability through submission of the appropriate
forms.

3. CONSIDERATIONS

3.1 Site and Locality
The proposed site is located on the east side of Lees Avenue at the end of the road

North Planning Committee - 28th August 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 76



adjacent to the vehicle turning area. The site is currently occupied by a row of single
storey garages on the south side of the site and a row of unmarked parking spaces on the
north side. The site slopes slightly from east to west, resulting in a stepped ridgeline in the
row of garages.

The wider area is characterised by two storey terrace housing to the north on Lees
Avenue, constructed of part brick, part brown tile hang, with a shallow pitch tiled roof. The
site is bounded to the south by a 2m metal security fence with hardstanding beyond
leading to LA Fitness sports centre. To the east the site is bounded by mature trees and
vegetation with a detached property, No.15 Chestnut Avenue and its garden adjacent to
the site. To the west there is open land and mature vegetation and trees and a stream
with properties on Knowle Crescent further west.

The site is located within the Developed Area as identified in the Hillingdon Local Plan
Part 2 Saved Policies (November 2012).

3.2 Proposed Scheme

The proposed scheme comprises the demolition of the of the exisitng garages and an
enlargement of the vehicle crossover to the front and the erection of 2 No. two storey, 4-
bedroom, semi-detached dwellings with associated parking and amenity spaces. The pair
of semi detached houses provide an overall U shape with parking between the front
sections. The houses would have a hipped roof.

The properties would have a total width of approximately 19.26m, depth of approximately
10.41m and height of 5.48m to eaves and 7.89m to ridge level. The garden area
measures approximately 120sq. m for each property.

The buildings would be constructed from brick and render beneath a tile roof. There are
two parking spaces including one garage and two cycle spaces for each property.

3.3 Relevant Planning History
Comment on Relevant Planning History
There is no relevant planning history.

4. Planning Policies and Standards

UDP / LDF Designation and London Plan
The following UDP Policies are considered relevant to the application:-

Part 1 Policies:

PT1.BE1 (2012) Built Environment

PT1.H1 (2012) Housing Growth

Part 2 Policies:

AM7 Consideration of traffic generated by proposed developments.
AM14 New development and car parking standards.

BE13 New development must harmonise with the existing street scene.

North Planning Committee - 28th August 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 77



BE18 Design considerations - pedestrian security and safety

BE15 Alterations and extensions to existing buildings

BE19 New development must improve or complement the character of the area.

BE20 Daylight and sunlight considerations.

BE21 Siting, bulk and proximity of new buildings/extensions.

BE22 Residential extensions/buildings of two or more storeys.

BE23 Requires the provision of adequate amenity space.

BE24 Requires new development to ensure adequate levels of privacy to neighbours.

BE38 Retention of topographical and landscape features and provision of new planting
and landscaping in development proposals.

H4 Mix of housing units

H5 Dwellings suitable for large families

LPP 3.1 2011) Ensuring equal life chances for all

(
LPP 3.4 (2011) Optimising housing potential
LPP 3.5 (2011) Quality and design of housing developments
LPP 3.8 (2011) Housing Choice
LPP 5.3 (2011) Sustainable design and construction
LPP 7.2 (2011) An inclusive environment
LPP 7.3 (2011) Designing out crime
LPP 6.13 (2011) Parking
LPP 7.4 (2011) Local character
LPP 7.6 (2011) Architecture
HDAS-LAY  Residential Layouts, Hillingdon Design & Access Statement, Supplementary
Planning Document, adopted July 2006
5. Advertisement and Site Notice
5.1  Advertisement Expiry Date:- Not applicable

5.2  Site Notice Expiry Date:- Not applicable

6. Consultations
External Consultees

Letters were sent to local residents and the Residents Association on 7 June 2013 and the site
notice was posted on 11 June 2013. 7 representations were received, 6 objecting to the proposal
and 1 making a comment. The objections are summarised as follows:

- Parking issues; insufficient parking in the area will lead to increased parking on verge and
hammerhead

- Potential occupancy of the houses means proposed parking may be insufficient

- Increased population issues

- Need an alternative playing field as football played on land

- Stream needs proper fencing

- Trees are deciduous so only partially block development from Knowle Crescent.

North Planning Committee - 28th August 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 78



- Encroaches onto land outside applicants ownership

- Stability of land after ground levelling

- Steps at rear of garden may harm amenity of properties to the rear.
- No site notice

A number of the above issues are addressed in the planning assessment however with regard to
the site notice this was posted on the lamp post at the site. The use of land for football, need for a
higher fence to the stream are not considered to be material planning considerations relevant to
this particular application. Finally, the issue of land ownership was raised with the applicant's agent
and correct amended plans were submitted to address this matter.

Internal Consultees

The Council's Highways Officer written reply has not been received to date but it has been
indicated verbally that there is no objection to the proposed scheme. The garages are in private
ownership and rented out and therefore the loss could not justify a refusal and there is no planning
history to indicate that the garages formed the original parking spaces for the adjacent residential
dwellings. The vehicle crossover is larger than usually required but is considered acceptable, given
the lack of pedestrian footfall across the application site. The garages should be retained solely for
vehicle parking.

The Council's Access Officer has no objection to the proposed scheme.
7. MAIN PLANNING ISSUES
7.01 The principle of the development

The proposed site comprises hardstanding, parking spaces and garages and therefore
constitutes 'previously developed land' i.e. 'brownfield land'. There is a presumption in
favour of residential development on brownfield land subject to other material
considerations including design and character of the area criteria.

The area is an established residential area and therefore the principle of residential
development of the site is considered acceptable.
7.02 Density of the proposed development

Paragraph 4.1 of HDAS Residential Layouts specifies that in new developments numerical
densities are considered to be more appropriate to larger sites and will not be used in the
assessment of schemes of less than 10 units, such as this proposal. The key
consideration is therefore whether the development sits comfortably within its environment
rather than a consideration of the density of the proposal.

7.03 Impact on archaeology/CAs/LBs or Areas of Special Character

Not Applicable.
7.04 Airport safeguarding

Not Applicable.
7.05 Impact on the green belt

Not Applicable
7.07 Impact on the character & appearance of the area

Policy BE13 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November
2012) states that the layout and appearance of new development should "harmonise with
the existing street scene or other features of the area." The NPPF (2011) notes the
importance of achieving design which is appropriate to its context stating that 'Permission
should be refused for development of poor design that fails to take the opportunities
available for improving the character and quality of an area and the way it functions'.

Whilst the proposed dwellings are of a different design to the existing properties on Lees

North Planning Committee - 28th August 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 79



Avenue, being semi detached with hipped roof, they do respect the scale, bulk and mass
of the established properties. The height of the proposed dwellings is also comparable to
the established properties, therefore, maintaining the rhythm of the streetscene. With
regard to the third party comment in relation to impact to Knowle Crescent, it is considered
that the distance to these properties is sufficient to ensure the proposal is not harmful to
the outlook of the occupiers of these properties.

It is therefore considered that the proposal would complement the character of the
surrounding area. The external materials are also considered acceptable and respect the
character of the area. As such the proposal would comply with Policies BE13 and BE19 of
the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012) and Policy
BE1 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 1 - Strategic Policies.

7.08 Impact on neighbours

The application site is bounded by residential properties to the north on Lees Avenue, and
to the south is the curtilage of a LA Fitness sports centre. The Hillingdon Design and
Accessibility Statement (HDAS) SPD: Residential Layouts, deals with Sunlight and
Daylight, and suggests where a two or more storey building abuts a property or its
boundary, adequate distance should be maintained to overcome possible domination. The
SPD states that the distance provided will be dependent on the bulk and size of the
building but generally, 15m will be the minimum acceptable distance. The SPD further
states that as a guide, the distance between habitable room windows should not be less
than 21m. In order to both protect the existing outlook from and to ensure that there is
adequate daylight received to the habitable rooms, kitchens and gardens of adjacent
dwellings, a minimum distance of 15m is required, as stated in HDAS.

Furthermore, in order to protect privacy, the design of the dwelling should avoid creating
significant opportunities for direct overlooking from any upper floor windows into the
private garden, kitchen or any habitable room windows of the neighbouring properties.

The proposed dwellings would be more than 21 metres from the rear elevations of
dwellings to the east on Chestnut Avenue and, therefore, would have no significant
detrimental impact on the residential amenities of occupiers of these properties. The
proposed development would also have no significant detrimental impact on the
residential amenities of occupiers of the dwellings on Lees Avenue, as the front and rear
walls of the proposed dwelling would not project beyond the front and rear walls of the
adjacent dwelling, except for the small section in the middle of the proposed dwellings at
ground floor level which is part of the garage space. The proposal would therefore
maintain the current outlook, levels of privacy and levels of daylight received by the
occupiers of neighbouring dwellings. It is therefore considered that the proposal would
comply with Policies BE20, BE21 and BE24 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two -
Saved UDP Policies (November 2012) and the advice in sections 4.9 to 4.12 of the HDAS
Residential Layouts
7.09 Living conditions for future occupiers

The Council's HDAS SPD Residential Layouts states that a 2 storey, 4 bedroom house
should have a minimum floor area of 92 sq.m. London Plan Policy 3.5 requires dwellings
with 4 bedrooms and 5 person occupancy to have a minimum internal floorspace of 100
sq.m. The proposal would have a floor area of approximately 150sg.m for each dwelling,
which is in accordance with the Council's and the London requirements. As such
considered acceptable, resulting in adequate living conditions for future occupiers.

The minimum requirement for private amenity space, as set out in the HDAS SPD, for a 4
bedroom house is 100sq.m. The proposed individual private amenity space provision for

North Planning Committee - 28th August 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 80



710

7.1

712

713

714

the proposed unit would be around 120 sg.m. As such, the proposal would provide an
acceptable standard of residential amenity for its future occupiers in accordance with
Policy BE23 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November
2012) and paragraph 4.15 of the Hillingdon Design & Accessibility Statement: Residential
Layouts.

It is considered that all the proposed habitable rooms would have an adequate outlook
and source of natural light, and therefore comply with HDAS Residential Layouts Section
4.9 and Policy 5.3 of the London Plan (2011).

Traffic impact, car/cycle parking, pedestrian safety

The applicants have submitted details showing that the turning area is sufficient for refuse
and other vehicles and no objection has been raised by the Council's Highway Officer to
these details. There have been third party concerns raised in relation to the loss of
parking, however as identified previously the Highways Officer considers that as these
garages are privately owned and rented out there is no justifiable objection to their loss.
Therefore, it is considered that the proposed minimal material impact on traffic flows on
the adjoining road system is acceptable and in compliance with Policy AM2 & AM7 of the
Hillingdon Local Plan Part 2 Saved Policies (November 2012).

The vehicle crossover is larger than usually required but is considered acceptable, given
the end of cul-de-sac location and the lack of pedestrian footfall across the application
site. Therefore, the development would comply with Policy AM9 of the Hillingdon Local
Plan Part 2 Saved Policies (November 2012).

The proposed development has provided two car parking spaces and two cycles spaces
in line with the Council's HDAS: Residential Layouts. The proposal is therefore, subject to
a condition to retain the use of the garages for parking of vehicles, would comply with
policy AM14 of the Hillingdon Local Plan Part 2 Saved Policies (November 2012).

Urban design, access and security

These issues have been considered in previous sections of this report.
Disabled access

The London Plan Policy 3.8 requires all new housing to be built to 'Lifetime Homes'
standards. The Council's HDAS 'Accessible Hillingdon' also requires all new housing to be
built to 'Lifetime Homes' standards. No Objection has been raised by the Council's Access
Officer, however, it is considered appropriate that a suitable condition be imposed to
ensure these standards are met.

Provision of affordable & special needs housing

The proposal is below the threshold at which the Council requires provision of affordable
housing.
Trees, Landscaping and Ecology

There are no trees on the site but there a number of trees on the edge of the site at the
boundary with Chestnut Avenue. It is considered the development would not harm these
trees however, a suitable condition should be imposed to safeguard the trees and their
roots.

While landscape design details have been specified, the layout plans indicate that there is
sufficient space and opportunity to provide attractive and functional external amenity
space, this should include details for the protection of trees adjacent to the site as shown
on the proposed plans by the root protection area. The 25% landscaping requirement for
front gardens would be met. The proposal is considered acceptable in principle and
suitable landscaping conditions are recommended. The proposal would be in compliance

North Planning Committee - 28th August 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 81



7.15

7.16

717

7.18

719

7.20

7.21

7.22

with Policy BE38 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November
2012).
Sustainable waste management

Not Applicable.
Renewable energy / Sustainability

The application has not identified specific means of ensuring sustainability of the
development. However, it is felt that the imposition of a suitable condition to require the
scheme meets code level 4 of the Code for Sustainable Homes would address this matter.
Flooding or Drainage Issues

Not Applicable.
Noise or Air Quality Issues

Not Applicable.
Comments on Public Consultations

No further comments for consideration.
Planning Obligations

The proposed development equates to 7 habitable rooms per unit, 14 in total. In line with
policy R17 of the Hillingdon Local Plan Paret 2 Saved Policies (November 2012) an
education contribution of £25,593 is required.

The development would result in an increase in floorspace and thus would be CIL liable. A
total of £6515.65 would be sought towards CIL.
Expediency of enforcement action

Not Applicable.
Other Issues

The proposals do not show an indicative area for refuse storage, however, it is considered
that there is ample space within the rear curtilage to provide refuse and recycling facilities
on collection days. A condition is to be imposed requiring full details of secure and
covered refuse storage arrangements.

Observations of the Borough Solicitor

When making their decision, Members must have regard to all relevant planning
legislation, regulations, guidance, circulars and Council policies. This will enable them to
make an informed decision in respect of an application.

In addition Members should note that the Human Rights Act 1998 (HRA 1998) makes it
unlawful for the Council to act incompatibly with Convention rights. Decisions by the
Committee must take account of the HRA 1998. Therefore, Members need to be aware
of the fact that the HRA 1998 makes the European Convention on Human Rights (the
Convention) directly applicable to the actions of public bodies in England and Wales. The
specific parts of the Convention relevant to planning matters are Article 6 (right to a fair
hearing); Article 8 (right to respect for private and family life); Article 1 of the First Protocol
(protection of property) and Article 14 (prohibition of discrimination).

Article 6 deals with procedural fairness. If normal committee procedures are followed, it is
unlikely that this article will be breached.

Article 1 of the First Protocol and Article 8 are not absolute rights and infringements of
these rights protected under these are allowed in certain defined circumstances, for
example where required by law. However any infringement must be proportionate, which

North Planning Committee - 28th August 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 82



means it must achieve a fair balance between the public interest and the private interest
infringed and must not go beyond what is needed to achieve its objective.

Article 14 states that the rights under the Convention shall be secured without
discrimination on grounds of 'sex, race, colour, language, religion, political or other
opinion, national or social origin, association with a national minority, property, birth or
other status'.

9. Observations of the Director of Finance
Not Applicable.

10. CONCLUSION

The proposed dvelopment makes best use of previously developed land and would
provide an appropriate form of residential development. The proposal would not be
harmful to the charcater of the area, amenity of adjoining occupiers or interstest of
highways safety. The scheme is considered to comply with adopted planning policy in the
NPPF, London Plan 2011 and the Hillingdon Local Plan Part 1 2012 and Part Saved
Policies (November 2012). Accordingly the application is recommended for approval,
subject to the agreement of a legal agreement for the collection of the required education
sum.

11. Reference Documents

National Planning Policy Framework.

London Plan (July 2011).

Hillingdon Local Plan Part 1 2012.

Hillingdon Local Plan Part 2 Saved Policies (November 2012).
HDAS : Residential Layouts

Contact Officer: Mark Jones Telephone No: 01895 250230

North Planning Committee - 28th August 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 83



Pine Tree

Lodge

Trees ~. ~

b -

\
\
AN

Site boundary

For identification purposes only.

This copy has been made by or with
the authority of the Head of Committee
Services pursuant to section 47 of the
Copyright, Designs and Patents

Act 1988 (the Act).

Unless the Act provides a relevant
exception to copyright.

© Crown copyright and database
rights 2013 Ordnance Survey
100019283

Site Address

Garages adjoining
27 Lees Avenue

LONDON BOROUGH
OF HILLINGDON

Residents Services

Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1UW
Telephone No.: Uxbridge 250111

Northwood
Planning Application Ref: Scale
69195/APP/2013/1310 1:1,250
Planning Committee Date A ¢
ugus
North Page 84 2013

LONDON




Agenda ltem 10

Report of the Head of Planning, Sport and Green Spaces

Address LAND REAR OF 81-93 HILLIARD ROAD NORTHWOOD

Development: 2 x two storey, 3- bed detached dwellings with associated parking and
amenity space, involving demolition of existing material shed, office building
and material storage shelter.

LBH Ref Nos: 64786/APP/2013/1434

Drawing Nos: 5069/01
1158/P2/1A
1158/P2/2
1158/P2/3
1158/P2/4
1158/P2/5
1158/P2/6
1158/P2/7
1158/P2/8
Renewable Energy Assessment and Statement
Design and Access Statement
Photographs x 15

Date Plans Received:  31/05/2013 Date(s) of Amendment(s): 31/05/2013
Date Application Valid: 06/06/2013
1. SUMMARY

This scheme proposes to erect 2 x two storey, 3- bed detached dwellings with associated
parking and amenity space.

It is considered that the proposed development provides good quality accommodation,
whilst harmonising with the Old Northwood Area of Special Local Character and does not
unduly detract from the amenities of the surrounding residential occupiers.

2. RECOMMENDATION

2.1 That delegated powers be given to the Head of Planning, Culture and Green
Spaces to grant planning permission, subject to the following:

i) That the Council enters into an agreement with the applicant under Section 106
of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 (as amended) and/or Section 278 of
the Highways Act 1980 (as amended) and/ or other appropriate legislation to
secure:

a)A contribution towards capacity enhancements in local educational
establishments made necessary by the development;

2.2 That in respect of the application for planning permission, the applicant meets
the Council's reasonable costs in preparation of the Section 106 Agreement and
any abortive work as a result of the agreement not being completed.

2.3 That officers be authorised to negotiate and agree the detailed terms of the

North Planning Committee - 28th August 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 85



proposed agreement.

2.4 That if any of the heads of terms set out above have not been agreed and the
S$106 legal agreement has not been finalised within 6 months of the date of this
report, or any other period deemed appropriate by the Head of Planning, Culture
and Green Spaces then delegated authority be granted to the Head of Planning,
Culture and Green Spaces to refuse the application for the following reason:

'The development has failed to secure obligations relating to capacity
enhancements in local educational establishments made necessary by the
development. Accordingly, the proposal is contrary to policies R17 of the
Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012), the
Council's Planning Obligations SPD.’

2.5 That subject to the above, the application be deferred for determination by the
Head of Planning, Culture and Green Spaces under delegated powers, subject to
the completion of the legal agreement under Section 106 of the Town and Country
Planning Act 1990 and other appropriate powers with the applicant.

2.6 That if the application is approved, the following conditions be imposed:

1 RES3 Time Limit

The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of three years
from the date of this permission.

REASON
To comply with Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990

2 RES4 Accordance with Approved Plans

The development hereby permitted shall not be carried out except in complete
accordance with the details shown on the submitted plans, numbers 5069/01,
1158/P2/1A, 1158/P2/2, 1158/P2/3, 1158/P2/4, 1158/P2/5, 1158/P2/6, 1158/P2/7,
1158/P2/8, Renewable Energy Assessment and Statement, Design and Access
Statement & Photographs x 15 and shall thereafter be retained/maintained for as long as
the development remains in existence.

REASON
To ensure the development complies with the provisions of the Hillingdon Local Plan:
Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012) and the London Plan (July 2011).

3 RESS5 General compliance with supporting documentation

The development hereby permitted shall not be occupied until the following facilities have
been completed in accordance with the specified supporting plans and/or documents:
Amenity Spaces [1158/P2/1A]

Parking Spaces [1158/P2/1A]

Thereafter the development shall be retained/maintained in accordance with these details
for as long as the development remains in existence.

REASON
To ensure that the development complies with the objectives of Policies AM14 and BE23
of the Hillingdon Local Plan (November 2012).

North Planning Committee - 28th August 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 86



4 RES7 Materials (Submission)

No development shall take place until details of all materials and external surfaces have
been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. Thereafter the
development shall be constructed in accordance with the approved details and be
retained as such.

Details should include information relating to make, product/type, colour and
photographs/images.

REASON
To ensure that the development presents a satisfactory appearance in accordance with
Policy BE13 Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012)

5 RES9 Landscaping (car parking & refuse/cycle storage)

No development shall take place until a landscape scheme has been submitted to and
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The scheme shall include: -

1. Details of Soft Landscaping

1.a Planting plans (at not less than a scale of 1:100),

1.b Written specification of planting and cultivation works to be undertaken,

1.c Schedule of plants giving species, plant sizes, and proposed numbers/densities
where appropriate

2. Details of Hard Landscaping

2.a Refuse Storage

2.b Cycle Storage

2.c Means of enclosure/boundary treatments
2.d Hard Surfacing Materials

2.e External Lighting

3. Details of Landscape Maintenance

3.a Landscape Maintenance Schedule for a minimum period of 5 years.

3.b Proposals for the replacement of any tree, shrub, or area of surfing/seeding within
the landscaping scheme which dies or in the opinion of the Local Planning Authority
becomes seriously damaged or diseased.

4. Schedule for Implementation

Thereafter the development shall be carried out and maintained in full accordance with
the approved details.

REASON

To ensure that the proposed development will preserve and enhance the visual amenities
of the locality and provide adequate facilities in compliance with policies BE13, BE38
and AM14 Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012) and
Policies 5.11 (living walls and roofs) and 5.17 (refuse storage) of the London Plan (July
2011)

6 RES14 Outbuildings, extensions and roof alterations

Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning (General
Permitted Development) Order 1995 (or any order revoking and re-enacting that
Order with or without modification); no garage(s), shed(s) or other outbuilding(s), nor

North Planning Committee - 28th August 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 87



extension or roof alteration to any dwellinghouse(s) shall be erected without the grant of
further specific permission from the Local Planning Authority.

REASON

To protect the character and appearance of the area and amenity of residential occupiers
in accordance with policies BE13, BE21, BE23 and BE24 Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two
Saved UDP Policies (November 2012)

7 RES15 Sustainable Water Management (changed from SUDS)

No development approved by this permission shall be commenced until a scheme for the
provision of sustainable water management has been submitted to and approved in
writing by the Local Planning Authority. The scheme shall clearly demonstrate that
sustainable drainage systems (SUDS) have been incorporated into the designs of the
development in accordance with the hierarchy set out in accordance with Policy 5.15 of
the London Plan and will:

i. provide information about the design storm period and intensity, the method employed
to delay and control the surface water discharged from the site and the measures taken
to prevent pollution of the receiving groundwater and/or surface waters;

ii. include a timetable for its implementation; and

iii. provide a management and maintenance plan for the lifetime of the development
which shall include the arrangements for adoption by any public authority or statutory
undertaker and any other arrangements to secure the operation of the scheme
throughout its lifetime.

The scheme shall also demonstrate the use of methods to minimise the use of potable
water through water collection, reuse and recycling and will:

iv. provide details of water collection facilities to capture excess rainwater;

v. provide details of how rain and grey water will be recycled and reused in the
development.

Thereafter the development shall be implemented and retained/maintained in accordance
with these details for as long as the development remains in existence.

REASON

To ensure the development does not increase the risk of flooding in accordance with
Policy OE8 Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012) and
London Plan (July 2011) Policy 5.12.

8 RES16 Code for Sustainable Homes

The dwelling(s) shall achieve Level 4 of the Code for Sustainable Homes. No
development shall commence until a signed design stage certificate confirming this level
has been received. The design stage certificate shall be retained and made available for
inspection by the Local Planning Authority on request.

The development must be completed in accordance with the principles of the design
stage certificate and the applicant shall ensure that completion stage certificate has been
attained prior to occupancy of each dwelling.

REASON

To ensure that the objectives of sustainable development identified in London Plan (July
2011) Policies 5.1 and 5.3.

9 RES18 Lifetime Homes/Wheelchair Units

No development shall take place until a scheme showing all residential units within the

North Planning Committee - 28th August 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 88



development being built in accordance with 'Lifetime Homes' Standards, has been
submitted to an approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

Thereafter, the scheme shall be completed and maintained in strict accordance with the
approved plans for the lifetime of the development.

REASON
To ensure that sufficient housing stock is provided to meet the needs of disabled and
elderly people in accordance with London Plan (July 2011) Policies 3.1, 3.8 and 7.2

10 RES22 Parking Allocation

No unit hereby approved shall be occupied until a parking allocation scheme has been
submitted to, and approved in writing by, the Local Planning Authority. Thereafter the
parking shall remain allocated for the use of the units in accordance with the approved
scheme and remain under this allocation for the life of the development.

REASON

To ensure that an appropriate level of car parking provision is provided on site in
accordance with Policy AM14 Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies
(November 2012) and Chapter 6 of the London Plan . (July 2011).

11 RES24 Secured by Design

The dwelling(s) shall achieve 'Secured by Design' accreditation awarded by the
Hillingdon Metropolitan Police Crime Prevention Design Adviser (CPDA) on behalf of the
Association of Chief Police Officers (ACPO). No dwelling shall be occupied until
accreditation has been achieved.

REASON

In pursuance of the Council's duty under section 17 of the Crime and Disorder Act 1998
to consider crime and disorder implications in excising its planning functions; to promote
the well being of the area in pursuance of the Council's powers under section 2 of the
Local Government Act 2000, to reflect the guidance contained in the Council's SPG on
Community Safety By Design and to ensure the development provides a safe and secure
environment in accordance with London Plan (July 2011) Policies 7.1 and 7.3.

12 RES26 Contaminated Land

(i) The development hereby permitted shall not commence until a scheme to deal with
contamination has been submitted in accordance with the Supplementary Planning
Guidance on Land Contamination and approved by the Local Planning Authority (LPA).
The scheme shall include all of the following measures unless the LPA dispenses with
any such requirement specifically and in writing:

(a) A desk-top study carried out by a competent person to characterise the site and
provide information on the history of the site/surrounding area and to identify and
evaluate all potential sources of contamination and impacts on land and water and all
other identified receptors relevant to the site;

(b) A site investigation, including where relevant soil, soil gas, surface and groundwater
sampling, together with the results of analysis and risk assessment shall be carried out
by a suitably qualified and accredited consultant/contractor. The report should also
clearly identify all risks, limitations and recommendations for remedial measures to make
the site suitable for the proposed use.

(c) A written method statement providing details of the remediation scheme and how the
completion of the remedial works will be verified shall be agreed in writing with the LPA
prior to commencement.

North Planning Committee - 28th August 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 89



(ii) If during development or works contamination not addressed in the submitted
remediation scheme is identified, an addendum to the remediation scheme must be
agreed with the LPA prior to implementation; and

(iii) Al works which form part of the remediation scheme shall be completed and a
verification report submitted to the Council's Environmental Protection Unit before any
part of the development is occupied or brought into use unless the LPA dispenses with
any such requirement specifically and in writing.

REASON: To ensure that risks from land contamination to the future users of the land
and neighbouring land are minimised, together with those to controlled waters, property
and ecological systems and the development can be carried out safely without
unacceptable risks to workers, neighbours and other offsite receptors in accordance with
policy OE11 Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012)

13 RES6 Levels

No development shall take place until plans of the site showing the existing and proposed
ground levels and the proposed finished floor levels of all proposed buildings have been
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. Such levels shall be
shown in relation to a fixed and know datum point. Thereafter the development shall not
be carried out other than in accordance with the approved details.

REASON

To ensure that the development relates satisfactorily to adjoining properties in
accordance with policy BE13 Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies
(November 2012).

14 NONSC Non Standard Condition

Notwithstanding the plans hereby approved, each of the dwellings shall be fitted with an
external electrical socket or electric vehicle charging point prior to its occupation.

REASON

To ensure that the development provides facilities for the charging of electric vehicles in
accordance with Policies 5.8 (Innovative energy Technologies) and 6.13 (Parking) of the
London Plan (July 2011).

INFORMATIVES

1 152 Compulsory Informative (1)

The decision to GRANT planning permission has been taken having regard to all relevant
planning legislation, regulations, guidance, circulars and Council policies, including The
Human Rights Act (1998) (HRA 1998) which makes it unlawful for the Council to act
incompatibly with Convention rights, specifically Article 6 (right to a fair hearing); Article 8
(right to respect for private and family life); Article 1 of the First Protocol (protection of
property) and Article 14 (prohibition of discrimination).

2 153 Compulsory Informative (2)

The decision to GRANT planning permission has been taken having regard to the
policies and proposals in the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies
(September 2007) as incorporated into the Hillingdon Local Plan (2012) set out below,
including Supplementary Planning Guidance, and to all relevant material considerations,
including the London Plan (July 2011) and national guidance.

North Planning Committee - 28th August 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 90



BES New development within areas of special local character

BE13 New development must harmonise with the existing street scene.

BE15 Alterations and extensions to existing buildings

BE19 New development must improve or complement the character of the
area.

BE20 Daylight and sunlight considerations.

BE21 Siting, bulk and proximity of new buildings/extensions.

BE22 Residential extensions/buildings of two or more storeys.

BE23 Requires the provision of adequate amenity space.

BE24 Requires new development to ensure adequate levels of privacy to
neighbours.

BE38 Retention of topographical and landscape features and provision of
new planting and landscaping in development proposals.

H4 Mix of housing units

AM14 New development and car parking standards.

AM7 Consideration of traffic generated by proposed developments.

HDAS-LAY Residential Layouts, Hillingdon Design & Access Statement,
Supplementary Planning Document, adopted July 2006

LPP 3.4 (2011) Optimising housing potential

LPP 3.5 (2011) Quality and design of housing developments

LPP 5.13 (2011) Sustainable drainage

LPP 5.3 (2011) Sustainable design and construction

LPP 8.2 (2011) Planning obligations

LPP 8.3 (2011) Community infrastructure levy

3 159 Councils Local Plan : Part 1 - Strategic Policies

On this decision notice policies from the Councils Local Plan: Part 1 - Strategic Policies
appear first, then relevant saved policies (referred to as policies from the Hillingdon
Unitary Development Plan - Saved Policies September 2007), then London Plan Policies.
On the 8th November 2012 Hillingdon's Full Council agreed the adoption of the Councils
Local Plan: Part 1 - Strategic Policies. Appendix 5 of this explains which saved policies
from the old Unitary Development (which was subject to a direction from Secretary of
State in September 2007 agreeing that the policies were 'saved') still apply for
development control decisions.

4 14 Neighbourly Consideration - include on all residential exts

You have been granted planning permission to build a residential extension. When
undertaking demolition and/or building work, please be considerate to your neighbours
and do not undertake work in the early morning or late at night or at any time on Sundays
or Bank Holidays. Furthermore, please ensure that all vehicles associated with the
construction of the development hereby approved are properly washed and cleaned to
prevent the passage of mud and dirt onto the adjoining highway. You are advised that
the Council does have formal powers to control noise and nuisance under The Control of
Pollution Act 1974, the Clean Air Acts and other relevant legislation. For further
information and advice, please contact - Environmental Protection Unit, 4W/04, Civic
Centre, High Street, Uxbridge, UB8 1UW (Tel. 01895 250190).

5 147 Damage to Verge

The Council will recover from the applicant the cost of highway and footway repairs,
including damage to grass verges.

North Planning Committee - 28th August 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 91



Care should be taken during the building works hereby approved to ensure no damage
occurs to the verge or footpaths during construction. Vehicles delivering materials to this
development shall not override or cause damage to the public footway. Any damage will
require to be made good to the satisfaction of the Council and at the applicant's expense.

For further information and advice contact - Highways Maintenance Operations, Central
Depot - Block K, Harlington Road Depot, 128 Harlington Road, Hillingdon, Middlesex,
UB3 3EU (Tel: 01895 277524).

6 115 Control of Environmental Nuisance from Construction Work

Nuisance from demolition and construction works is subject to control under The Control
of Pollution Act 1974, the Clean Air Acts and other related legislation. In particular, you
should ensure that the following are complied with:-

A. Demolition and construction works which are audible at the site boundary shall only be
carried out between the hours of 08.00 and 18.00 hours Monday to Friday and between
the hours of 08.00 hours and 13.00 hours on Saturday. No works shall be carried out on
Sundays, Bank or Public Holidays.

B. All noise generated during such works shall be controlled in compliance with British
Standard Code of Practice BS 5228:2009.

C. Dust emissions shall be controlled in compliance with the Mayor of London's Best
Practice Guidance' The Control of dust and emissions from construction and demolition.

D. No bonfires that create dark smoke or nuisance to local residents.

You are advised to consult the Councilis Environmental Protection Unit
(www.hillingdon.gov.uk/noise Tel. 01895 250155) or to seek prior approval under Section
61 of the Control of Pollution Act if you anticipate any difficulty in carrying out
construction other than within the normal working hours set out in (A) above, and by
means that would minimise disturbance to adjoining premises.

7 121 Street Naming and Numbering

All proposed new street names must be notified to and approved by the Council. Building
names and numbers, and proposed changes of street names must also be notified to the
Council. For further information and advice, contact - The Street Naming and Numbering
Officer, Planning & Community Services, 3 North Civic Centre, High Street, Uxbridge,
UB8 1UW (Tel. 01895 250557).

3. CONSIDERATIONS

3.1 Site and Locality

The application site is a 0.0653 hectares (653m?) rectangular shaped site located on the
north-western side of Hilliard Road at the rear of Nos.81 to 93. The site abuts the rear
boundaries (gardens) of Nos. 81 to 90 Hilliard Road to the east, rear boundaries of Nos.
58 to 68 High Road (predominantly commercial with 1st floor residential accommodation),
the rear/side boundary of 79 Hilliard Road to the southwest and the rear/side boundary of
Woodlodge Montessori School to the north.

North Planning Committee - 28th August 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 92



The site is currently used as a builder's yard. There are various buildings on the site,
predominantly single-storey, comprising office, workshop garage and covered storage.
The site is infrequently used with some of its structures in a poor state of repair. Access to
the site is via a 2.5m gap driveway between Nos.83 and 85.

Hilliard Road is characterised by a mixture of semi-detached and terraced houses. Nos.81
and 83 are semi-detached houses while Nos.85 to 93 are terraced houses. The road is in
the Old Northwood Area of Special Local Character and lies within the 'developed area' as
identified in the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012).

3.2 Proposed Scheme

The proposed development comprises 2 x two storey, 3- bed detached dwellings with
associated parking and amenity space, involving demolition of existing material shed,
office building and material storage shelter.

Plot 1 and 2 would both comprise a two-storey detached property with a traditional barn
hipped roof profile, measuring 7.178m and 6.650m high respectively, 9m wide and 7.2m
deep. The front elevations of the properties would include a front dormer roof addition, a
ground to ceiling height window, chimney features and a porch. On the rear elevation
three dormer roof additions are proposed and bi-fold doors at ground floor level. The
property would be finished in white render and soft stock brickwork.

The total internal floor area would be 108 square metres. The amenity space would be
between 98 and 100 square metres.

Four parking spaces are provided on a communal harstanding area in front of the
properties.

As noted in the planning history section in more detail, the main issues in relation to the
previous submission(s) related to the following:

1. The proposal by reason of its siting, overall layout, size and site coverage, would result
in a development that fails to harmonise with the character of the area

2. Poor levels of outlook from ground floor windows of Plot 1.

3. Inadequate internal floor area

4. Inadequate amenity space

5. Lack of Education Contribution

6. Failure to meet Lifetime Homes standards

The applicant seeks to address the above issues through the following amendments:
-Reducing the density and number of units from 3 units to 2 units

-Increasing the amount of landscaping and depth of the garden, reorganising the
ground floor layout to increase outlook from Plot 1 ground floor windows

-Increasing the floor areas of bedrooms to meet minimum standards

-Increasing the amenity garden areas to exceed minimum standards

-Agreeing to pay educational contributions

-Meeting lifetime home standards

-Removing the front 'gated' entrance to the development

3.3 Relevant Planning History

64786/APP/2008/2373  Land Rear Of 81-93 Hilliard Road Northwood

North Planning Committee - 28th August 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 93



TWO STOREY BUILDING COMPRISING 4 TWO-BEDROOM FLATS, WITH ASSOCIATED
CAR PARKING, CYCLE STORE AND BIN STORE INVOLVING DEMOLITION OF EXISTING
BUILDINGS

Decision: 15-12-2008 Refused

64786/APP/2009/452 Land Rear Of 81-93 Hilliard Road Northwood

ERECTION OF 2 TWO STOREY BUILDINGS EACH COMPRISING OF TWO 2-BEDROOM
MAISONETTE FLATS, WITH ASSOCIATED CAR PARKING, CYCLE STORE AND BIN
STORE INVOLVING DEMOLITION OF EXISTING BUILDINGS.

Decision: 21-07-2009 Refused Appeal: 04-03-2010 Dismissed

64786/APP/2012/2421 Land Rear Of 81-93 Hilliard Road Northwood

2 x two storey, 3- bed semi detached dwellings and 1 x two storey, 3- bed detached dwelling
with associated parking and amenity space, involving demolition of existing material shed, office
building and material storage shelter.

Decision: 07-03-2013  Withdrawn

Comment on Relevant Planning History

Application ref. 64786/APP/2012/2421 for a similar development comprising 3 houses was
recommended for refusal and due to be heard at Planning committee on the 7 March
2013, however the application was withdrawn shortly before Planning Committee.
However the potential reasons for refusal at the time are listed below:

1. The proposal by reason of its siting, overall layout, size and site coverage, would result
in a development that fails to harmonise with the established character of the surrounding
area to the detriment of the character and appearance of the Old Northwood Area of
Special Character. The proposal is therefore contrary to Policies BE15, BE13 and BE19 of
the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012) and the
Supplementary Planning Document HDAS: 'Residential Layouts'.

2. The proposal by reason of its siting and layout would result in a poor level of outlook
from the ground floor windows to the detriment of the future occupiers of Plot 1, contrary
to Policies BE19 and BE21 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies
(November 2012) and Section 4.0 of the Council's HDAS "Residential Layouts".

3. The proposed units fail to provide an adequate amount of internal floor space for
individual bedrooms, and therefore would fail to afford an adequate standard of residential
amenity for their future occupiers. The proposal is therefore contrary to Policy BE19 of the
Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012), the Mayor of
London's adopted Housing Supplementary Design Guide (November 2012) and the
adopted Supplementary Planning Document HDAS: Residential Layouts.

4. The proposed development fails to afford an adequate standard of residential amenity
space for future occupiers by virtue of the layout and size of the amenity space. The
proposal is therefore contrary to Policies BE19 and BE23 of the Hillingdon Local Plan:

North Planning Committee - 28th August 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 94



Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012), the Mayor of London's adopted
Housing Supplementary Design Guide (November 2012) and the adopted Supplementary
Planning Document HDAS: Residential Layouts.

5. The development is estimated to give rise to a number of children of school age and
additional provision would need to be made in the locality due to the shortfall of places in
schools serving the area. Given that a legal agreement at this stage has not been offered
or secured, the proposal is considered to be contrary to Policy R17 of the Hillingdon Local
Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012) and the adopted London Borough
of Hillingdon Planning Obligations Supplementary Planning Document (July 2008) and
updated Education Chapter 4 (August 2010).

6. The proposed dwellings, by reason of failing to provide units which would be easily
adaptable for use by a wheelchair disabled person, or to Lifetime Home standards, fails to
meet the needs of people with disabilities, contrary to Policy 3A.4 of the London Plan and
the adopted Supplementary Planning Document HDAS: "Accessible Hillingdon."

An appeal (ref. APP/R5510/A/09/211540) was dismissed with regards to application
64786/APP/2009/452 FUL, detailed below. However, the Inspector considered that the
proposed use of the existing vehicular crossover and access was acceptable.

Planning permission (reference 64786/APP/2009/452 FUL) was refused for the erection of
2 two storey buildings each comprising of two 2-bedroom maisonette flats, with associated
car parking, cycle store and bin store, and involving the demolition of the existing
buildings. The application was refused on the following grounds:

1. The proposal by reason of its siting, overall layout, size and site coverage, would result
in a development that fails to harmonise with the established character of the surrounding
area. The proposal would result in a scale of buildings and hard surfacing that is
inappropriate for the plot and would compromise residential development standards to the
detriment of the living conditions of prospective occupiers. This would also be to the
detriment of the character and appearance of the Old Northwood Area of Special
Character. The proposal is therefore contrary to Policies BE13, BE19 and BE38 of the
Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September 2007), the
Supplementary Planning Document HDAS: 'Residential Layouts'

2. The proposal, by reason of overlooking and loss of privacy of the ground floor rear
habitable rooms from the shared communal garden, would fail to afford an acceptable
standard of residential accommodation for future occupiers. The proposal is therefore
contrary to Policies BE19, BE23 and BE24 of the adopted Hillingdon Unitary Development
Plan (Saved Policies, September 2007) and the Supplementary Planning Document
HDAS: Residential Layouts.

3. The proposal by reason of its siting would result in the provision of a poor level of
outlook to the detriment of the future occupiers of the ground floor dwelling units, contrary
to Policies BE19 and BE21 of the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan (Saved Policies,
September 2007) and Section 4.0 of the Council's HDAS "Residential Layouts".

4. The proposed development by reason of the restricted width of the vehicular access
represents a significant threat to highway and pedestrian safety, as it is likely to result in
vehicles needing to wait in the road until the access way is clear. As such, the proposal is
contrary to Policies AM7 of the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies
(September 2007).

North Planning Committee - 28th August 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 95



5. The proposal fails to provide adequate refuse collection facilities, including its collection
point, which would be in excess of the travel distance of refuse operators. The proposal
would therefore be likely to create a poor quality of environment, result in refuse vehicles
stopping up the free flow of traffic on the public highway and be contrary to the Council's
recycling policies. The proposal is contrary to Policy AM7(ii) of the Hillingdon Unitary
Development Plan Saved Policies (September 2007) and policy 4.A3 of the London Plan.

6. The proposed dwellings, by reason of failing to provide units which would be easily
adaptable for use by a wheelchair disabled person, or to Lifetime Home standards, fails to
meet the needs of people with disabilities, contrary to Policy 3A.4 of the London Plan and
the adopted Supplementary Planning Document HDAS: "Accessible Hillingdon."

Planning permission (reference 64786/APP/2008/2373) for the erection of a two storey
building comprising 4 two-bedroom flats, with associated car parking, cycle store and bin
store involving the demolition of existing buildings was refused in December 2008 for the
following reasons:

1. The proposal by reason of its siting, design, overall layout, size, bulk, site coverage and
excessive density, would result in a cramped overdevelopment of the site and an
incongruous form of development which would detract from the character and appearance
of the surrounding area and the Old Northwood Area of Special Local Character therefore
failing to harmonise with the established character of the surrounding area. The proposal
would result in a scale of building and hard surfacing that is inappropriate for the plot and
would compromise residential development standards to the detriment of the living
conditions of prospective occupiers. The proposal is therefore contrary to Policies BES5,
BE13, BE19 and BE38 of the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies
(September 2007), the Supplementary Planning Document HDAS: Residential Layouts
and Policy 3A.3 of the London Plan.

2. The proposal, by reason of overlooking and loss of privacy of the ground floor rear
habitable rooms from the shared communal garden, would fail to afford an acceptable
standard of residential accommodation for future occupiers. The proposal is therefore
contrary to Policies BE19 and BE24 of the adopted Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan
(Saved Policies, September 2007) and the Supplementary Planning Document HDAS:
Residential Layouts.

3. The floor area of the proposed dwellings is below the minimum 63m? internal floor area
required for a two-bedroom flat. As such the proposal fails to provide a satisfactory
residential environment for future occupiers, contrary to Policy BE19 of the Hillingdon
Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September 2007) and the Supplementary
Planning Document HDAS: Residential Layouts.

4. The development is estimated to give rise to a significant number of children of school
age and additional provision would need to be made in the locality due to the shortfall of
places in schools serving the area. Given that a legal agreement at this stage has not
been offered or secured, the proposal is considered to be contrary to Policy R17 of the
Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September 2007).

4. Planning Policies and Standards

North Planning Committee - 28th August 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 96



UDP / LDF Designation and London Plan
The following UDP Policies are considered relevant to the application:-

Part 1 Policies:

Part 2 Policies:

BES5 New development within areas of special local character

BE13 New development must harmonise with the existing street scene.

BE15 Alterations and extensions to existing buildings

BE19 New development must improve or complement the character of the area.

BE20 Daylight and sunlight considerations.

BE21 Siting, bulk and proximity of new buildings/extensions.

BE22 Residential extensions/buildings of two or more storeys.

BE23 Requires the provision of adequate amenity space.

BE24 Requires new development to ensure adequate levels of privacy to neighbours.

BE38 Retention of topographical and landscape features and provision of new planting
and landscaping in development proposals.

H4 Mix of housing units

AM14 New development and car parking standards.

AM7 Consideration of traffic generated by proposed developments.

HDAS-LAY  Residential Layouts, Hillingdon Design & Access Statement, Supplementary
Planning Document, adopted July 2006

LPP 3.4 (2011) Optimising housing potential
LPP 3.5 (2011) Quality and design of housing developments
LPP 5.13 (2011) Sustainable drainage
LPP 5.3 (2011) Sustainable design and construction
LPP 8.2 (2011) Planning obligations
(2011)

LPP 8.3 2011) Community infrastructure levy

5. Advertisement and Site Notice
5.1  Advertisement Expiry Date:- Not applicable
5.2  Site Notice Expiry Date:- Not applicable

6. Consultations
External Consultees

32 neighbours were consulted and a site notice was erected adjacent the site, expiring on 11
November 2012. 11 individual letters were received and a petition with 32 signatories as follows:

2 individual letters of objection on the following grounds:

i. Design and Layout
ii. Cramped

iii. Dominance

iv. Traffic

North Planning Committee - 28th August 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 97



v. Parking

vi. Poor Aspect

vii. Height

viii. Gate causing a nuisance to road safety and wheelchair users

A Petition with 25 signatories objects on the following grounds:

i. Over-dominant design, size and proportions

ii. Poor outlook

iii. Density

iv. Negative impact on open, light and airy verdant rear garden
v. Detrimental to amenities of adjoining occupiers

vi. Detrimental to the Old Northwood ASLC

vii. Detrimental to highway and pedestrian safety

Northwood Hills Residents Association object on the following grounds:

i. Layout and appearance
ii. Out of character with ASLC
iii. Traffic and congestion

Internal Consultees

Environmental Protection Unit:

As a number of sensitive receptors are being introduced and a works is indicated adjacent to the
site it may be advisable to include the standard contaminated land condition and imported soils
condition.

Highways Officer

NO OBJECTION.

When undertaking assessment of the development it is noted that the PTAL index within the area is
1a/1b, which is classified as very poor. Therefore, it is considered that the maximum parking
provision of 2 car parking spaces per dwelling is acceptable.

When considering the proposed means of vehicle access, it is noted that this measures
approximately 2.5m in width for a distance of approximately 20.0m into the site from the adjacent
highway. The adequacy of this access arrangement was a concern which was raised within the
refusal reasons of previous applications.

However, it is noted that there has been a previous planning appeal at the site (planning application
Ref: 64786/APP/2009/452), where the Planning Inspector considered access to be acceptable
even though 2 vehicles could not pass side by side. The Inspector considered visibility along the
access to be good and with sufficient room for on-site manoeuvring and given the modest size of
the proposed scheme, occupants would likely generate less traffic than the existing use at the site.
As a result, the scheme was not considered to be prejudicial to highway safety.

When considering the location of the refuse collection point, it is noted that the Manual for Streets
quotes Schedule 1, Part H of the Building regulations, which specifies that residents should not be
required to carry waste more than 30.0m Also refuse vehicles should be able access the storage
point from within 25.0m. From the submitted plans, it is considered that both criteria can be met by
the development proposals.

Therefore having considered the development and the Planning Inspector's comments, it is
considered that the proposals are acceptable and an objection is not raised in this instance.

North Planning Committee - 28th August 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 98



CONSERVATION & URBAN DESIGN
NO OBJECTION

ACCESSIBILITY OFFICER
Whilst the development demonstrates that many of the lifetime home Standards full compliance
should be secured by condition should the application be recommended for approval.

7. MAIN PLANNING ISSUES
7.01 The principle of the development

There is no objection in principle to the demolition of the existing buildings and the change
of use to residential use as Hilliard Road is predominantly residential. Although the site is
located to the rear of existing gardens on Hilliard Road, it comprises previously developed
land and does not constitute back garden development. Furthermore, the Inspector stated
in Paragraph 4 of his decision that 'in principle there is no objection to the redevelopment
of the site for residential purposes'.

7.02 Density of the proposed development

Paragraph 4.1 of HDAS Residential Layouts specifies that in new developments numerical
densities are considered to be more appropriate to larger sites and will not be used in the
assessment of schemes of less than 10 units, such as this proposal. The key
consideration is therefore whether the development sits comfortably within its environment
rather than a consideration of the density of the proposal.

7.03 Impact on archaeology/CAs/LBs or Areas of Special Character

See considerations in section 7.07 below in relation to the impact on the Area of Special
Character.

The proposal is not located in proximity to any Listed Buildings or within a Conservation
Area. Nor is it considered that the proposal would have any adverse impacts on
archaeological remains.

7.04 Airport safeguarding

Not applicable to this application.
7.05 Impact on the green belt

Not applicable to this application.
7.07 Impact on the character & appearance of the area

Policy BE1 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part One - Strategic Policies (November 2012)
requires all new development to maintain the quality of the built environment including
providing high quality urban design. Policies BE13 and BE19 of the Hillingdon Local Plan:
Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012) seek to ensure that new development
complements and improves the character and amenity of the area. Policy BE5 requires
new developments within Areas of Special Local Character to harmonise with the
materials, design features, architectural style and building heights predominant in the
area. Policy BE22 requires a minimum of 1m separation distance to the side boundary for
the full height of a two storey building to maintain a degree of openness in residential
developments.

The design of the proposed development incorporates elements of arts and crafts design,
which would harmonise with the overall appearance and character of the area and as
such infuse more interest and character to the new group of buildings. Chimney features,
mock tudor cladding, render and soft facing brickwork reflect the architectural detailing
and materials prevalent within the locality.

The omission of a residential unit has now enhanced the overall layout, size and site
coverage of the properties, which is reflected in the increase in amenity space provision

North Planning Committee - 28th August 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 99



and landscaping, an increase in separation distances to the rear boundaries and a internal
floor areas which meet minimum standards. The properties maintain the specified 1m gap
to the boundary of the site. Overall, it is considered that the proposed scheme provides an
improved layout and would now harmonise with the prevailing open and verdant rear
garden environment.

Overall, the proposed development would now provide a good quality of urban design and

would be in accordance with Policy BE1 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part One - Strategic

Policies (November 2012), Policies BE5, BE13 and BE19 of the Hillingdon Local Plan:

Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012) Policies 3.5 and 7.4 of the London Plan

(2011) and the Supplementary Planning Document (SPD) HDAS Residential Layouts.
7.08 Impact on neighbours

Paragraph 4.11 of HDAS Residential Layouts states that the 45° principle will be applied
to new development to ensure the amenity of adjoining occupiers and future occupiers are
protected. Paragraph 4.9 states that a minimum acceptable distance to minimise the
negative impact of overbearing and overshadowing is 15m. Paragraph 4.12 requires a
minimum of 21m distance between facing habitable room windows to prevent overlooking
and loss of privacy.

The proposed dwellings would not affect the 45-degree line of sight nor would they project
beyond the rear of the nearest adjoining properties. Plot 1 and Plot 2 would be 22.3
metres away from the nearest adjoining properties to the south-east (Plot 1 to No.85
Hillard Road). In addition, the proposed properties would be approximately 2.0m lower in
height than the properties in Hilliard Road. As such, the proposed development would
maintain adequate separation distances from the adjoining properties and would not
cause an undue loss of daylight, sunlight, visual intrusion or loss of privacy. It is therefore
considered that overall the proposed development would not constitute an un-neighbourly
form of development in accordance with Policies BE19, BE20 and BE21 of the Hillingdon
Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012) and Section 4.0 of HDAS
Residential Layouts.
7.09 Living conditions for future occupiers

HDAS Paragraph 4.7 indicates that consideration will be given to the ability of residential
developments to provide satisfactory indoor living spaces and amenities. Paragraphs 4.6
to 4.8 and Table 2 of the Council's SPD HDAS: Residential Layouts advises that 3
bedroom units should have a minimum floor area of 81 square metres. Furthermore,
London Plan Policy 3.5 and Table 3.3 states that a 3 bedroom, 4-person house should
have a minimum size of 87 square metres. On this basis, the proposed units provide 108
square metres which exceeds the policy requirement.

The Mayor's Housing Supplementary Planning Guidance (November 2012) requires the
minimum area for a single bedroom to be 8 square metres and a minimum floor area for a
double bedroom to be 12 square metres. Furthermore, each home for two or more people
should contain at least one double bedroom/twin room. The proposed development
accords with guidance, each plot providing three bedrooms, comprising a single bedroom
providing 8.5 square metres of internal floor area, and two double bedrooms providing
between 12-13 square metres of floor area.

HDAS advises in Paragraph 4.15 that 3 bedroom houses should have a minimum private
amenity area of 60 square metres. Plot 1 would provide 98 square metres of amenity
space and Plot 2 would provide 100 square metres of amenity space, exceeding minimum
requirements.

North Planning Committee - 28th August 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 100



710

7.1

712

713

7.14

715

In terms of outlook, a ground living room and landing windows on Plot 1 directly face and
would be 1m away from a 1.8m high brick wall to the side, however as this living room
window is a secondary living room window and the landing window would not serve a
habitable room the development would have adequate outlook and light. The distance
from the ground floor windows to the rear boundary has now been increased from 5.25m
(in the refused scheme) to 6.25m (in the withdrawn scheme) to 9.0m from the single
storey structure which measures 3.1 metres in height, which would provide adequate light
and outlook from the windows.

The proposed habitable room windows of plots 2 face away from neighbouring properties
to the rear of the garden. Although there is a 2.0m high wall to the side boundary and a
2.5m high wall to the rear, it is considered that the separation distance of 8.73m would be
appropriate. Notably, this relationship would not be contrary to the recommendations of
the Residential Layouts SPD and would be improvement to the previously refused scheme
which provided a separation distance to the rear boundary of 6.0m.

Overall, it is considered that the proposed development would provide good
accommodation for future occupiers in terms of internal floor area, amenity space
provision and outlook, and addresses the previous concerns and reasons for refusal. It is
therefore considered that the proposed development would accord with Policies BE19 and
BE23 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012),
Policy 3.5 and Table 3.3 of the London Plan (2011), the adopted SPD HDAS Residential
Layouts and the Mayor's Housing Supplementary Planning Guidance (November 2012).
Traffic impact, car/cycle parking, pedestrian safety

Although the previous scheme (ref. 64786/APP/2009/452) was refused on highway
grounds, the Planning Inspector considered the existing access to be acceptable even
though 2 vehicles could not pass side by side. The Inspector considered that visibility
along the access was good and with sufficient room for on-site maneuvering and given
the modest size of the proposed scheme and the occupants would likely generate less
traffic than the existing use at the site. As a result, the scheme was not considered to be
prejudicial to highway safety.

The location of the refuse collection point would allow residents not to carry waste for
more than 30m and vehicles to access the point within 25m in accordance with Manual for
Streets. Therefore having considered the development and the Planning Inspector's
comments, it is considered that the proposals are acceptable and an objection is not
raised in this instance from Council's Highway Officer.

Urban design, access and security

Please refer to section 7.09 and 7.12.
Disabled access

All new development is expected to meet Lifetime Home Standard in accordance with
London Plan Policy 3.8 and the Council's Supplementary Planning Document HDAS:
Accessible Hillingdon. The proposed development would be conditioned to ensure it
complies with Lifetime Home Standards, in line with the requirements of the Accessibility
Officer.

Provision of affordable & special needs housing

Not applicable to this application.
Trees, Landscaping and Ecology

No trees are present on the site and the site is considered to be of no significant
ecological value, however a landscaping scheme has been conditioned.
Sustainable waste management

North Planning Committee - 28th August 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 101



7.16

717

7.18

719

7.20

7.21

7.22

The application has shown a suitable location for the bin stores at the entrance to the site,
which are acceptably located for the refuse lorry on collection days.
Renewable energy / Sustainability

Policy 5.3 of the London Plan requires the highest standards of sustainable design and
construction in all developments to improve the environmental performance of new
developments and to adapt to the effects of climate change over their lifetime. The
proposal seeks to achieve Code for Sustainable Homes Level 4 and this would be
conditioned.

Flooding or Drainage Issues

The application site is not within a Flood Risk Area and the issue of sustainable water
management has been conditioned.
Noise or Air Quality Issues

Not applicable to this application.
Comments on Public Consultations

The comments made by the individual responses are noted and are considered within the
main report.
Planning Obligations

The proposed development is CIL liable, however as the proposed floorspace is less than
the existing there is no charge (i.e. 267.40 of existing floorspace would be demolished, the
proposed floor area is 221 square metres, therefore the net additional gross internal floor
area is -46.40 square metres).

The proposed development would provide a total of 16 habitable rooms which would
trigger the requirement for Educational Contributions. The sum of £25,953 is sought which
has been agreed by the applicant in accordance with Policy R17 of the Hillingdon Local
Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012).

Expediency of enforcement action

Not applicable to this application.
Other Issues

Not applicable to this application.

Observations of the Borough Solicitor

When making their decision, Members must have regard to all relevant planning
legislation, regulations, guidance, circulars and Council policies. This will enable them to
make an informed decision in respect of an application.

In addition Members should note that the Human Rights Act 1998 (HRA 1998) makes it
unlawful for the Council to act incompatibly with Convention rights. Decisions by the
Committee must take account of the HRA 1998. Therefore, Members need to be aware of
the fact that the HRA 1998 makes the European Convention on Human Rights (the
Convention) directly applicable to the actions of public bodies in England and Wales. The
specific parts of the Convention relevant to planning matters are Article 6 (right to a fair
hearing); Article 8 (right to respect for private and family life); Article 1 of the First Protocol
(protection of property) and Article 14 (prohibition of discrimination).

Article 6 deals with procedural fairness. If normal committee procedures are followed, it is
unlikely that this article will be breached.

Article 1 of the First Protocol and Article 8 are not absolute rights and infringements of

North Planning Committee - 28th August 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 102



these rights protected under these are allowed in certain defined circumstances, for
example where required by law. However any infringement must be proportionate, which
means it must achieve a fair balance between the public interest and the private interest
infringed and must not go beyond what is needed to achieve its objective.

Article 14 states that the rights under the Convention shall be secured without
discrimination on grounds of 'sex, race, colour, language, religion, political or other
opinion, national or social origin, association with a national minority, property, birth or
other status'.

9. Observations of the Director of Finance
Not applicable to this application.

10. CONCLUSION

It is considered that overall the scheme has adressed all of the previous concerns and
reasons for refusal upheld in the Inspector's decision. As such the scheme is now
recommended for approval.

11. Reference Documents

Hillingdon Local Plan: Part One - Strategic Policies (November 2012)
Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012)
HDAS: Residential Layouts

The London Plan 2011

The Mayor's Housing Supplementary Planning Guidance (November 2012)
HDAS: Accessible Hillingdon

National Planning Policy Framework

Contact Officer: Henrietta Ashun Telephone No: 01895 250230

North Planning Committee - 28th August 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 103



Site boundary

For identification purposes only.

This copy has been made by or with
the authority of the Head of Committee
Services pursuant to section 47 of the
Copyright, Designs and Patents

Act 1988 (the Act).

Unless the Act provides a relevant
exception to copyright.

© Crown copyright and database
rights 2013 Ordnance Survey
100019283

Land rear of
81 - 93 Hilliard Road
Northwood

LONDON BOROUGH
OF HILLINGDON

Residents Services

Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1UW
Telephone No.: Uxbridge 250111

Planning Application Ref: Scale
64786/APP/2013/1434 1:1,250
Planning Committee Date A ¢
ugus
NorthPage 104 2013

™ILLINGDON

LONDON




Agenda ltem 11

Report of the Head of Planning, Sport and Green Spaces

Address LAND ADJACENT TO 1 ST CATHERINES ROAD RUISLIP

Development: Two storey, 4-bedroom, detached dwelling with associated amenity space
and parking and installation of vehicular crossover to front involving
demolition of existing garage and amendments to existing vehicular
crossover (Resubmission)

LBH Ref Nos: 33892/APP/2013/1337

Drawing Nos: ASW/BL/011/17/2013

Design and Access Statement
68717

1161/P3/6

1161/P3/1

1161/P3/2

1161/P3/3

1161/P3/5

1161/P3/4

Date Plans Received: = 23/05/2013 Date(s) of Amendment(s):
Date Application Valid: 28/05/2013
1. SUMMARY

The proposed development is for the erection of a two storey, 4-bed, detached dwelling
with habitable roofspace, and associated parking and amenity space. It involves the
demolition of an existing garage. The design of the development is considered to
complement with the character and appearance of the streetscene, and would provide
high quality accomodation for future occupiers without unduly detracting from the
amenities of the adjoining occupiers.

Neighbours have reported that bats use the site and the existing structure on the site. As
such a bat emergence survey has been submitted with the planning application, and
upon consultation with Natural England it is concluded that the proposed development
would not affect protected species.

2, RECOMMENDATION
APPROVAL subject to the following:

2.1 That delegated powers be given to the Head of Planning, Green Spaces and
Culture to grant planning permission, subject to the following:

i) That the Council enters into an agreement with the applicant under Section 106
of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 (as amended) and/or Section 278 of
the Highways Act 1980 (as amended) and/ or other appropriate legislation to
secure:

a)A contribution towards capacity enhancements in local educational
establishments made necessary by the development;

2.2 That in respect of the application for planning permission, the applicant meets

North Planning Committee - 28th August 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 105



the Council's reasonable costs in preparation of the Section 106 Agreement and
any abortive work as a result of the agreement not being completed.

2.3 That officers be authorised to negotiate and agree the detailed terms of the
proposed agreement.

2.4 That if any of the heads of terms set out above have not been agreed and the
S$106 legal agreement has not been finalised within 6 months of the date of this
report, or any other period deemed appropriate by the Head of Planning, Green
Spaces and Culture then delegated authority be granted to the Head of Planning,
Green Spaces and Culture to refuse the application for the following reason:

'The development has failed to secure obligations relating to capacity
enhancements in local educational establishments made necessary by the
development. Accordingly, the proposal is contrary to policies R17 of the
Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012), the
Council's Planning Obligations SPD.

2.5 That subject to the above, the application be deferred for determination by the
Head of Planning, Green Spaces and Culture under delegated powers, subject to
the completion of the legal agreement under Section 106 of the Town and Country
Planning Act 1990 and other appropriate powers with the applicant.

2.6 That if the application is approved, the following conditions be imposed:

1 RES3 Time Limit

The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of three years
from the date of this permission.

REASON
To comply with Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990.

2 RES4 Accordance with Approved Plans

The development hereby permitted shall not be carried out except in complete
accordance with the detaills shown on the submitted plans, numbers
ASW/BL/011/17/2013, Design and Access Statement, 68717, 1161/P3/6, 1161/P3/1,
1161/P3/2, 1161/P3/3, 1161/P3/5 & 1161/P3/4 and shall thereafter be
retained/maintained for as long as the development remains in existence.

REASON
To ensure the development complies with the provisions of the Hillingdon Local Plan:
Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012) and the London Plan (July 2011).

3 RES12 No additional windows or doors

Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning (General Permitted
Development) Order 1995 (or any order revoking and re-enacting that Order with or
without modification), no additional windows, doors or other openings shall be
constructed in the walls or roof slopes of the development hereby approved facing north-
east or south-west.

REASON

To prevent overlooking to adjoining properties in accordance with policy BE24 Hillingdon
Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012).

North Planning Committee - 28th August 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 106



4 RES13 Obscure Glazing

The first floor window(s) facing Elmwood shall be glazed with permanently obscured
glass and non-opening below a height of 1.8 metres taken from internal finished floor
level for so long as the development remains in existence.

REASON
To prevent overlooking to adjoining properties in accordance with policy BE24 Hillingdon
Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012).

5 RES14 Outbuildings, extensions and roof alterations

Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning (General

Permitted Development) Order 1995 (or any order revoking and re-enacting that

Order with or without modification); no garage(s), shed(s) or other outbuilding(s), nor
extension or roof alteration to any dwellinghouse(s) shall be erected without the grant of
further specific permission from the Local Planning Authority.

REASON

To protect the character and appearance of the area and amenity of residential occupiers
in accordance with policies BE13, BE21, BE23 and BE24 Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two
Saved UDP Policies (November 2012).

6 RES15 Sustainable Water Management (changed from SUDS)

No development approved by this permission shall be commenced until a scheme for the
provision of sustainable water management has been submitted to and approved in
writing by the Local Planning Authority. The scheme shall clearly demonstrate that
sustainable drainage systems (SUDS) have been incorporated into the designs of the
development in accordance with the hierarchy set out in accordance with Policy 5.15 of
the London Plan and will:

i. provide information about the design storm period and intensity, the method employed
to delay and control the surface water discharged from the site and the measures taken
to prevent pollution of the receiving groundwater and/or surface waters;

ii. include a timetable for its implementation; and

iii. provide a management and maintenance plan for the lifetime of the development
which shall include the arrangements for adoption by any public authority or statutory
undertaker and any other arrangements to secure the operation of the scheme
throughout its lifetime.

The scheme shall also demonstrate the use of methods to minimise the use of potable
water through water collection, reuse and recycling and will:

iv. provide details of water collection facilities to capture excess rainwater;

v. provide details of how rain and grey water will be recycled and reused in the
development.

Thereafter the development shall be implemented and retained/maintained in accordance
with these details for as long as the development remains in existence.

REASON

To ensure the development does not increase the risk of flooding in accordance with
Policy OE8 Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012) and
London Plan (July 2011) Policy 5.12.

7 RES16 Code for Sustainable Homes

The dwelling shall achieve Level 4 of the Code for Sustainable Homes. No development
shall commence until a signed design stage certificate confirming this level has been
received. The design stage certificate shall be retained and made available for

North Planning Committee - 28th August 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 107



inspection by the Local Planning Authority on request.

The development must be completed in accordance with the principles of the design
stage certificate and the applicant shall ensure that completion stage certificate has been
attained prior to occupancy of each dwelling.

REASON
To ensure that the objectives of sustainable development identified in London Plan (July
2011) Policies 5.1 and 5.3.

8 RES18 Lifetime Homes/Wheelchair Units

The residential unit hereby approved shall be built in accordance with 'Lifetime Homes'
Standards. .

REASON

To ensure that sufficient housing stock is provided to meet the needs of disabled and
elderly people in accordance with London Plan (July 2011) Policies 3.1, 3.8 and 7.2.

9 RES24 Secured by Design

The dwelling shall achieve 'Secured by Design' accreditation awarded by the Hillingdon
Metropolitan Police Crime Prevention Design Adviser (CPDA) on behalf of the
Association of Chief Police Officers (ACPO). No dwelling shall be occupied until
accreditation has been achieved.

REASON

In pursuance of the Council's duty under section 17 of the Crime and Disorder Act 1998
to consider crime and disorder implications in excising its planning functions; to promote
the well being of the area in pursuance of the Council's powers under section 2 of the
Local Government Act 2000, to reflect the guidance contained in the Council's SPG on
Community Safety By Design and to ensure the development provides a safe and secure
environment in accordance with London Plan (July 2011) Policies 7.1 and 7.3.

10 RES7 Materials (Submission)

No development shall take place until details of all materials and external surfaces,
including details of balconies have been submitted to and approved in writing by the
Local Planning Authority. Thereafter the development shall be constructed in accordance
with the approved details and be retained as such.

Details should include information relating to make, product/type, colour and
photographs/images.

REASON
To ensure that the development presents a satisfactory appearance in accordance with
Policy BE13 Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012).

1 RES9 Landscaping (car parking & refuse/cycle storage)

No development shall take place until a landscape scheme has been submitted to and
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The scheme shall include: -

1. Details of Soft Landscaping
1.a Planting plans (at not less than a scale of 1:100),
1.b Written specification of planting and cultivation works to be undertaken,

North Planning Committee - 28th August 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 108



1.c Schedule of plants giving species, plant sizes, and proposed numbers/densities
where appropriate

2. Details of Hard Landscaping

2.a Refuse Storage

2.b Cycle Storage

2.c Means of enclosure/boundary treatments

2.d Car Parking Layouts (including demonstration that 5% of all parking spaces are
served by electrical charging points)

2.e Hard Surfacing Materials

2.f External Lighting

2.g Other structures (such as play equipment and furniture)

3. Details of Landscape Maintenance

3.a Landscape Maintenance Schedule for a minimum period of 5 years.

3.b Proposals for the replacement of any tree, shrub, or area of surfing/seeding within
the landscaping scheme which dies or in the opinion of the Local Planning Authority
becomes seriously damaged or diseased.

4. Schedule for Implementation

5. Other
5.a Existing and proposed functional services above and below ground
5.b Proposed finishing levels or contours

Thereafter the development shall be carried out and maintained in full accordance with
the approved details.

REASON

To ensure that the proposed development will preserve and enhance the visual

amenities of the locality and provide adequate facilities in compliance with policies BE13,
BE38 and AM14 Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012)
and Policies 5.17 (refuse storage) of the London Plan (July 2011).

12 RES19 Ecology

No development shall take place until a scheme to protect and enhance the nature
conservation interest of the site has been submitted to and approved by the Local
Planning Authority.

Thereafter, the scheme shall be implemented in strict accordance with the approved
scheme.

REASON

In order to encourage a wide diversity of wildlife on the existing semi-natural habitat of
the site in accordance with policy EC5 Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP
Policies (November 2012) and London Plan (July 2011) Policy 7.19.

13 RES6 Levels

No development shall take place until plans of the site showing the existing and proposed
ground levels and the proposed finished floor levels of all proposed buildings have been
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. Such levels shall be
shown in relation to a fixed and know datum point. Thereafter the development shall not
be carried out other than in accordance with the approved details.

North Planning Committee - 28th August 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 109



REASON

To ensure that the development relates satisfactorily to adjoining properties in
accordance with policy BE13 Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies
(November 2012).

14 RES8 Tree Protection

No site clearance or construction work shall take place until the details have been
submitted to, and approved in writing by, the Local Planning Authority with respect to:

1. A method statement outlining the sequence of development on the site including
demolition, building works and tree protection measures.

2. Detailed drawings showing the position and type of fencing to protect the entire root
areas/crown spread of trees, hedges and other vegetation to be retained shall be
submitted to the Local Planning Authority for approval. No site clearance works or
development shall be commenced until these drawings have been approved and the
fencing has been erected in accordance with the details approved. Unless otherwise
agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority such fencing should be a minimum
height of 1.5 metres.

Thereafter, the development shall be implemented in accordance with the approved
details. The fencing shall be retained in position until development is completed.

The area within the approved protective fencing shall remain undisturbed during the
course of the works and in particular in these areas:

2.a There shall be no changes in ground levels;

2.b No materials or plant shall be stored;

2.c No buildings or temporary buildings shall be erected or stationed.

2.d No materials or waste shall be burnt; and.

2.e No drain runs or other trenches shall be dug or otherwise created, without the prior
written consent of the Local Planning Authority.

REASON

To ensure that trees and other vegetation can and will be retained on site and not
damaged during construction work and to ensure that the development conforms with
policy BE38 Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012)

15 RES10 Tree to be retained

Trees, hedges and shrubs shown to be retained on the approved plan shall not be
damaged, uprooted, felled, lopped or topped without the prior written consent of the
Local Planning Authority. If any retained tree, hedge or shrub is removed or severely
damaged during construction, or is found to be seriously diseased or dying another tree,
hedge or shrub shall be planted at the same place or, if planting in the same place would
leave the new tree, hedge or shrub susceptible to disease, then the planting should be in
a position to be first agreed in writing with the Local Planning Authority and shall be of a
size and species to be agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority and shall be
planted in the first planting season following the completion of the development or the
occupation of the buildings, whichever is the earlier. Where damage is less severe, a
schedule of remedial works necessary to ameliorate the effect of damage by tree
surgery, feeding or groundwork shall be agreed in writing with the Local Planning
Authority. New planting should comply with BS 3936 (1992) 'Nursery Stock, Part 1,
Specification for Trees and Shrubs'

North Planning Committee - 28th August 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 110



Remedial work should be carried out to BS BS 3998:2010 'Tree work -
Recommendations’ and BS 4428 (1989) 'Code of Practice for General Landscape
Operations (Excluding Hard Surfaces)'. The agreed work shall be completed in the first
planting season following the completion of the development or the occupation of the
buildings, whichever is the earlier.

REASON

To ensure that the trees and other vegetation continue to make a valuable contribution to
the amenity of the area in accordance with policy BE38 Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two
Saved UDP Policies (November 2012) and to comply with Section 197 of the Town and
Country Planning Act 1990.

16 RES26 Contaminated Land

Before any part of the development is occupied, site derived soils and imported soils
shall be independently tested for chemical contamination to the satisfaction of the Local
Planning Authority. All soils used for gardens and/or landscaping purposes shall be clean
and free of contamination.

REASON To ensure that the occupants of the development are not subject to any risks
from soil contamination in accordance with policy OE11 of the Hilingdon Unitary
Development Plan Saved Policies (September 2007).

INFORMATIVES

1 152 Compulsory Informative (1)

The decision to GRANT planning permission has been taken having regard to all relevant
planning legislation, regulations, guidance, circulars and Council policies, including The
Human Rights Act (1998) (HRA 1998) which makes it unlawful for the Council to act
incompatibly with Convention rights, specifically Article 6 (right to a fair hearing); Article 8
(right to respect for private and family life); Article 1 of the First Protocol (protection of
property) and Article 14 (prohibition of discrimination).

2 153 Compulsory Informative (2)

The decision to GRANT planning permission has been taken having regard to the
policies and proposals in the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies
(September 2007) as incorporated into the Hillingdon Local Plan (2012) set out below,
including Supplementary Planning Guidance, and to all relevant material considerations,
including the London Plan (July 2011) and national guidance.

EC5 Retention of ecological features and creation of new habitats

OE11 Development involving hazardous substances and contaminated
land - requirement for ameliorative measures

OES8 Development likely to result in increased flood risk due to additional
surface water run-off - requirement for attenuation measures

R17 Use of planning obligations to supplement the provision of
recreation, leisure and community facilities

BE13 New development must harmonise with the existing street scene.

BE15 Alterations and extensions to existing buildings

BE19 New development must improve or complement the character of the
area.

BE20 Daylight and sunlight considerations.

BE21 Siting, bulk and proximity of new buildings/extensions.

BE22 Residential extensions/buildings of two or more storeys.

North Planning Committee - 28th August 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 111



BE23 Requires the provision of adequate amenity space.

BE24 Requires new development to ensure adequate levels of privacy to
neighbours.

BE38 Retention of topographical and landscape features and provision of
new planting and landscaping in development proposals.

HDAS-LAY Residential Layouts, Hillingdon Design & Access Statement,
Supplementary Planning Document, adopted July 2006

LPP 3.5 (2011) Quality and design of housing developments

LPP 5.13 (2011) Sustainable drainage

LPP 5.3 (2011) Sustainable design and construction

LPP 7.19 (2011) Biodiversity and access to nature

LPP 8.2 (2011) Planning obligations

3 159 Councils Local Plan : Part 1 - Strategic Policies

On this decision notice policies from the Councils Local Plan: Part 1 - Strategic Policies
appear first, then relevant saved policies (referred to as policies from the Hillingdon
Unitary Development Plan - Saved Policies September 2007), then London Plan Policies.
On the 8th November 2012 Hillingdon's Full Council agreed the adoption of the Councils
Local Plan:; Part 1 - Strategic Policies. Appendix 5 of this explains which saved policies
from the old Unitary Development (which was subject to a direction from Secretary of
State in September 2007 agreeing that the policies were 'saved') still apply for
development control decisions.

4

You are advised that the development hereby approved represents chargeable
development under the Community Infrastructure Levy. The applicant will be liable to pay
the Community Infrastructure Levy to the sum of £5052.24 on commencement of this
development (please note this amount may change on final calculation). A separate
liability notice will be issued by the Local Planning Authority, however you are advised
that it is your responsibility to notify the Local Planning Authority of the anticipated
commencement date and any changes in liability through submission of the appropriate
forms.

5
The proposed and existing vehicle crossovers shall be reinstated and constructed in
accordance with the council standard details.

6 ITOS Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981

Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981: Note that it is an offence under this act to disturb
roosting bats, nesting birds or other protected species. It is advisable to consult your tree
surgeon/consultant to agree an acceptable time for carrying out any work.

3. CONSIDERATIONS

3.1 Site and Locality

The application relates to a 0.0325 hectare rectangular site located on the south-eastern
side of St Catherines Road. The site comprises a dilapidated disused garage and is
overgrown with shrubs and flora. Historically, the site formed part of 1 Catherine Road,
located to the south-west of the site. The site is clearly demarcated from No.1 Catherine
Street by way of boundary treatment. Directly north-east of the site is an electrical sub-
station.

North Planning Committee - 28th August 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 112



The streetscene is characterised by large to medium sized detached houses, set within
rectangular plots and set back from the highway. The properties have varying plot widths
and infill development is prevalent in the locality.

The site is located within the Developed Area as identified in the Hillingdon Local Plan:
Part Two -Saved UDP Policies (November 2012).

3.2 Proposed Scheme

The proposed development comprises the erection of a two storey, 4-bed, detached
dwelling with associated amenity space and parking, and the installation of a vehicular
crossover to the front. The proposal involves demolition of the existing garage and
amendments to the existing vehicular crossover. The property would provide four
bedrooms, three of which would be on the first floor.

The proposed development would have a projecting gable and three dormer windows on
the front elevation. The side elevations would have a window and door at ground floor
level and no windows at first floor level. The first floor windows on the rear elevation would
serve two bathrooms and a landing area and would be obscurely glazed and non-opening
below 1.8m. The proposed development would have a single storey rear projection. The
new house would be 10m wide, 7.39mm deep and and 6m high to the ridge (3.26m to the
eaves)

126 square metres of amenity space would be provided.

Two off-street parking spaces would be provided.

3.3 Relevant Planning History

33892/APP/2002/1059  Land Adjacent To 1 St Catherines Road Ruislip

ERECTION OF A TWO STOREY DETACHED DWELLING (INVOLVING DEMOLITION OF
EXISTING GARAGE)

Decision: 27-06-2002 Refused

33892/APP/2007/1159 Land Adjacent To 1 St Catherines Road Ruislip

ERECTION OF A TWO STOREY, THREE- BEDROOM CHALET STYLE DETACHED
DWELLINGHOUSE WITH 3 FRONT AND 3 REAR DORMER WINDOWS AND 2 FRONTAGE
PARKING SPACES (INVOLVING DEMOLITION OF EXISTING GARAGE).

Decision: 03-04-2008  Approved

33892/APP/2012/2922 Land Adjacent To 1 St Catherines Road Ruislip

Two storey, 4-bedroom, detached dwelling with associated amenity space and parking and
installation of vehicular crossover to front involving demolition of existing garage and
amendments to existing vehicular crossover.

Decision: 25-01-2013  Withdrawn

33892/APP/2013/192 Land Adjacent To 1 St Catherines Road Ruislip

North Planning Committee - 28th August 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 113



Two storey, 4-bedroom, detached dwelling with associated amenity space and parking and
installation of vehicular crossover to front involving demolition of existing garage and
amendments to existing vehicular crossover.

Decision: 26-03-2013 Refused

Comment on Relevant Planning History

Planning permission was refused on the 26 March 2013 application ref.
33892/APP/2013/192 for an almost identical application for a two-storey house with
assosciated parking on the following grounds:

-The existing building proposed for demolition contains features which are likely to support
bats and the Local Planning Authority has received submissions indicating that bats may
utilise this building. In the absence of an appropriate bat survey and/or mitigation
proposals it has not been demonstrated that the demolition of the existing building would
not be harmful to protected species or their habitat and the application is contrary to Policy
EC5 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012),
Policy 7.19 of the London Plan, the National Planning Policy Framework and Natural
Englands Standing advice for protected species dated 22 February 2011.

A bat emergence survey undertaken in May 2013 has been submitted support the
application and to address the above refusal reason.

On the 25 January 2013 a planning application was withdrawn, ref.33892/APP/2012/2922
in order to address the height concerns raised by the Council as per the relevant condition
in the approved scheme granted in 2007 (as described below). The following changes
have been made in the current scheme to address concerns raised:

i. The height has been reduced from 6.890m to 6.0m high

ii. The width of the proposed development has decreased from 10.30m to 10.0m

iii. The separation distance from the north-eastern boundary has increased from 1.0m to
1.30m

In November 2012, the applicant received paid pre-application advice from the council
supporting the principle of a residential development on the site subject to meeting design
requirements.

Planning permission was granted in 2007 under application reference

33892/APP/2007/1159FUL for the erection of a two storey property. A condition was
imposed on the 2007 consent that no structure or building should exceed 6m high.

4. Planning Policies and Standards

UDP / LDF Designation and London Plan
The following UDP Policies are considered relevant to the application:-

Part 1 Policies:

PT1.BE1 (2012) Built Environment

North Planning Committee - 28th August 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 114



Part 2 Policies:

EC5 Retention of ecological features and creation of new habitats

OE11 Development involving hazardous substances and contaminated land -
requirement for ameliorative measures

OES8 Development likely to result in increased flood risk due to additional surface water
run-off - requirement for attenuation measures

R17 Use of planning obligations to supplement the provision of recreation, leisure and
community facilities

BE13 New development must harmonise with the existing street scene.

BE15 Alterations and extensions to existing buildings

BE19 New development must improve or complement the character of the area.

BE20 Daylight and sunlight considerations.

BE21 Siting, bulk and proximity of new buildings/extensions.

BE22 Residential extensions/buildings of two or more storeys.

BE23 Requires the provision of adequate amenity space.

BE24 Requires new development to ensure adequate levels of privacy to neighbours.

BE38 Retention of topographical and landscape features and provision of new planting

and landscaping in development proposals.

HDAS-LAY  Residential Layouts, Hillingdon Design & Access Statement, Supplementary
Planning Document, adopted July 2006

LPP 3.5 (2011) Quality and design of housing developments

LPP 5.13 2011) Sustainable drainage

(2011)
LPP 5.3 (2011) Sustainable design and construction
LPP 7.19 (2011) Biodiversity and access to nature
LPP 8.2 (2011) Planning obligations
5. Advertisement and Site Notice

5.1 Advertisement Expiry Date:- Not applicable
5.2  Site Notice Expiry Date:- Not applicable
6. Consultations

External Consultees
8 neighbours and Ruislip Residents Association were consulted.

A Site Notice was erected on the 31 May 2013 and expired on the 28 June 2013.
Letters were sent on the 29 May 2013 to the following neighbours:

-9 Arlington Drive

-4 St Catherine Street

-Elmwood

-2A St Catherine Street

Not all of the adjoining neighbours were initially consulted (although a site notice was erected

North Planning Committee - 28th August 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 115



opposite the site), which was also raised by neighbours. Further letters were sent on the 26 June
2013 (expiring on the 17 July 2013) to the following neighbours:

-1 Catherine Street
-169 Bury Street
-167 Bury Street
-163 Bury Street

2 objections have been received, with the following comments raised:

- There are also newts in the area.

- This land forms plot 79 which is part of St Catherine's Estate and this is protected by a number of
restrictive covenants restricting the number of dwellings that can be built on the plot.

- Overlooking.

- Overshadowing.

- Loss of light.

- Parking problems.

- Noise levels.

NATURAL ENGLAND
Natural England's comments in relation to this application are provided in the following sections.

Statutory nature conservation sites - no objection

This application is in close proximity to the Ruislip Woods Site of Special Scientific Interest (SSSI).
Natural England is satisfied that the proposed development being carried out in strict accordance
with the details of the application, as submitted, will not damage or destroy the interest features for
which the site has been notified. We therefore advise your authority that this SSSI does not
represent a constraint in determining this application. Should the details of this application change,
Natural England draws your attention to Section 28(l) of the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 (as
amended), requiring your authority to re-consult Natural England.

Protected species

Bats

It is noted that a survey for European Protected Species has been undertaken in support of this
proposal. Natural England does not object to the proposed development. On the basis of the
information available to us, our advice is that the proposed development would be unlikely to affect
bats.

For clarity, this advice is based on the information currently available to us and is subject to any
material changes in circumstances, including changes to the proposals or further information on the
impacts to protected species.

We have not assessed the survey for badgers or barn owls and breeding birds. These are all
species protected by domestic legislation and you should use our protected species standing
advice to assess the adequacy of any surveys, the impacts that may results and the
appropriateness of any mitigation measures.

Local wildlife sites

If the proposal site is on or adjacent to a local wildlife site, eg Site of Nature Conservation
Importance (SNCI) or Local Nature Reserve (LNR) the authority should ensure it has sufficient
information to fully understand the impact of the proposal on the local wildlife site, and the
importance of this in relation to development plan policies, before it determines the application.

North Planning Committee - 28th August 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 116



Biodiversity enhancements

This application may provide opportunities to incorporate features into the design which are
beneficial to wildlife, such as the incorporation of roosting opportunities for bats or the installation of
bird nest boxes. The authority should consider securing measures to enhance the biodiversity of
the site from the applicant, if it is minded to grant permission for this application. This is in
accordance with Paragraph 118 of the National Planning Policy Framework. Additionally, we would
draw your attention to Section 40 of the Natural Environment and Rural Communities Act (2006)
which states that 'Every public authority must, in exercising its functions, have regard, so far as is
consistent with the proper exercise of those functions, to the purpose of conserving biodiversity'.
Section 40(3) of the same Act also states that 'conserving biodiversity includes, in relation to a
living organism or type of habitat, restoring or enhancing a population or habitat'.

Landscape enhancements

This application may provide opportunities to enhance the character and local distinctiveness of the
surrounding natural and built environment; use natural resources more sustainably; and bring
benefits for the local community, for example through green space provision and access to and
contact with nature. Landscape characterisation and townscape assessments, and associated
sensitivity and capacity assessments provide tools for planners and developers to consider new
development and ensure that it makes a positive contribution in terms of design, form and location,
to the character and functions of the landscape and avoids any unacceptable impacts.

Internal Consultees

Highways

The development proposals are for the demolition of an existing garage building and the
construction of a 4 bedroom detached dwelling within the site. As part of the proposals, 2 No. car
parking spaces will be provided to the front of the dwelling with access provided over a new vehicle
crossover. The existing vehicle crossover serving the site will be removed and reinstated as
pedestrian footway.

It is quite apparent that the building on site is not utilised for car parking and that the proposal
would therefore not result in the loss of any existing parking facilities.

When undertaking assessment of the development, it is noted that the PTAL index within the area
of the site is 1b, which is classified as very poor. As a result, the maximum parking provision of 2
car parking spaces is justified in this instance.

Therefore, it is considered that the development would not be contrary to the policies of the
adopted Hillingdon Local Plan, 2012, (Part 2) and an objection in relation to the highway or
transportation aspect of the proposals is not raised.

However, an informative is required to be imposed on the planning consent, stating that the
proposed and existing vehicle crossovers shall be reinstated and constructed in accordance with
the council standard details.

EPU

The site appears to have been part of Little Manor Farm and it's possible there may have been an
orchard on part of the site based on Ordnance Survey historical maps. We have no specific
contamination information on ground conditions. As a new sensitive receptor is being introduced as
a result of the development the following imports/landscaping condition is recommended as a
minimum where a standard contaminated land condition may be too onerous. However, a condition
to ensure imported soils are free of contamination is recommended.

ACCESS OFFICER
No objection subject to the development providing level access in accordance with the building

North Planning Committee - 28th August 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 117



regulations and full compliance with lifetime home standards being secured by condition.

7.01

7.02

7.03

7.04

7.05

7.07

7.08

MAIN PLANNING ISSUES
The principle of the development

The site comprises a dilapidated garage and overgrown surrounding open space. The site
does not form part of a rear garden of the surrounding properties, and the supporting Bat
Survey demonstrates that it does provide a habitat for protected species. As such there is
no in principle objection to the loss of the site, subject to the scheme meeting all other
pertinent Policies of the Local Plan and the London Plan.

Density of the proposed development

Paragraph 4.1 of HDAS Residential Layouts specifies that in new developments numerical
densities are considered to be more appropriate to larger sites and will not be used in the
assessment of schemes of less than 10 units, such as this proposal. The key
consideration is therefore whether the development sits comfortably within its environment
rather than a consideration of the density of the proposal.

Impact on archaeology/CAs/LBs or Areas of Special Character

Not applicable to this application.
Airport safeguarding

Not applicable to this application.
Impact on the green belt

Not applicable to this application.
Impact on the character & appearance of the area

Policy BE1 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part One - Strategic Policies (November 2012)
requires all new development to maintain the quality of the built environment including
providing high quality urban design. Policies BE13 and BE19 of the Hillingdon Local Plan:
Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012) seek to ensure that new development
complements and improves the character and amenity of the area. Policy BE22 of the
Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012) requires new
buildings to be set-in from the side boundaries by 1.0 metre from the side boundary line,
for the full height of the building.

It is considered that the design of the proposed house reflects the materials, design
features, building heights and plot widths predominant in the locality whilst providing an
element of architectural individuality. Further the proposed development would be set-in at
least 1m from the side boundaries in order to maintain key visual gaps between the
properties. The proposed development would maintain a separation of at least 1.30-1.67m
to the adjoining boundaries, thus maintaining visual gaps between the detached
properties. As such it is considered that the proposed development would harmonise with
the streetscene and visual amenities of the locality.

Impact on neighbours

Paragraph 4.11 of HDAS Residential Layouts states that the 45° principle will be applied
to new development to ensure the amenity of adjoining occupiers and future occupiers are
protected. Paragraph 4.9 states that a minimum acceptable distance to minimise the
negative impact of overbearing and overshadowing is 15m. Paragraph 4.12 requires a
minimum of 21m distance between facing habitable room windows to prevent overlooking
and loss of privacy.

The proposed development would align with the rear building lines of the adjoining
property at No. 1 St Catherine Road and would be approximately 5.14m away from the
side flank wall and would project beyond the main proposed rear building line by 4.25m

North Planning Committee - 28th August 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 118



and beyond the rear single storey projection by 0.85m. Although there is a kitchen window
on the side elevation of No.1 St Catherine's Road facing the application site, it is
considered that given the single-storey nature of the proposed development in this
location, the height of the eaves extending to 3.26m high and the 5.14 separation
distance, this would not unduly affect the amenities of the occupiers of No. 1 St
Catherines Road. The proposed single storey rear addition would project 3.2m deep which
is acceptable in terms of HDAS Section 3.0 guidance and would not breach the 45-degree
line of sight.

There would be no windows at first floor level on the side elevations and the first floor
windows on the rear elevation would serve two bathrooms and a landing area and would
be obscurely glazed and fixed shut below 1.8m to avoid overlooking. The separation
distance to the south-east with Elwood, Howletts Lane, is sufficient at 15m. The
separation distance with No. 169 Bury Street, to the north-east has been increased from
13.3m (in the previous withdrawn application) to 14.54m and the height reduced to from
6.89m high to 6.0m to the ridge, 3.26m to the eaves. It is also noted that No.169 Bury
Street ground level is elevated above the ground level of the application site due to the
natural gradient of the land. Further a 5m high hedge would be present on the boundary
with No.169 Bury Street. It is considered that the separation distance, overall height and
increased separation distance would prevent undue visual intrusion and overshadowing.

Therefore, it is considered that the proposed development would not constitute an un-
neighbourly form of development contrary to Policies BE20, BE21 and BE24 of the
Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two -Saved UDP Policies (November 2012).

7.09 Living conditions for future occupiers

The proposed house would provide sufficient floor area for a four bedroom house,
exceeding minimum floor space requirements as specified in Paragraphs 4.6 to 4.8 and
Table 2 of HDAS: Residential Layouts, London Plan Policy 3.5 and Table 3.3, which
require 92 square metres and 100 square metres, respectively, for a four bedroom
property. The proposed development provides 156 square metres of residential floor
space which exceeds minimum requirements.

The Mayor's Housing Supplementary Planning Guidance (November 2012) requires the
minimum area for a single bedroom to be 8 square metres and a minimum floor area for a
double bedroom to be 12 square metres. The proposed dwelling complies with these
standards with bedroom providing one bedroom at 8 square metres and the remainder
providing between 13 and 19.5 square metres of floor area.

The first floor of the property would not be overlooked by the first floor windows of Elwood,
due to the existence of the large tree within the rear garden of the site and with Elwood
having it's first floor windows recessed from the rear building line of the building.

7.10 Traffic impact, car/cycle parking, pedestrian safety

The proposed parking arrangements of two off street parking spaces with 25% soft
landscaping are considered acceptable in accordance with Policies AM14 and BE38 of the
Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two -Saved UDP Policies (November 2012). Although the site
was formerly part of No.1 Catherine Street, No.1 Catherine Street has off-street parking at
the front of the property for 1-2 cars.

7.11 Urban design, access and security

In accordance with Paragraph 4.15 of HDAS, a four bedroom plus bedroom house

requires a minimum of 100 square metres of private useable amenity space. The

proposed development exceeds this by providing 126 square metres of amenity space.
7.12 Disabled access

North Planning Committee - 28th August 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 119



All new development is expected to meet 16 Lifetime Home Standard in accordance with
London Plan Policy 3.8 and the Council's Supplementary Planning Document 'Accessible
Hillingdon'. The design and access statement indicates that the development is intended
to achieve lifetime homes standards and this is secured by way of a recommended
condition.

7.13 Provision of affordable & special needs housing

Not applicable to this application.
7.14 Trees, Landscaping and Ecology

Policy BE38 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November
2012) requires the retention of landscape features of merit and new landscaping and
planting where possible. Further, due to the extent of the proposed works, it is likely that
the existing front garden and rear amenity space will need to be re-landscaped, which
would be conditioned if the scheme was approved. In terms of Policy BE38 of the
Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012) the scheme is
considered acceptable.

Policy EC5 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012)
states that on site ecology features to be retained and enhanced where possible. Policy
7.19 of the London Plan requires biodiversity and natural heritage to be conserved and
enhanced for the benefit of current and future Londoners within new developments.
Adjoining occupiers have mentioned that there may be protected species on the
application site.

An independent study was undertaken by ASW Ecology to support the application. The
Bat Emergence Survey dated May 2013 found that no bat roosts were found at all within
the existing garage proposed for demolition and that the proposed demolition of the
existing garage will have neither a direct nor indirect impact on bats. It was also noted that
only a very low density of bats visited the site during the survey, and that there are a
number of better quality sites with richer insect habitats in close proximity.

Natural England were consulted on the application and accompanying survey and in
conclusion they stated, "It is noted that a survey for European Protected Species has
been undertaken in support of this proposal. Natural England does not object to the
proposed development" and considers "that the proposed development would be unlikely
to affect bats". However, it is considered that the site may provide opportunities to
incorporate features into the design which are beneficial to wildlife. As such a landscaping
scheme is being sought via condition.

It was also mentioned within the neighbour objections that 'newts' were present on the
site, however the survey which was reviewed by Natural England who acknowledged that
"It is noted that a survey for European Protected Species has been undertaken in support
of this proposal. Natural England does not object to the proposed development.We have
not assessed the survey for badgers or barn owls and breeding birds". As such, Natural
England assessed the site for other protected species (apart from badgers, barn owls and
breeding birds) and has no objections to the proposed.

The applicant has addressed the previous reason for refusal and has the support of
Natural England (the government's advisor and specialise on the natural environment and
protected species) and as such accords with Policy EC5 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part
Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012) and Policy 7.19 of the London Plan.

It is proposed to condition the development to ensure that an ecological enhancement

North Planning Committee - 28th August 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 120



7.15

7.16

717

718

719

7.20

7.21

7.22

scheme is provided as recommended by Natural England.
Sustainable waste management

Not applicable to this application.
Renewable energy / Sustainability

Policy 5.3 of the London Plan requires the highest standards of sustainable design and
construction in all developments to improve the environmental performance of new
developments and to adapt to the effects of climate change over their lifetime. The
applicant has submitted a Code for Sustainable Homes pre-assessment and has made a
commitment to provide Code for Sustainable Homes Level 4 in the proposed development
through the provision of sustainable measures. This has been conditioned.

Flooding or Drainage Issues

A condition has been imposed in relation to Sustainable Water Management.
Noise or Air Quality Issues

Not applicable to this application.
Comments on Public Consultations

The comments made by the individual responses are noted and are considered within the
main report, or are dealt with by way of recommended condition or are not material
planning considerations.

Planning Obligations

The proposed development would provide 8 habitable rooms which would trigger the
requirement for Educational Contributions as it would result in an increase in the number
of children within the borough, and a planning obligation is required to mitigate this impact
on schools. As such a sum of £12,796.00 in accordance with Policy R17 of the Hillingdon
Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012) is sought. The applicant has
agreed to pay this sum.

The proposed development would result in a net increase of 145.49 square metres (over
100 square metres) of residential floor area and thus would be CIL liable. A total of
£5052.24 would be sought towards CIL which the applicant has acknowledged and
completed the relevant form.

Expediency of enforcement action

Not applicable to this application.
Other Issues

Historically, the site appears to have been part of Little Manor Farm and it's possible there
may have been an orchard on part of the site based on Ordnance Survey historical maps.
The Council has no specific contamination information on ground conditions, however as
a new sensitive receptor is being introduced as a result of the development an imposed
soils/landscaping condition is recommended as a minimum by the Council's
Environmental Protection Unit, in accordance with Policy OE11 of the Hillingdon Local
Plan: Part Two -Saved UDP Policies (November 2012).

Observations of the Borough Solicitor

When making their decision, Members must have regard to all relevant planning
legislation, regulations, guidance, circulars and Council policies. This will enable them to
make an informed decision in respect of an application.

In addition Members should note that the Human Rights Act 1998 (HRA 1998) makes it
unlawful for the Council to act incompatibly with Convention rights. Decisions by the
Committee must take account of the HRA 1998. Therefore, Members need to be aware

North Planning Committee - 28th August 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 121



of the fact that the HRA 1998 makes the European Convention on Human Rights (the
Convention) directly applicable to the actions of public bodies in England and Wales. The
specific parts of the Convention relevant to planning matters are Article 6 (right to a fair
hearing); Article 8 (right to respect for private and family life); Article 1 of the First Protocol
(protection of property) and Article 14 (prohibition of discrimination).

Article 6 deals with procedural fairness. If normal committee procedures are followed, it is
unlikely that this article will be breached.

Article 1 of the First Protocol and Article 8 are not absolute rights and infringements of
these rights protected under these are allowed in certain defined circumstances, for
example where required by law. However any infringement must be proportionate, which
means it must achieve a fair balance between the public interest and the private interest
infringed and must not go beyond what is needed to achieve its objective.

Article 14 states that the rights under the Convention shall be secured without
discrimination on grounds of 'sex, race, colour, language, religion, political or other
opinion, national or social origin, association with a national minority, property, birth or
other status'.

9. Observations of the Director of Finance
None received.

10. CONCLUSION

It is considered that the proposed layout provides an opportunity to develop the site for
residential purposes taking into consideration the site constraints whilst respecting the
visual amenity and character of the area and amenities of the adjoining occupiers and
accords with the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part One - Strategic Policies (November 2012),
the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012), HDAS
Residential Layouts and the London Plan (2011). The application is therefore
recommended for approval, subject to an appropriate legal agreement in relation to a
contribution towards education provision.

11. Reference Documents

Hillingdon Local Plan: Part One - Strategic Policies (November 2012)
Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012)
HDAS: Residential Layouts

The London Plan 2011

The Mayor's Housing Supplementary Planning Guidance (November 2012)
HDAS: Accessible Hillingdon

National Planning Policy Framework

Contact Officer: Henrietta Ashun Telephone No: 01895 250230

North Planning Committee - 28th August 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 122



Notes

Site boundary

For identification purposes only.

This copy has been made by or with
the authority of the Head of Committee
Services pursuant to section 47 of the
Copyright, Designs and Patents

Act 1988 (the Act).

Unless the Act provides a relevant
exception to copyright.

© Crown copyright and database
rights 2013 Ordnance Survey
100019283

Site Address

Land rear of
1 Catherine Street
Ruislip

LONDON BOROUGH
OF HILLINGDON

Residents Services

Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1UW
Telephone No.: Uxbridge 250111

Planning Application Ref: Scale
33892/APP/2013/1337 1:1,250
Planning Committee Date A ¢
ugus
North Page 123 2013

ey,
™~NILLINGDON

LONDON




This page is intentionally left blank

Page 124



Agenda ltem 12

By virtue of paragraph(s) 6 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985 as amended.

Document is Restricted

Page 125



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 130



Agenda ltem 13

By virtue of paragraph(s) 6 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985 as amended.

Document is Restricted

Page 131



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 136



Agenda Annex

Plans for
North
Planning Committee

28th August 2013

THILLINGDON

OOOOOO

www. hillingdon.gov.uk



Report of the Head of Planning, Sport and Green Spaces

Address 135 SWAKELEYS ROAD ICKENHAM

Development: Erection of two storey building with habitable roofspace for use as 5 x 2-bed
self contained flats with associated parking and amenity space, installation of
bin and cycle stores and removal of existing front vehicular crossover

LBH Ref Nos: 380/APP/2013/1450

Date Plans Received: 03/06/2013 Date(s) of Amendment(s): 03/06/2013
Date Application Valid: 07/06/2013

North Planning Committee - 28th August 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 138



New lockable rear gate —-J-

=z

Perimeter wall - 2.0m high

THORNHILL ROAD

Grass verge

Pavement

Remove existing vehicle access gate.
Reduce height of existing brick piers and
boundary wall to 0.6m high along 2.4m

length to both sides of the access opening.

Install new metal railings along top of the

lowered lengths of boundary wall.

Existing
dropped kerb

Maple - 5.0m high |-

—

(to be retained)

|
|
| Vehicle
I crossover

SiverBich w3 % ean)
(to be retained)

. 3000
LN 0
i New Cycle Store

(for 5no. cycles) Copper Beech \
15.0m/20.0mhigh — |

Apple - 5.0m high
(to be retained)

Private rear patio area

|
|
to ground floor Flat A :
|
]

(to be retained)

REAR GARDEN

Private rear patio area
to ground floor Flat B

Line of Protective Fencing .:’53'; 74

EIF

1

-, Oak- 15.0m/20.0m high

(to be retained)

\ Hornbeam
/15.0m / 20.0m high
(to be retained)

I Conifer - 8.0m high

(to be retained)

“ Fig - 4.0m high

(to be retained)

0 2 4 6 8 10m
I — —
Rev Date Amendment

A 19.07.2013  Vehicle access 4.1m wide
B 25.07.2013  Private rear patios added
c 31.07.2013  External Screening added

iL\

1:200 on A4

135 SWAKELEYS ROAD

Perimeter wall / fence - 2.0m high

Pedestrian access to rear garden

New Landscaping
(see notes)

Vehicle access to be
minimum 4.1m wide

4.8m x 2.4m
____——————

Parking space
4.8m x 2.4m

e —
Parking space
4.8mx 2.4m

(see notes)

Existing
block paving

Parking space
- 4.8mx 24m

@ =+~ New Silver Birch tree

CONSTRUCTION OF FIVE FLATS

Install new pedestrian gate.

Page 183/ AKELEYS ROAL

+*New Lan

“““““““

St
dscaping ,+ |
+ +
.+ (seenotes) +.+

+ + + 4 + + o+
/ o ?6?0 i

External Screening

4

3400

Parking space
4.8m x 2.4m

Parking space |
48mx24m
N
Parking space” |
4.8mx24m |
I
Parking space |
4.8m x 2.4m

S N .

Bus shelter

Existing vehicle access to be stopped up.

Centre line of first floor window

New Landscaping
Low level flowering shrubs including:

Lonicera, Eunymus and English Lavender

External Screening
1.8m x 1.8m timber trellis with clematis plants to

provide privacy to front ground floor bedrooms

Oak - 20.0m high
(to be retained)

SITE PLAN - PROPOSED

130503 /03 ¢



v 0/ £0G0E} v uo 00k}
saquny Bumesg o5 N¥1d 0014 ANNOYD

N¥d 40014 1SHId

SNYId 4004 ONV 40014
Bumesg

SL¥1d 3AI 40 NOILINYLSNOD
wefoig

— -

108 04EN WYHNIADI QY SATTINVMS SEL
L]

LL3uuva 3 un
e

IuswpuBny aeq | Aoy

BB U UO0DSg <) PAROE MODUIA, | £10Z10°E v

SARALIILL U] LIMDUS SUO(SUBLIR 2 -

pafexs 6q o) jou 5 Buwesp sup -

wengsbol page pue
uonenay Bupang 1Uuna o Y GG of 51 40m IE -

NY1d 400 mpug, 5 8§ ¢ § & ¢+ ¢ 31 1 0 NV1d 40074 1401
gy - g oy F = = = .-Q|.rl
Elr_i_wwi_mzw_i_m,
///m\ 1
[rod]
Jo0%d 1eid
E
il I
mﬂ ) E@
l
o ]
200
Jooy i Jooy
el U e

Page 140



x

N

N,

[Ls |
A)

[T

/e

—————\

Bedroom, bathroom and en-suite
windows to be glazed with obscure glass

Bathroom window to be

III'|||III|||III|||III|||III|||IIf|||III||

§
%’ ,
%
8
S

TR

[

|||\||l||||||||||

!I (1T} I [T

glazed with obscure glass

Bathroom window to be

2 ot 1

0566

JE

||||||I IR

L

I

I'"I Jinillls

£

il i

g

IIII"'[II“'III"'II]

lIIlIII III [T IIII [T}

At [

Walls to be finished in Wienerberger Ltd Red Multi 'Olde Henfield Multi - Desimpel' Bricks.
Roof slopes to be finished in Marley Eternit Ltd Dark Red (G) Concrete Plain Tiles.

1|
s

LY
I"|II|"III"|IIl

2 ot 1

WEST ELEVATION

NORTH ELEVATION

=N

Kitchen windows to be
glazed with obscure glass

=

s

(sl vafblons o

Page 141

||\||l||||||||||

-]

||||II |III|||III|||III|||III|
|II|||1II| I
(]

IIII'''III”'III"'I|I'“IIl'“III'''III'”III'"III'"III"'III

En-suite window to be
glazed with obscure glass

ot e e

é
12|

III| T

i
|

EAST ELEVATION
- all work is to comply with the current Building Regulation and allied legislation

- this drawing is not to be scaled

SOUTH ELEVATION

31.07.2013  Window added to Bedroom in Flat B

A

1|0 mefres

3}

Amendment

Rev Date

- all dimensions shown in milimetres

Project

<
wn
r—
—
o]
o
5 D
£ o
s 2
g
&
[=]
o
|| <
2|l s
g|ls
S || =
&£
£|| 8
o | | w
w
<
w
w
=
w
L
o
=
o
'_
o
=)
x
[
w)
=
e}
o

|

sie 135 SWAKELEYS ROAD ICKENHAM MIDDLESEX UB10 8DL l Drawing  ELEVATIONS

Client MR C BARRETT

C B DEVELOPMENTS

Tel: 07956 122437

Email: chris.barrett20@sky.com




e L

CONSTRUCTION OF FIVE FLATS

Project

Amendment
Site
135 SWAKELEYS RD ICKENHAM UB10 8DL

and allied legisiation
Date
MR C BARRETT

- all work is to comply with the current Bullding Regulation

- all dimensions shown in milimetres.

~ this drawing is nat to be scaled

130503 /06

Dramwing Numiber

STREET SCENES
1:100 on A2

Drawing
Scale

mmmmmmmmm

= it
=M %é g 2
i .
sié%
fis
HiH
||||||| g: 3
1t L g III Efﬁi
| i
1|1||1|||||u||||||||||||||
E I
O
----||n|||||u||||||||||||||
III v s i
g
H
III ll i il g
(il %
S §
g
:

1 2 3 4 5 B T 8 9 10 matres

STREET SCENE - THORNHILL ROAD

a [N

-
Q

«Q
@
—
N
N

STREET SCENE - SWAKELEYS ROAD



60/ €050€1 S1V14 3AI4 40 NOILONYLSNOO

J1VI§ QL AUN ZADNVULNT TVdIONIAEd

7 _ NOLWLIAS QTOHSAAUHL 653V T13AAT

aoeds pauiesp
" pue pajudp
........%-
20
30u:
- “Q.@L.. “ﬂn ; e
e el s m Buey 130|s 98eUlRIp PAW.IOJ-3]IS ©
x m -13A0 i
WS wwgz| ...wu... sojedoduodul uSISap SIY| ||BM |BUIIIXD
R 2 m 23

9Y3 JO Je3| J49INO dY3 puIyaq 39S S| Sk}

93 {|edAaJ >d3yd, © ul Sl JOOp dY |

s

__.
uo

sqe|s

buined
Wwwg
[|eM [eUI)Xa JO dul|
yby wwgy -
uel alow . a|yjoud

ou ‘pjoysaiyl
fyaudoid

peay Jo ued

TE Now=aLIND N9ISA] SAWOH IWL331,] SSIAUDNI AIALVM IDVAAMS ANV NIVY INIA3N4 0L
QAVACAATINI 3¢ QL TONVALNT “TVAIINING AUL QL 1¥IQT SYIAUY WL N 09:| 40 TIV3 Y

TAQIAO2Ad S OL  (NDLVATA HINON) 3D NVALNA TVAIDONIAd SHL 0L 56320V 13aAaT

108 018N X3S31AAIN WYHNIMOI AYOd SAITINVMS GEL

Page 143




80/ £050€} S1V14 3AI4 40 NOILONYLSNOD 1d8 019N X3S31adIN WVYHNIMOI dvOd SAFTIMVMS GEL

yv uoQol:l

1

sansu L 6 8 L 9 § 14 _ d

£ 4 b 0
J401S NIg
Ma3A BPIS MBIA JDBY MelA @pIS MBIA B8pis Joo(]
o
=
Q
0
A 1
s9406 diqneq
3401S 3T0AD
84035 9194D
¥ k¥ ; _ 000g 000%
oSGL \_m. OOm__.m \_om.ﬁ. M3IA SPIS MBIA JDBY MBIA BPIS MBI 8pis Joo(
S
o == - = B 3E
S
o
h A "25bq |9DVED uo
| - _ PouS Jeqwi)

Page 144



’ —— /\/1 i\/\ | ]
|
J LIVING AREA LIVING AREA
|
I [ 2]
J //_.'./
BATHROOM rd
W wireren (e floor guly) KITCHEN s
UJ o 1" BEDROOM
=0 V7
SVP SVP|= ’
NewMH | [—— R—=
’ SVP |, \ , . j‘
New branch drains — . -
@ ]:EN-SUITE 7 M,,%&m
RPN | o
8 New MH —— €T
3 )
g, | |
3 BEDROOM |
=3 l |
c I |
= BEDROOM |
% . New branch drain : BEDROOM
p=; s
g’ %
."‘EI
>
L |
Y | | /‘ | !
| )

To public sewer

SVP

]

New branch drain

DRAINAGE LAYOUT - GROUND FLOOR
NOT TO SCALE

Page 145

SVP

130503 / 07



=

THORNHILL ROAD

Dropped
kerb

Maple ||

5.0m high

1:200 on A4

Grass verge

|
|
: Vehicle

Pavement

crossover

|

|

Small bushes

Silver Birch

Copper Beech K —
15.0m / 20.0m high |

REAR GARDEN

Apple - 5.0m high

~=— Perimeter wall - 2.0m high

-, Oak - 15.0m / 20.0m high

/' Hornbeam - 15.0m / 20.0m high

. Conifer - 8.0mhigh

%]l =4 Fig - 4.0m high

Laurel - 5.0m high

—r——

==

PATIO AREA
I —
[
|
[
|
|
: 135
: (position of demolished house)
|
[

|

[

L—— - [ = = = - = |
L J |

—=— Sliding vehicle access gate

gl

_ 1

3 Yard gully

~=— Perimeter wall - 2.0m high

— ] ——

PARKING AREA (block paving)

Perimeter wall - 2.0m high

10 metres

Oak - 20.0m high

135 SWAKELEYS ROAD

CONSTRUCTION OF FIVE FLATS

Page §WKELEYS ROAD
SITE PLAN - SURVEY

130503 / 02



*L**L,ff%tffit%j:i —

e

GREE

Site Address LONDON BOROUGH
Site boundary 135 Swakeleys Road OF HILLINGDON
For identification purposes only. Ickenham Residents SerVices
This copy has been made by or with Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1UW
the a.uthority of the Head pf Committee TeIephorY1e No.: Ux’bridge 250111
Services pursuant to section 47 of the
§°tp¥g§2t('t5eiggs and Patents Planning Application Ref: Scale ﬁp
c e Act). . .
Unless the Act provides a relevant 380/APP/2013/1450 1:1 ’250 e,é*
exception to copyright. Bl - c - Dat tg}’r =t
i T
© Crown copyright and database anning L.ommittee ate August A4
ights 2013 Ord s drL NCTYO N
001008y e SHveY North Page 147 2013 NILLINGDON
LONDON




Report of the Head of Planning, Sport and Green Spaces

Address LAND TO REAR OF 94-96 GREEN LANE NORTHWOOD

Development: 2 x Two storey 5-bedroom semi-detached dwellings with habitable roofspace
with associated parking and amenity space and the installation of a vehicular
crossover

LBH Ref Nos: 66134/APP/2012/718

Date Plans Received: 27/03/2012 Date(s) of Amendment(s): 27/03/2012
Date Application Valid: 13/04/2012 19/04/2012

North Planning Committee - 28th August 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 148



I BUBpUIG Mot Suwaeyr)) Budors
el 10 jeady 99 0 SRS O Bincy

R
|

somn ) andio § pesduR: Wroesom Bugsag — |
|

aitot 1040

o er

Bwp i 01— E0L0NDEON UMD W T D

panse|

110z Asonuor o0L:L
g »

(as017 1sinysy 4o puo)
POOMULION BUDT US3J9
96 Puo pg o Joay puo

e 3

¥LEQM

LPaD MIOLON
"oy vid

panwn] siuawdopaaac] ymapy

s P A W Uy Eojul




g Nowl_ 1020

BpZ0L—L0L0N LOLONSBUmMEIPW 5 ova NV1d 3007174 4008 Q3S0d0ydd N¥1d 0074 ANNOY9 g3s0d0dd
::c-o.._
L0z _r_u_.__”.._x__”“ [iTTE e

(8019 1sunysy 4o puo)
POOMUYMION 8UDT UL
96 Puo 6 jo Jody puol

¥k EOM
SPIOIH

JUOMSURIRY
ROy MOpoN

BT MOHON ¥
PO Wid

panun siawdojasag] ySmqpy

g-h%ﬁ.ﬂﬂlﬂ-ng—oﬂ 2
.......
amsSipry
= —_ = NV1d d00714 ANOD3IS d3S0d0dd =S NV1d 400714 1Sdld d3S0d0dd
JOVHYO m_u_sm_ﬁm_.mm SIOVHVO FTONIS
® N
SINOIHIS ONY SILON




O €01 10L0

o jamas o sor
BmpeoL—10s0) Locohsbumomp\w — oo
:::-.ﬂ o o L o
Lo ——— I.Illll
110z hs_._,_uﬁ_z_ 0011 —
= 002 | M35 'BUBOS 19ANG
) LIS 4 0N

(8s017 1sunysy yo puoi)
POOMULION BUDT UBaL)
96 PUD $5 jo Joay pubT .

T BR[| Y

o

¥ EOM
ARSI
[T TS
De0L Wioory : | §
UGS IO ¥ AN A e | mat , h: ] ) Ao
HOOH yid a3 { 1 e { { Y
iR ¥ gl SR F e 1 2 A
panunry suawdojasag ySmgpy | &y g il ¢ 3. 4 ¥ 4
~ v L/ oy
) w4 . pr ol 1 - A |
LOS 1o N g S Uy |
W0 PSR WA A, o pessayaBioj - 0.5 5
552204 E2610 "4 S50 EZ610 1 ¥
T AR AP MBI
PAROL MOUON LNOD NIDHCN I 0SN0H Yid
»
aunpEgasy
S$S9HD
sieg | ooy | e
LONBASET LNGG ~ BURY UBMIS w5 ON St 0Bries LOGEANT YUON — BUET USBIE) IS oy Of sbesen uohEAs|3 [Ynos uopers|g iseg
5 3 B E = EREE == il = = =
S = e = - = == E— =
- = Tars e = I E = 3 ~—
= = an £ i 2 W | e — | - Lo
| ] 3 x CE— = “ =
soainos Bunls ainyes; youg [ = = — = — — SrRinaa BULRE BINUBY 40
= : sy 3 $Budcs auows souuisuoney | 3 i Yook (0]
- - H FHHE § LHTE i BUey (@)}
SRR WAL ULBas By 3 3 ] a
ik R A s funey o
fimane ol s iy — nnpabiny
s i o, o) sha
RPNl e e - oy R et < Buyoos e AnelS
i e UONEAB|I YHON UCTEAD|T 1SS
SARMA0H IS 3| SUCND PREISNY | £ ml
- = =Eam=
B § SEuaD st = r E ~
SBUIUE Ho0 EueeuBas 814 SAE YU mawBos ey g = — “ — & E 5 | wowepa Bunes
" A | _ ] s8N0 Buiils Lmea) ¥ug
= EMLIOD O] SYPI PRI | ,‘ _.._ 1] I _‘Eh
el Bunjos 0efE Jnauiuis .L. - 5 | 5 .
T T TTHTTTTT I
512 ¥ SEUIC0D DS PAINTSUCIaY _ | H |
LARARRARRRNNRARANRANRND! A IHRRNNY 03 RAARLSAARRLALR! i

&



J§3UIRY, WNIOASH] ON |——p

sjesodald Buderspuen

(V1 9VH X3S3PPIlA - POOMULION

aUE] UBRJG) 96/46 40 Je3) pue)
DEMPHO 90810 ssuoudem) paud AN L
205640 90610 my SALVIOOSSV-NVANNEG A3¥44039

wbs/g - sofew eipoN 87—

/.ES,. g sywissed snboesed) o L

W gLY9L- (AR puig) srped snunig oy |
whs/E- USHHAM) GHO, STSRIBI0ING) SN OO,

WSz - SUSDSSI0GY, XIBY ESP3H O O

= SBipe g0 - MofD U0, EYNEEAION E
“Wbsyy-SSUARIES 3GRHON 6—

wibs/g-ejesyd 2010 oN G

‘whsy-ssudmes S98H N ZL

whs/y-eqy.eoysibue enpueszoy gy

RN EmS
|

WD g, UGy PR 1SR X RO |

un0z/g1- (PA1Q) dsiy, epnpuad eyeg

R Enn@g%ﬂé\\,

i

ANNSENENNIRENY,

Buuay papaeoq asop ﬁ:e!i /
o I

S

1 R AT
T

WIGL Y- (YsE urequnow) 3oy Ydasor,snquos oN L

Page 152




e | ewin Pl
wvs|  abwewren o
AL i
s

| Panr] siuawidopaaag] yBing|v|

ot D et e

Efom T i
Lo
e

T~ @

I

e T

SRS G D G 40 LA BTN
GO ¥ $904 BT ONOTD A A

]
e 5500 T et G ERD VS
osis s Ty

J258

P
BESEEOERRSEEEEREEEAR

Ll
P
[ ]

SRS EEREANAE
SRR R

|

|
4

18002 S)iNvAYID

reoz won

|

i

Page 153



Swimming Pool

Chester

House

Little
St Helen's
School

Site boundary

For identification purposes only.

This copy has been made by or with
the authority of the Head of Committee
Services pursuant to section 47 of the
Copyright, Designs and Patents

Act 1988 (the Act).

Unless the Act provides a relevant
exception to copyright.

© Crown copyright and database
rights 2013 Ordnance Survey
100019283

Site Address

Land to the rear of
94 - 96 Green Lane

LONDON BOROUGH
OF HILLINGDON

Residents Services

Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1UW
Telephone No.: Uxbridge 250111

Northwood
Planning Application Ref: Scale
66134/APP/2012/718 1:1,250
Planning Committee Date A ¢
ugus
NorthPage 154 2013

™ILLINGDON

LONDON




Report of the Head of Planning, Sport and Green Spaces

Address LAND REAR OF 41 & 43 THE DRIVE NORTHWOOQOD

Development: 2 x two storey, 4-bed, detached dwellings with associated amenity space and
parking and installation of vehicular crossover (Resubmission)

LBH Ref Nos: 68458/APP/2013/1405

Date Plans Received: 29/05/2013 Date(s) of Amendment(s): 29/05/2013
Date Application Valid: 07/06/2013 07/06/0013
29/05/0013

North Planning Committee - 28th August 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 155



J{

'X353700IW
' JOOMHLYON * 3ATNG FHL £ LI¥ ANV

( TV @ 0027 _ ) Gopora o8s0 we)
- - Wi P I DO, e e )
i e/ele 103LIHONY

0T/58ZEfT pPo3oElN rm

\ s L,

[ g mmm )
woz ]

Sk

Page 156

O LTI

e £308) et bk

AIN




4 N

w00 T _ ) mam—
zr/z/or 1OILIHONY , i ‘X353700IW
:...mmﬁhhu.ilé posPeW rm JOOMHLYON " JAIYA FHL £F LV aANVT

E£7-9-£ panowad 7 Jod 0] a0Uiaal W ASY

<

e

wol wg o

T i0/d
SUOIEAS|T PUB SUB|d JOO|

EIM YInos I52M YioN

[ 0 m

_._W_ — =
] F9NN0T
¥ WOOYO3E [ Y ] H ” -
- T S 7
R, Tn  pec [ 0
M L n D...m.,r 1 ~—
NG — ‘,@._ L . AL >
) L | g
1A 1
£ woowaza ||~ = = Aanus — Dnla
1 NIHDLIN [l
— L u\ WOO¥IE —t ]
—| .D AL 1503 yroy 1563 neg
) wania [ k
) - Mg Bursey
- By AL
“Buipf

P i st soray
iy poans 1 4 3 PSS P 8 St




ZWB00T T 5.1 mam—
zr/z/or 1OILIHONY , i ‘X353700IW
FT7 5920 ...“..Mu.ilé posPeW rm JOOMHLYON " JAIYA FHL £F LV aANVT

wg 0

Z 10id
SU0jjeAS(3 pue SUEld J00[4

1503 ypoy

o S

ﬁ H_ Z WOOUaIF
| ] # WoOWa3a

I - L

Vasl
. | ( I 0
__ « m- i ﬁ E; R1u
ld@| - A A >
I“. Y \_ e w
= | & woowoae
1 AQIUS P
P |. Il NIHILIN
;8«3.._. _M mll (il
e e GunzeyB painsao »
vy S8
L—1 N ) O _”_ 1503 anos
) ﬂ Hawia L.

“Buyy

P i st soray
iy poans 1 4 3 PSS P 8 St




\\ £V @ 00Z:T ) R (010 W /
P s 701 VM Y OGN ARG U E
- eeelsr , LOSLIHOEY * GOOMHLYON \mmwzmw.qm.m“zmv 1v anvi
@] | POSIOR M
_— sy fevesf
——
wQl 0

NOILD3IS 3JLIS /3INFDS 13341S

L53M - LNJDSIHD TIONA

. ZLON
I 30/d pasodo.d Z 10/d pasodoid 89°0N

HBEd

(

Page 159

A pnciras dnmy snae
/ s e 1 LIRS S Eoog Sl




I 38

]

43 THE DRIVE

~ Page160

Rev C.
May 2013

@ CategoryB ik
@ CategoryC f 'w=
@ Category R

s Tree Protection Fencing

-~ [/ Scaffolding within
(s Tree Proposed for Remowal | o s Ground Protection

ot ———— Species
Category

Tree Fosilion Approximate
(ot shaw on ariginal survey)

the




Notes

Site boundary

For identification purposes only.

This copy has been made by or with

Services pursuant to section 47 of the
Copyright, Designs and Patents

Act 1988 (the Act).

Unless the Act provides a relevant
exception to copyright.

© Crown copyright and database
rights 2013 Ordnance Survey
100019283

the authority of the Head of Committee

Site Address

Land rear of
41 and 43 The Drive
Northwood

LONDON BOROUGH
OF HILLINGDON

Residents Services

Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1UW
Telephone No.: Uxbridge 250111

Planning Application Ref: Scale
68458/APP/2013/1405 1:1,250
Planning Committee Date

North Page 161

July
2013

™ILLINGDON

LONDON




Report of the Head of Planning, Sport and Green Spaces

Address GARAGES LAND ADJACENT TO 27 LEES AVENUE NORTHWOOD

Development: 2 x two storey, 4-bedroom, semi-detached dwellings with associated parking
and amenity space and enlargement of vehicular crossover to front, involving
demolition of existing garages

LBH Ref Nos: 69195/APP/2013/1310

Date Plans Received: 21/05/2013 Date(s) of Amendment(s): 21/05/2013
Date Application Valid: 05/06/2013 05/06/2013

North Planning Committee - 28th August 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 162



A 190, g 05 ! | ! ! !

prosub— euzolo s 9/e0s 0} JON "aJe BulpuNOLNS pue anuaAy s Buimoys dey  (sieneiu uwiog) 0
Pz o g rag
£ B 5025 = ’ N\ 1
uoid - h o ¢
aUrN PaY PUD XBJUOT) BJIS =
e Sl Bumoig =
Ajp1oog Y %..\
mmctou.ar_of_{ dising = ¥

ot (0gzL:L 9[eos) SOWY Ag paumo sawoy Jayjo pue a)ig .

3415 9BLUDS SNUSAY 5997 = A
|Dekand

" - N, |
AN O F|IIYIIDIEIY MMM 1M ’ - —— \,

AN O BB DIDIBIAYBID 13 //

106 £68 - 59810 4
006 £68 - 598101 ausaly]
= /

994 01 X0 "2uYspIoxQ
piouecal js uojApig SOWH Ag
pooy J3jsayaioq paumo pue| BYl10
HNOD SSNOH UCADIQ T

$12911Ud1V

19}S9Um

Bt POUERTD Aeeie) BN Bl 30D
199894 |0 o WEHAGOD BUI B SWINITD Bl
0N | ®mg | vomany

|PaiaL0d BUINO BYS SO0/LE Y

Fi

e,
Sy
/

(A

05Z1:1
0051
00z:1
0011
si0q 8|0os

" . B ™ It
! e R sl

® \ L3
1.-=“_-.|..l AN Lo 4
ES Ll ® : N
5 - 4 :‘.. e Poota tana)
3 e . iiw \

Page 163

3|3 %
EAREIREARE]
= | | N = N % M
B E| BTN : e
| B g . M, g
| ) / . :
A ./.f 5 s %
} < NPT i i
m LI L) ™, oz i
¥ - 8 o A 5 iy ik :
2 | nNu M = AT —
= ] : ; 5 s
= g & T LR 3iis
) > e . g f st .\\.. &
| & Feaer BELT iy IE o %
i ® o
) m 0 ~ 4 nn L i . »«
= T ik i s, O AL ; §
= - ot i R "
- - o L NS A o iF
2 g L T e 2 N &
- z v, PR AYEY. % :
N * ¢ ¥ & =
2 | Q e N y H \ % f
- AL S / ~ y :
*w T { ._.....‘& F
L
. e sz
i ’!e-ﬁg - J .‘. " \4.;-
.. J!’ L ] J...u. .“. .
22 ¥y — 7y \N\(mde
e - - 7 Py 1aaul 3
A Ao i
L .\ H
g T e i = L 3
i & .7 e : z
e N 4 L ; K i ol
r + - DML,
o ] | ] -
£ L) e i iy i




A4 200 SO0E1

| ‘o) Blipenig| ‘on aoF
Proay D £1/s50/20 i
PR g A umoi]

EVBO00C: | 8jo0g

Asnang Buisix
i mu.._._ Bamoig
Ajaiaog

abipyjoD jounyy disinyg &

dyany ‘anuasy saa1
a)ig aboIng anuaAy saa]
B0

AN'O25 2B |YDIDISISIY MMM 1M
AN OIS IBYYDIDIBSBYSIDW 13

L0& €68 - 59810 4
006 £68 - 598101
98L 0LX0O 2uYspIoxO
piouoal 'js uojAbig
ppoy Iajsalyaioq
HNoD asnoH uojAniqg g

$12911YdJy

191SoUm

Buiim uj POGBTIO AjBLaIS) FIapN Bl HIONYID
109534 J0 W0 [HBEAGOD SY) 5 USWNIDP 5L

SN [ sisa | ueial

Pasiagy 2uUl Py ET90°LT Y

o g0 P B 9 53
Q 41 PO B0 AU FORUCRTA AT
)




g ¥00 1S00E L

A ‘o m:__sb.d ‘op 9oF
proayD £1/z0/10 | L
P | O | A i)

EVBO0L:L BEag
uD|d 100l puUnos)
rap e i Bumoig
A@ioog
abnyon wounw disiny e
4

TSN ‘BUEAY 589
ajg ﬂmU_UmU anuUany 5837

AN EIBYYDIDISEINY MMM 1]
AN O EIBYOIBEIYSOW 3

L0& €48 - 59810 4
006 €468 - §9810 1L
994 0LX0 "siyspioxo
pibuoaT '} uojAniqg
ppoy Iajsayaiog
PnoD asnoH uojAbig g

§199114ydJy

19}SoUm

1ok

Buggam o) PRuBALO AJDuUS) STMUN Bl HR8EY N0
Sty o o BuAdos oy 5 uswN3op TL

uo|d UBpIDg pasiaBy  S0/E0 W
paoeuod abpe iy 90/E0 g

N

0s¢l-1

sI0q BJ0D5

AONYAINDS SY AINO Q38N 38 OL

300 P00 P B I 150
_,{1

“Poonan ubiD i S0 UomARI Ol NS
B UOHCUIIRE L PoROREa) 0 e mutinop

g a.rbu:qﬁn.bua_.s_.a._u;tﬁ_
e g e O P e v

Dy SR s ubsan my Duodan i

SIS TWIOSIH INVIINDS
0 SIEOM SEINDNSI0 © 008 NOUVINDTN WD
SAON WD

woo'o9
BEE]

NI
f
ﬂ|,

_ ﬁ
00 FTE™ 2P0

100|4 punousg) ¢)

> |
segaplox g
I ]

-

L X 00€Z
uoiisod
Jamous

aimny

Page 165




g 500 SOOEL _ (sjertaqul wps) _
A0y apy Bupaoig | ‘op gor 0

wh”ﬂzuu £1/z0/10 s OO_.. : _1 _.\\\ ~0

L s L]

HOWL e ue|d Joo|4 }sii4 L,

ouay Bupsixg

uD|d HOOH J5i
= B |.._a.._.— Bugmcug

A@io0g

sboyon Jounw dising A

dysny ‘SnuUaAY SeT
alis @BDIDg) anuaAy saa7
1780y .\.. o
HN'ODSIIBYYDIDISSIL MMM I i
A0 D S|IBYYIIDISSBLE]DW 1

LO& E£48 - 59810 4 ; “sK) | ssnoy paq ¢
006 £68 - 598101 Z 101d 1 101d
D8£ 0LX0 "24yspioxO o7
piouoaT js uojhnig r ; 7 v v
pooy 1ajsayaioq Y o A o2
HnoD asnoH uojAnig 7 i —— ==

asnoy paq ¢

dwey Bugsixg

_
'__
|
|

|

o— — - ; —
P— ' | — — ,].«.L - y L [ I el | =
S12a11y3ly I _ _mm_o_k&.ﬁm { } m?:.@mm%

191SoUm || E— T e W |

i 1 | e
1| | Oviy x059¢ | I | Ovl¥ x 0598
Buum 0 Aousiey 500 Py HIBRYIE — HEE—— b T e
prerip b gl oo I ﬂ Eoohwumm 71 B R Z W

Ll a1 S . = o ipag | |

Uoi ueping peReY. 2000 Ty | _ ﬂ_ —— i : i = | i
pejosuon oBps iy FO/E0 g - - = ==} i 1 ___” l |

e

T f— P 1 M

J_... = e & =4 e
\\ __mw__ = _ﬂ_\ /
L \lgelt man ov61)) M
w\m O w\w FJ.. o .._
. P ———IN o

I

0051
00z:1
001:t

&

SI0q BIOoS

]
Page 166

| | = _H..____ \ H”___._ _._..|I. |
| flbrzex ovee | F 0905 X 090€ 0g0s x090g ||| Jovee x dioz :Ho.u.oﬁmw]. G wm
| |_¢ wooipag |y wooipeg || | wooipeg | wooupag || ¥/ wooipeg|| ¢ wooipeg || L’

FDONYAIND S¥ ATNO Q3SN 38 OL

Binyty A B PuUC BOgd] UOHSNmICD
5 DR B P Apriaa B U
P s g B9y oo g famons) iy

Bupaa o) Buomiaes .
3 2 B TUpn Tyonscs A T
SPUCIER AN SO0 BRIOS US M SANERRIH !
PUD RSO BRI DIOAD O DSID

BAD S IMILEY R e ubsan py) Bussdud u)

SAELY TGN INVINDS
WO SO SBNDERD | 008 NOUYTITOSN WD
SALON WOD




4d 900 |SO0EL
_heml  onBumody)ongor
PAoays £1/Z0/10 s
Pepsio] g Agvne]

EV®00l:lL a5

upi|d Joo,
._n_ e il Bumoig

Ajg1oos
sBoyon sounw dising i

dyny ‘anuasy sae]
ajis aB0IDD anuaAy $987
_izeRy
HA'OD SYIBYYDIDIDSEY MMM I
HN'OEISHYDIBTAYS|DW 1]
LO& €68 - 598104
006 £68 - 98101
98L 0LX0 2uyspIoxO
pioucaT ‘js uojAnig
pooy 1ajsayaioq
HnoD asnoy uojAoug

PEALw|

$12911ydiy

191SoUm

| B uy pastisse Agguisy siamn B HSRID
183504 j0 Wom (NOPEATGOD Su) 51 UIWINIOP SY)

L [ Sia Tucened
UDld USPIDD PRSIABY  QOVED Y
pajosuos sbps ey 90/E0 g

00 MOjaq aull IOM

Aoy

_ (s1ersaqul EEan

0oL:L [/

L 101d

0STL:L
005:1
00¢g:1
00L:1
sinq 30os

FONVAIND SY ATNO Q35N 38 OL

3 :
H H
i 1
H 3
H H
i }
H 1
H 3
i 3
H i
. .
H :
H i
1 i
: :
i 1
i :
H 4
. -
ALY .
R PONERPPURLL ¢ :
. :
3
/ :
™ M

R
% A
M .
N :
\ 1
/ :
s
H
H
i
3

T U el it o~ .c.........c:.........u

AR P AL DO BeCop S L
i 4 1A 4

V{0 UBOD s 6 LS 04§38

9994 A8 AN B O RIS
S0 LI S UCTOR Ara TRAMDD 1)

G Bl 0 BT

ity A B S BOgd] UOHSNmICD

5 BUp B P dpriaa B Proun
) i3 PN 06 O PO 1 Bpmarsy B

Bupena o) Buomaes
300 BusrOAsw BUsn Bayonmio Ak
SEICTIN @Y FIN03 B0 (M SanbAnca
PUD RSO B DIOAD O DSID

BADH L IILY Re ubsen sy Bustdeid u)

SELY TGN INVINDS
WO SO SBNDERD | [00F NOUYTITOSN WD
SALON WOD

ue|d jooy -

b

=

D —

i




b

€10 SOOEL

g "o Bumoig | “ow or
P29 D eL/so/1e s

PRSUT O | Ao

LY @ PoIDAPUI Y pn

suoyDASS SIS Buysig
@ Gupnoig

Aeinos aBooD Jounw disiny

L)
dysing anussy tea]

ays aboins anuaay 887
el

A0 SDIDUYDIDIDEIY MMM T
'O 5|IBYYDIDIBEAYGYOW 33
104 E68 - 9810 4
004 £68 - 59810 1L
D8L 0LXO "Mysplofx0
PIDUDST 'j§ uojAoug
pooy saysioq
Hnog asnoy uojdoug 7
pai Wl

et (=
4+ 4T 4 A

$123114dIV
.i-zﬂm.‘)hzgouz_br‘!—\_us:ﬁ
SHON wog oAy

e POV PO BLaMOip 61 LS
Q iy popBsiaiay S0 SO0 IGRRTH SONTLOY

WO LR Sl

0 A G SIS ) LORTAIOY il ‘DGO
L Ao s

INCAGD B Ty ARNET S0 0NN B O) GRRIDRUOS

0 2Ry S J0HguCes Aug) B s

L0 UMNE USYOUCH Oy A4TH0K 3106 $3500 350U

BN S |0 BIUBIICA

e s BUBD Pt BOvd UDFINAHOS

Sy Bunp oyt U0 DRIt AFYEUDD 90 EN0UL

DD 0 PAURSD B0 J0u P00 By Buwopoy oy

Bpea i BURKIAIOD

S35 ToTIOB3N LNVIUINDIE
HO SELON SHINDGIA - 2002 ROBYINSE WO

TA0N WOD.

00S L
ueld suoneas|g Bunsixg

14

(sierssyun wuwigs) 0

_ _ _ _ _ _ _

WILUS UIYiM O} paINSDaW 94 UDD pub sA2AINS UDDS I9SD| |DUOISUSWIP ¢ 9}DIND2D AI9A 310 sabpwy aAaogp 3yl 310N

00L:| o|eos

sebeleq) buioey
- UONBAS|T 1SESULON

®

00L:| e|eos

$8SNOH padelia] bupey
- UONeAd|T 1SeMUIN0S

Page @

00L:| o|eds

UONBAS|T 1SOMULON
- oljens|g 1ea1S bunsixg

®




£00 SO0E1

A oy Bl | ‘op QOF
PioayD £1/z0/10 i
=) B A i)

£ © PIODIPUISY oo

| suohoA=3
il Bumoig

Aje100s
sBoyon sounw dising &
RNy ‘BnuasY Sae]
ajig abBoIDn anuay s8a7
el
AN OD BB YD IDIBSILY MMM T
W' OISy IDIBSBYE|IDW 13
LO& €468 - 59810 4
006 €68 - S9810°L
O8L 0LX0O "21YspIojxO
pipuoal °js uojApig
pooy lajsaysioq
HNoD asnoH uojAniqg g

$12311ydJV

191SoUm

Buigim uf poubyts AowIcy 1N By 5 ..u.o
19304 10 o (4BRAGO 991 H uSLIN

:—OI l
— | ot |t | - | WA
S EHERE
&38| 18| &
= o

o
o

o T\

K& K K0
g1
e e —
000E
ADNYAIND S¥ ATNO Q35N 33 OL

sasnoy BuunogyBrau
Jo jyBiay jooy

(sieassjun wiwosg) 0

1

00L -1

UoneA3|3 SO YHON -

00Z:L [/
uoneAs| }9a4S

oor_FW\Wx
:o_um?.n._m_ JSO9M ynog  ©

Page 169N )

]

4

)




800 S00€1 [

hey| oy Buiwoig)| ‘o qof
poayDd £1/z0/10 1. (sfensepur wuigg) 0

[ g g
eV ®O0L: L R

. i

T suoloasg o : OD« —. N

faos uoneAa|3 yseg yuoN - °©
aboyon Jounw dising & 1

dyEny ‘BnuBAY S99
a5 @BoInn anuaAy saa7
_iosiand
AN OD S DBYDIDIBIESLY MMM
AV OB IIDIBSBYBHOW J
106 £68 - §9810 4
006 £68 - S9810°L
98, 01X0 "2iyspiojxQ
piouoa] “js uojAoig
pDoYy 1ajsayaiog
HNoD asnoH uojAniqg g

$12311YydJy

19}SoUm

oszi:l
0051
00z:1
00L:1
SI0q 3|0os

Page 170

0Lk [
uoneAa|g yse3 yinog -

IONVAIND S¥ ATNO J35N 38 OL




A 400 S00EL

A8 op Buweny | 'on Qor

PA2auD £l/zof 1o | 8

£V © PBIDIIPUISY 5o

SUDIDBS )
oL Buwoig

Asoos
aboyoD Jounw diisiny
dEny 'BnuasY 5551
ajis aboiog anuany s887
i2aiaud
AN ODEYIBHYDIIDISSIY MMM M
A0 SIIBYIDIBLBYE|DW 1
LOé €68 - 59810 4
006 €48 - 598101
98L 0LX0 "3NYspioxO
pipuoal 'is uojAnig
pooy Iajsayaioqg
HNoD asnoH uojAniqg Z

._. _ u |J | /_____

_ouﬁmor_l

Buyun uj pasBIID ABIc) o Bl 1
19454 §0 w0 pBEATOT 4] B JUSLINH

e @m0 |
uD|g USRIDG pasaay  SO/E0 W

005+ L €
saui uopdasg

T

m

e[
el

SELE]
S

weun) |

oov“w__N,
9snoH ybry - Z uondag

S EIET

ajis juauung

00L -1
9SNOH 91 - | uondag

y

(siessjun wwog) o

Page 171




) 1SO0E1

g ‘o Buimoig | on 907
paoeys £1/Z0/10 | =
| pezenic iy | A ]
oLl opEag
saalDadsiag
L -E
Aaoos
sBoyon jounw dising 5
dany ‘anuasy 5587
ayis aboing anuany saa
| o]

A OD L IBYDIDIBIESY MMM I
HA'OI LIS IICIBISBLS|OW I

L0 €68 - 59810 4
006 €68 - §98L0 'L
D8L 0LX0 "3NYspioxO
piouoaT ‘s uojAnig
pooy 1ajsaysiog
HNoo asnoH uoAnig g

$13911ydJyV

19}S9oUm

Bupua u) pouBiiio Aouwisy e P 3By NS
193594 j0 w0 GBEAIOT G T USLINIOR 3L

ign

| siea Tucwimay

Q MR PO PUD B Sy) 0

ey UEOD DU O USRI O {34ians

Sl TSN INVOLINDS
SO SUON SHINDEX] | 005 NOUYTITO3N WD
SHLON WOD

(e)
V 8sSnoHy ¢

/
pEOJ WO} SASNoY Jo MaIA &

Page 172

1)
M3IAJPaNS ¥




pajeAajd uapieb Jeay V 9SNOH woJj onjed

By 5591

ajis aboios anuaay

ANODS|IBYYDIDIBESY MMM
HAOI LB IICIBILBLE)

LO& €68 - 598104
006 €68 - §9810 L
D8 0LXO 2uYspIoxO
piouoa s uojhnig
pooy 19)sayaioq
ynoD asnoy uojAoug

$12911Yd1y

_oﬁoﬁ_l

V 9SNOH Jo uapJes) Jaddn | g 9SNOH - M3IA UBpJES) Jeay




V | cHzAeN | VOORSLITEN0E

<

) PAANN i 3

woosegdessnrAA 789108 £OYL0 293 189198 EY10 L
dH} 10 *aung Buwepon ‘yeass eBpug ‘B 3414 ‘sems PO BL

S

==
As—/

o) |m
-
m
|

/ ‘ﬂﬂl

; )
N7V
N )2

¥
i




(sjena

MUl wwipg)

=5 £00 SO0
Ry "o Gumoig | ‘oM Gof
Poayn £1/50/20 i
pevm woadaumog
£V @002 1 2005
ajoa2 Buiun; puD 2§15 J0 UDjd
Bl 9_-?@0
&w_uom
abojos ouow dising =
4

sy anusny 387
315 s6DIDG anuaAy 5887
ool

IV OD'EIBYYIITISTIY MMM R
O HDBYIDIB|SaYEOW 13

L0é €68 - 59810 4
006 £68 - §9810 °1
984 0LX0 "aiyspioxo
pioucal ‘js uojhoig
pooy 13jsaysiog
HnoD asnoy uojAnig Z

$19911ydJV

191SOUm

" Buppi uf PouDED AIDLL) S19n B 208U |
1B 0 Ardm ayBuidod Syl h MEWA3OR Y|

(L o | uernasl

sunid UapIng papuswy 90/E0
SUDBUSWID
JBADSIOID BIDMSA 90/E0

Pasiha aUl| pay E1°90°LZ D |

5 & 8 |5

$I0q 20D,

FONVAIND SV ATNO a3s5N 38 Ol

0R Doty P By
A”u g Dol S KRR SOPHOITH AN

Y5 BN B8l 10 LOHAR O |

...-__3.._ s e
sz

il B Bt s A5 89 Bt
B0 110 PO 00 U PG 1 S0y B4

Eismang sy BouosTiEwD

op 1 By Bu TaUED B
BADY B0 100 BT 1) Bupeaa 1

AT TWIHONSIH INV DRI

O SHION SHINDITAD | 008 NOUVINDTY WD
FAUON WID

wuig/g g

_ | 00zZ:1 _‘_ !

ueld ..m>ommo._o ._m_:o_c@>

_,,/ ﬂﬁ/

sanew bsgpel |
ealy Uspies

sanaw bsg 0z

Page 175

L)

|ulT qIay
pasodoid

Aepunog a)s

auI qlay bunsix3g

AemybiH
pajdopy




v £10 SOOEL
L ‘o Bupoio) ‘on qof
PAoayD £1/1E/50 Joyy| ————— OON . _.. \..u a3
panaa | Rt ) ¥ - . Y
______ e . “ Jajowelp )unJy X Z| 1e pajewisa snipel Jool 9al| (L)
£ ® 00T L o 4 ! : . . 1 |
/ oy Aanng @au)] 7
Aanng as1) H ooy v
L Bumon] H @ — . |
Al@ioos D8Iy UOHIBIDI4 1008 ———————A ‘oid N
aboyon louow dising % : & |
o4 . {
it ‘Bnusay 5981 __ _.__
ays abniog anuaay saa
%o
A0S DBYYDIDISSIY MMM TN T S T ._._
AN OIS 2IDISSSYSE(IDW 13 ZL0Z:268558 01 mr__u_.._um -~ 5 [
106 €68 - 598104 U090 881] JO U] f g s
006 £68 - §9810:1 . : ) Tl ol R
984 0LX0 "2uyspiopo ; T ] / WILOOK ”o._n_ yuniy
piouoal “js uojAoig . / [ PRyt
/ MM - 5 881)
pooy i1ajsayaioq i - " °
HnoD asnoH uojAniqg Z e Wgooe  HuBieq !
2231 WOy cpossds z
a1y W01 “o1g Auni \
S H U = .._. _. : J J < e _._m.D_.:.::UI -geay ’.’
l— O Hv m O F|_. LULLO00F ..”,Em_m.:._ - u....f...l o _ /
WLQooy  poexds = o e = { )
o hy e g g o ! —
v T [ty Ausyg-g s, ! /
pasingl au|| PRy ET90°LE W
wweooy  uBien
W0y poauds
WLgQ] ig Yuny
B#pa - y 931]
e ©
\E %90/q € U0 pajunow Erm&__/ﬁ_m (q
= - i o
wuwigoo  uBiBH ©
wigope  posids o
WWgG| ol junu)
isp3 - § @911
wuwigope  HuBleH
WWIgooE  ‘poexds
WLnD| (oI Auni)
snjdAipong - | 8a1) =
.__....
"y .m.
/
G b ™ :
Lizéh DY U SO0 SAOLAIDN APDINFD -3
! YR ISR Bl 16 LOAAI 0| 0k -. /
1 : e piogeos EpLEIS 9
(wg'g yidep wnwiuw) 2:n235 pun puncib sy} ojul usaup siybudn G
Sy AUD B Pus ToRKd LOSSUBI0T J . {3 pUnoiS b
i B0 04t 0 BRI ke o D / : / / S3I) BIM LM SIaqs-$s0:0 pue sjyBudn o) paindas saueg e
" S - ~ / X o siaued jyul ysaw papjam pue aqn) pasiuened g wz sbined feay z
365 10 B ADAIDUL T UGS [Rtg / T / £804 PIOYEDS PIEPUELS ] !
ey re e oy
Sy Y Dy LSaen 1y Bupoded i f i
o S S o itk uonoajosd 321} 1o} Jauseq anoziaid Joj uoneayoeds Jinejap - z ainbld 21022685 S8
SHION WA




,
S
IE
/&
el

Lodge

Pine Tree

Trees AN S~

Notes

Site boundary

For identification purposes only.

This copy has been made by or with
the authority of the Head of Committee
Services pursuant to section 47 of the
Copyright, Designs and Patents

Act 1988 (the Act).

Unless the Act provides a relevant
exception to copyright.

© Crown copyright and database
rights 2013 Ordnance Survey
100019283

Site Address

Garages adjoining
27 Lees Avenue
Northwood

LONDON BOROUGH
OF HILLINGDON

Residents Services

Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1UW
Telephone No.: Uxbridge 250111

Planning Application Ref: Scale i
69195/APP/2013/1310 1:1,250 {,g :
Planning Committee Date A ¢ :ﬁ '!t‘
ugus == 3
North Page 177 o013 | THILLINGDON




Report of the Head of Planning, Sport and Green Spaces

Address LAND REAR OF 81-93 HILLIARD ROAD NORTHWOOD

Development: 2 x two storey, 3- bed detached dwellings with associated parking and amenit)
space, involving demolition of existing material shed, office building and
material storage shelter.

LBH Ref Nos: 64786/APP/2013/1434

Date Plans Received: 31/05/2013 Date(s) of Amendment(s): 31/05/2013
Date Application Valid: 06/06/2013

North Planning Committee - 28th August 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 178



T L ELATHE BT HEVBIR) DRIV

W R ey e e e

Y04 MY
TAVLS] e 7000 B0
SITOCEY NXEI0 KISR0

D404 D U4 i,

Eﬁ:mwﬁgﬁ
OVOH OHYTTTH £6-18 40 BYZH DY) oo

3._.5....3m.5.
SWSO0Ed TURNY K. tmens

s IS wees

sopasen feymd puaceai e | Al ¥

weye 37v318

§sii:l 37¥15 NY1d NDILYIODT

EXI1N

ags onpede

R S S TR S
TR

ORITITORINY T

| T
i R
LR TV FETRIT TG

\

/JE__E__D Lo

ARV W b Eoarid
Apn panoe fsneadst
susfian o w0

B PR
&4 qued s Boys

YOy o4vi77)4

ABa|Rap by Lo

. ;

-

/In.ai_ Bugsoa

g DB A5y o=

i) 017yl g i 3 Uy et
Tuig eae UaoueS o =T

i T
g 8
gt b o e ey —

ity

stupmais deoys wibes s

PaisEp anigh des
=gt e phodad
TRA
s oy wgg b
#Sese)s a1l wepaeb pasodesd -
ten Bt s el

e
Py oo Byt Sus:
e unogs aeags
R e pasdad
SRR DR A3 pavedesd

Banpeqia [asays afers Bugtps.

("
il
_ _ _ ® _ //ﬂl&.x.‘- Burgnd
u J Bt g 0f v et 0 Sugsine
P ) Sy
I
g b
i Bl a passtod
]

rﬁ b
4, ml.Ju_ nﬁ
e (B .

. (-]
- it i
1 o)
alge | ol 46

1

wiep o
uapai y ol 0 wary

| afieseys apki
oy paseied

ol =N
T N e
ik ane) r1 ey L R 34 g a5 Sd

hhalﬁh.h_s ~ugjing By AR pasatid

LT

Bty Sejna

/
: L]
q.! R b

it Ripasiey whsap wenn sdalde ()
13 e B 13 § ]

— e —

mave 31v25

0L (IS S E 41 PRI P8 Faie o 5| v el s
sancrawns Bl #1043 BRERR3- 70 35 o) Byt mejie WA BT
TH6L L g SE4E S0 & Baon s pee )

Faje jod) veseay
Eme f Broung pran oy BAjRIISURL M PHIEIL 390 L SPAIA SRCONAY

sl 5647 55 o1 B iy
pasias usepe Seas poe pagan g of b (Uasy Tewemen: Buped sapg
DAY PR I BREANIOS O IR FACINT (0 5 DRI M & NS

YIRS A S5, 090 BIT SN SVIIP G0 39 SAGC AMUTY ARST

IF Srky i) et Bl |0 YA e Rk DREROE Jiin B

200 DAENEITI 30 0 339q BUSA: RIS 1AL T §0 S T O el P
“aunsagio g or 0 Sadless guaq) (e gin £10ae G paghins saa
1640 | 108 SRS 9 myx BRI T3 o WS E-0E 18y i)
3 Fan SSHL BRGSO DRSS 3 0 Al ma gy
BEITIE UEA NURANIE W g BRUA B oy Lmatat buessaty

KOILY¥]i21)3d5 3dYISONY

HursR el SHEIUNE (116 YOR AREDRIN 9
RS LOIENSSar) IR AN DO 0] 0F Sdaetias)

“abishol Bigeoend e Pl 05 0 SRy
i) 6 RRb-art 330100500 U2 kSRS Mo oab e BsRL-3

ayefaiBSe panel mar-g uo avtguin THIGI1070 50 pots datgs wspy €0 pipgy
SIRRG 330907 SRR AP 1A SRS PR PGS 3 01 SR

NOITL¥IT4133d5 AYMIANIHO

Sagerpl sy
e bunod sa008 sy) Bang a3 0 Jasun oo demys Bessly

ARG e e RSt N P o T g paades
[asimean Fanask o Bagundan)

[43) Punsb ATG GRS PR Bt 3c STl B Bepui
Siness Burin Liodeng o E-HE debay €40 Vi) Dt IS By
NEOILYII413345 ONENYLS 3341

Page 179

MY L3I0 DNIAVLIS 3341

s g e ek 1

sk e 12 v
g e T B T
b i

S L B R
b e e =
0 1 R |

i




AP BTN G WS008 1 IR

:-m.n 32 S:E -.v—lh -.Inl‘-x

WA

s e ﬁu_o

KI5 480
Rgaan
YWD S
VGl HIm

TAVIST v J5004 S00W

SAUYO0SSY NXSHE X0

D404 0 "W

54 9¥H “X3STI00W ‘D00MHLHON

OV0Y CHYITI €618 40 B3 DNV et

SNOILYATS ONY SN H00TH
L L0 STSDAR VY s

whs g | woespag wsiad 7
|

whs m.wm woaspaq uoslad |

sjuamaanbal eaue Joojy [eusajul woaiw FjEN

whs 58| jpibuss) £ wooupay pasadoy
whs 7| (jbus) 7 woodpaq pasodesy
whs g{[9nop) | wooipaq pesadodq

whs g swoasyeq pasodoly
whs gg|  fump 7 Buw) pauguo)
wbs gon Gupamp pasodosg

(eade eusagu ssef Sy IMY 40 3IIAO03IAIS

a4 by

e byl w130 e

B U R
gt Bugimigan e
£ ety Wit 4%y

) 4 bepwy b

i

hizasee 0 0 i

ROILYA3TY ¥vV3d

mBzE LG

i Bt g
s by R s,

s Bt byt s4nod

P 8y
mrhle iR iy ) 4] KR e
T SR I AR 3 8

e ke Lttt B My T
gy pem o Bupamy g peees

Fasast 12 Y4 R
RS i e
v ey gt g

h

e A P 0] A e

B b L
el assge Lusts o iy s
s i e g A RS

. sl 5oy g
g B e
sy Bttt (5

i1 sagepesey ubnay wena (lulde (5)

MEve 31v15

o
(c0]
—
()
(@)
Q)
o

o vt e 8 o

O 8 TR 1




T e p— R ——
[ iswem e e k|

Myve 31vI1S

N¥Td 80074 [5dTd

I .Mn ﬁzg .SQZ—EG.: . | whs (| |wonapag uossed 7
| 0¥0K DBVITI £6°18 20 4Y3Y 0N ) whs 59| wosapaq uessad |

SNOLLYAZTS ONY SH¥Td 4004 | UGS BIJE J00)) JLIB whwNE TTEN I - — 7 =1

| 1107 STYS040HS THINNY Y s
[ome| AW et i —— ; i 0
BRIQE W W b 5o[ ) € onge psofrg
(LA AT Sl AL, 5 ] :
W g | | whs 2| Pius) 7 woospaq pasedolg o | () i I
whs g1 {faignop) | woaupaq pasodosg g ¥
whs g Swonyjeq pasololg ] £
whs ggl  Buwp g Buw| pauqeoy
wbs gt funpamp pasodouy s — |
(eae eusyui ssoaf] SY 34V 40 3IN03IAIS L |
ik *
Fuuste NOII¥A313 3018 prunsite 18 NOILYA313 INO&A4 S ¢
WA i s Bapnean ; ™~
el bl el n WL b T i sya by et - in sy ey s 165 ['e)
—
o o S [0}
st o ey g
©
S PN BTN L4 TN o
e e o g By | £
I
v i bt | ;s
i
sl e vy 938y 0 ey
e G 5V P
rede dume Lumien o pin) S
0w oos 4 fogaeas o paaejg —
it dioeyy heayL0 wessry
o peivg _..:-_ﬁu_w_zn WOILYAI13 3015 .
bk ﬂ-.‘-. el ARG D DA B Janudde 52
A PR o bugieaue
upm g Bacey wais i
/ TN~ .
Ay dugiea it pasidtg. wrnd bt i) & i et b‘l_z_.
i s 1 4

w4 have) HOEYL0 ——— . 1o a3 w0120 Woedpag T et e

g e i o i ik
o P 48 T




YTOIHISOP MMA m _n__ m N

yroryasnp@ogu 13

S3LVII0SSY NDIS3D H35nd

€018 60 2L [ | _ _ I |

(W) ¥vg 31¥IS

L=

._ 0404 9 YW

) ( [{ wumedp

4/Td/851

:ou Buimeap

151 9YH X3S3700IW ‘TOOMHLYON

Fé

SIWOH JWILIIT

OV0Y OYYITIH €618 40 HVIS ONVT poiors

{81 S107d STYS0d0td ININNYId Bumesp

NY1ld 40074 1Sdld

e

Il
rsc__

Buipue;

[A3] Jo00]} PaySIUILY 3ADQE WWYZ| PUB WUIGH
UBAM|3 PaKI} 5134305 pUB SBYIYIMS [BIILIRN

1343] J00}d PAYSIUI{ BAOGE LIW WWQRE S|I? MOPUIM

553238 Jo 3sea buipinosd ‘wooJyjeq 3jqissane uy

p47 sagepossy ubisag yasng Jybuidey (3

ysioy yaeay Buyad Joj uorsinodq
@ 11lieys 3anyny 4o Buiiy Jog 3geqins Jiejs
@

®

sjied ydoddns Jo Buixiy Joj 31geyins syem IM

JBMOUS iIM IM J007) punoJE a)gissande Jieyajaaym

€07/ €0/ T =0 | €Y 00):) @

NYT1d 40074 ONNOYD

a2eds Buin| (aas) anuedqul
sease Buuip g Buips-adeds woyeinaun

J3JaWelp wwQQs) -Jeyjaaun Jo Buuang Joj ajgesns Ajeulaju saseds

suoiyeinbay Bupying | Jed jo sjuawasnbas yim
3IUBPJOIIR U] SSAIIR JIBYD|FIYM Joj 3|GEJINS YIPIM Joog

B

Jsejyeadq

® & 9e

1343] 89 0} SS3238 pue yued Jed udamjaq deds buysed ey

SS3238 |2A3] 3ABY 0} B3R FIUBJIL]

S3JUBJUT |IB 0§ YIeoJddy
Bupsed woyy ssadze fsea pue

sJieyIjaym Ag asn
Joj 33eds ajenbape yym papinoud Bupyieqd g3

e e

SIWOH MIN NIHLIM 0301A0Y8d

SITLITIIVL IWOH IWILIAI

Page 182




e A drds BT L 14 EAD0

Cnn sk i k|

i

AUYIST MY 38004 M0
SIM0SSY NS0 T

0404 0 W

ey
| 15 9 NISTIOOM ‘DOOMALEON
| OVOM OAVITIH €618 40 HY3H ONYT e
SINIDS L3IS 0350608 3 NILSDE

WRE M
RN W g B

AL P
BRABRLITALLG W Bt
A A RN
ey s W

.\..). Alr//

LV

STl TV
JLIS 40 ¥YV3I¥ HONOUH! 3IN3IIS 13IYLS 035040Hd
Pt ot -
W S ey sl l?,._u__h..a. i!oi}f_.u_ ”_u e
P 6 ] o o b L
i i
L
-4 Bt e
L T
MR A R B
oSS o
§TiT 11vis " —
3115 40 ¥¥3¥ HONOHAHL 3INIIS 13F¥LS ONILSIXI i Bapes e e

231 sy wbsag wrsng jululds) (@
o ] § i 4 [

_— e

myve 31¥38

7 DYRELTEL AR Y
Pkl o gl e
v shanie} o1 Rets

=

N6 T Iy ssa

/

i

£
Page 18

L& o)

o
o s

AT
W

T boeq by

Py et r——

B 1 g




U153 W A0H Hom
sabvnossy w3 |

0804 9%

o

| 754 94 Y35TI00 DODMALEON

'0Y0H GHYITIH €699 40 BY3 ONY) s
| (SMAIN ¥Y2H) SIS L3305 03504084
STYS0c08d DHNNYId tenes
| 1§ sme 811413 = bt |
(B0 Qo ] WS e
| b | | )

3

SNIDYUYD BVIW E6L8 HOHd MIIA 03504084

P41 magmassty uhimag yasng pyfiéo) )
g 9 i i (]

[HEYE 37¥IS

Page 184

P L 2 T

VD 2 A0 v |




] avar| '© o DAV
2102 TNy i 1w goast S
ONILSIXG ¥
A3AdNE LIS
3L
81 SH
QoomHLE0N
a0y QuviTH €6-18
11
@17 S3LIVIOOSSY NDIS3M A3SNd
INAID

WoIsAannSpunune
worsdansnsgunoaBgamy yoa
OBESBY 82910 3

00258k 82910 4

Nd& 975
L
UDaE woyMDOD
aun) Guisds
WDy SOUTIROON
olss Siiun

Backasins Buissius § puty

” py sAaninspunolb
AB O3LIAENS

S310N
o SR R | "
swend | W ]
wwas e | 45 | e m
- Bt B
e (3
s S fwE
vl ot ©
RS bk ik v &
L L
0 e rHE
EHITD AIANT TRCHD — STIATT
RONESIY T THCILLW AIAENS TANNDAD - D183
Wieg

HOELVIAINEY. IV IS PSR

UUECER

114 0 g 0 5 0

— e

{u} yvg 3925

Page 185

(N30 ATiEYd)
HILTIHS JDVECLS TIHILYH




1] - T CYOR BT WSt DA

i e e e i s 291 sagenassy wbisag wasng jufiudde ()
WK Do ez ey g pad |
Lk o)
g © MEYE 31918
ENIEE D L
WT5 480
FowEn
YA W
vl EIa
ALVISS WEY4 35008 M0
savoossy wosae s |l
0u04 9 W ) CSTTITYIS TROKVT OTITS
| 15 9vH STI00N 0OMHLEON
| 00U DHYITIH €6°18 40 HY3Y ONY] ot |
NYTd SHHOM LIS 1
STYSOA0HA ONNNY T ames
. - e Q8Y 11114
L3 eey|  Jditsl ks
| Ba/En e W g e
shibowy |\ e |
ON3T3T SHHOM ABYHOAWIL
©
[ee}
—
(0]
(@)}
0]
o
3 15,
Bng a3 dane B
e TS 4
ORI (R &
L
l-u.ﬂ-...‘illl‘!-uﬂl_
e v
Pt e ey ey
[yl Ly e
oyl L L
et o i ) Fgr B By
gy ol Loy’
Bt v T S By o
T

s wp v et

e =

g B 0 1 e 1 |




Site boundary

For identification purposes only.

This copy has been made by or with
the authority of the Head of Committee
Services pursuant to section 47 of the
Copyright, Designs and Patents

Act 1988 (the Act).

Unless the Act provides a relevant
exception to copyright.

© Crown copyright and database
rights 2013 Ordnance Survey
100019283

Land rear of
81 - 93 Hilliard Road

LONDON BOROUGH
OF HILLINGDON

Residents Services

Northwood Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1TUW
Telephone No.: Uxbridge 250111
Planning Application Ref: Scale
64786/APP/2013/1434 1:1,250
Planning Committee Date Aals
August 1 44ILLINGDON

North Page 187

2013

LONDON




Report of the Head of Planning, Sport and Green Spaces

Address LAND ADJACENT TO 1 ST CATHERINES ROAD RUISLIP

Development: Two storey, 4-bedroom, detached dwelling with associated amenity space anc
parking and installation of vehicular crossover to front involving demolition of
existing garage and amendments to existing vehicular crossover
(Resubmission)

LBH Ref Nos: 33892/APP/2013/1337

Date Plans Received: 23/05/2013 Date(s) of Amendment(s):
Date Application Valid: 28/05/2013

North Planning Committee - 28th August 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 188



R Shyeeety USmag wiesg i) (3

5L W - e
IWOLS 35N ONY 3TIAD
£ z i ] i
HI .H....u ,..Ju Ly SY3HY 035EVED
[w] 4v8 315 ,\f.alfv,

oo __._ T b_ T T o
Y152 HYS TSO0H 00 L1 0 ] ] 5 ] T \ AHHIHD DRERMOT ~ WL VISHIS SN
M OB S0 L A i g — e — Ay

Iy ajasur i
e wna a5 3y 1 e f2ad B [} §¥8 IS AT
HIAT B 8 : TR TSR T TG T : i
- 0571 3T¥I5 - NOILYAZT3 301S 05 11 JIVIS - HOUYAITE INOWS 002 © 1 WIS o T T o
B = 3HOLS 35N434 ONV 31340 0L 35N434 DNV 3134 N¥Td LNOAYT 3LIS 0350404 =5

; AL 9¥H A3STI00M 'ISINE /A\N b=
Y08 S3GEHLO L O OL (0¥ O onc e s o T e wsis pajegoss Sun
NYid NOLLYIOT ONY. £n0AYT 3LIS _ 30n) 8] wesp J3|en oy pasedesd ' v | T ) PR 3 3 W) G 14 S 8 0] 15 AT SR0-D0G bR

DO DUE JMEEERI) TRAGMAD BT 8 YEATIE Butme pasatbegn pur 13 w0y B TR BN W SRRy

gg.& faup | SHEVEE S - DT T

Hwwe| U/EAIL s
[ £/ 50/ B A —.q___:swnﬂal_
_ ».32*.__ ;5_.!_.
T

BRanta) ey i) gas
DA U pA} B3 Of 52 pasodesd

el T L]
Hr sneus € ) SRl PRI
Autind o) o g by @ AN pey 8g 0)
Lapereg ey bonr b pasedesd

et wepiages bundad e
9050 pesedaud Sajepn Fae PaIiRy

ON3D3T DNIdYISONYT

9 0) PayitR untys d6ee8 Bl TU62 "LESSE 404 AOAPRIN o |08 PRANT 39 8y w0 0]

NOISSIWENS BNINNY1d

S SdVTSSEE i
H STl AL ||}JV.... Bty Japn pasastde S gaasmal areaea Gjueld axjag payaedest-ap aq of Bupsed Mg feam pou-gg
~— i - ‘ B 8 BRI st s B T —
E= ST pavadiag ik atalage b pee % 1Py 3] e
S pOR SHE N A Branab Binany S DIEI0ESES) VIR B31RI] T 0 B SO $2MI3Y
o e e abeigs aphy -..:81/

TR QES EA

L ]

V0K SINUZHLYD 1S ONOTY IN3DS L33M1S
V04 SIMEMIV 15 1

Db VEEE 58 00 Bapy

papaaz weapsb ra por gy 00 o) wepar wesy saobeeen Suped 1
IR BEE DAUBN JUIRER |0 Dk ANGKNL SAPEG U 0 BRANID 3 0 B

ABRY BE G0 PR putod 3usce BrL-) 0} Bepaies S

Susn ge00s WSE-E Wl /0 SRR DIEORGE FRARS X
05 07 o€ o2 0 0 D A . NGILYIAT345 THHVLS 3341
(1) Hve 305 @ V130 GNAVLS T3HL
Wo LI
NY1d NOILYI01 4
st [ 5t 5 5t [}
4] Y8 IS
[T

L3315 KEng 65 ON HENOHHL NOILXIS

V%

St ey e A

- Bersiaj aapminig .!( 3] - —— PR A3 5y

= e B ) S5 MOTTE AP 1 S edaty M)

TN TRIUGIE W) 9N NP 1 [ .e/_ P L \ o Py PR usn) BN Glin G pUE BaGEARINE 3 &) 5paq Busjur

VALEAGIRES SO4IUT) FPRIT) NI W ISR 3G 34 ANTt0d] 4 4 eed i3y g o v € pagee pur

. s s ¥ s A R 9 2 St waRE Ypm 5198030 i padens 33y
shubps axyedsny yun pemes) 8 9] Saey # = 5 6L L H%d SEEESE 01 WAt esbns WT-L VR S5 E-0E BN kN (e))

L al +
el uﬂﬂ.ﬂﬁpiﬂ i Mﬁ ﬂnn" ] " Bashng iyt ong pRacest PN TR SUAR RSN PO ST S 31 ki ) (e
ouepae NG gt L1
e s el s - e J
———ii i s panncote ROULYII34S 34VISONYT (0]
NGLVIE33d5 KVMHLYd ONY A¥MINHO B S T e i (=]
. sbaging bjia A I8 fusas s52al) f g Supums ]
Ko R afion poiotend ) L

SO TR 4 Bunaind s b G LR Y ZEBEE 434 B Sapan Saprd A o

m paste 1R 203 [RAOY P b Eg1 pasnsdce sE BB PR BT by Eg wesein Banodh peoses i) Beung i o |#eo us jeys Bhesay

Eas Lans oAy pavetosd THUREN TP ARG
ats BBt o $34; B sa puneon PR sl._u..;s- pra: AL 0 00] ) WS ) PHISURS v i Y SLNONS
—— v 5 e pjjen s SN B 8y 2004 pn a0y g Buypea
N3031 Bua anpaiad ks ey g Fmy sugger Teweinns piacd oo Bupuadap) ot pmed




LT M) £ G SRS |

e e e BUT sheesty Wi W ity O
i |

o [ 5 1 H 1

[, { — e —

e 3 @ B} tvg 335
EER SR L

N 40
WD
WY HRDH
Y08 HinoY
U¥153 W4 JS00H HOOW

SILVTIESY MNSH] IS0

AT ool 14 335

g HYId L1NOAYT LS DNILSTK
YHL 9¥H X3SH00M "dsg

‘YU SIEMLYD L TN 0L 0¥ ONYY el |
Kid LNOAYT LIS DNILSIN

gYoy SIMINIAKLYD LS

B/ ADRLI VSRR 4
Bussit)? Japus paacadée
et By Jo scipmoen

NOISSIWGNS ININNY1d

— B Bugsme

_ ! 631 o

Page 190

| |
f
! 1103 BASS GSlATLIOL/ Y FTEBEE
I 11 Byt g pastdde baang
|
\ 5

/
shuliap ?.E.L

daepanog ayis

wanpnays b b —

J Il o i e i |
1]
e e iy Sy .
o st g s 4 e
o g e i
= i o s oy 1
o s, e
sy g o i 1
P o 1,40 e ¢
ponsEE
2 et i . by

otatl ded e ey




erLivILATIE SMERUY) 1S TN ST |

i

U¥153 W4 JS00H HOOW

SILVTIESY MNSH] IS0

HINAT B 4 |

YHL 9¥H X3SH00M "dsg |
‘OYOU SIEIHLYD L DN OL 1OV ONYY ook |

KOLLJ3S DN SNOLLYAZTE ‘SHVTd BOOT |

NOISSIWGNS OININNY1d

i) i UG RN ) P

[ S R R

w0 el g s e

ONITIIM0 0350406 HINGYHL NOILIZS

LT3

o

[

SEEL

Padsp nmys s0aseay
A ey W) pur s

N¥d H0074 ONNOED

W¥ld 0074 1544

[

gy

L]

O90E SINEERIYD 1S L O

[N wesk o s ¢ o v won

PRAGISE SE NG PR NPT
Burgwraiunn 5im Ty Buoey wels jjes

ROLYATTE 3005

gy anadde £g Ajenied paves
famparag buze @) pusesd

R 5 R )
OP PR SAlpee 36T 0w

I

BHRE 1 S R A
Busjsesjunn gim sy Budey pajs jjas

Iy 01} pagT Fusin B0 Ui B
9 1 mopg Beuaca-wes pur parnh asnege
B 0F 02 8] SAspUR JRal) JS8 TR 0N

Sapog vams e panaf Bugsne

pancadte o v jegm pegs

Bepnssnn ypm g Banwy pais s PR R T A

il i ST
A1

Ll

untys Jaa 1ap) Bujn) wed

Falee wmas n perad Susm

PAsaE 18 K P VR
Bayaeqm yym sy Batey ags 4j0s

ol Rl ]

NOLLYAZ TS BY34

wnsut diiyn sy Bapots wed

BT Sty iy wasg siite) G
o i1 9 i i ]

—

() yva IS

@

Page 191

ot s g P o

s s o o g
o g st s 2 ] 1

sy o ay e
# tins o e o, s ety

) 9 b |

1 4y b g By




L TRILATYEE SMRUY £ MO AT TS

U¥153 W4 JS00H HOOW

SILVTIESY MNSH] IS0

HINAT B 4

|

AL 9¥H A3STI00M 'ISINE |
‘O¥OH SIRHLYY L ON OL 1Y DNV owie |

SINIHINDIY SIH0H 134T

NOISSIWGNS OININNY1d

3] Je0l] Ay SEOUIL-BRSY B &
5___,.:;:3_.1_!:_::.‘..5:2:.5 @

Pl b e L O)
SR §o 3502 o) pabap motagrg y @

anmy ity Buan
ity o) wonatw € o) apses 0y LEL

155 A04T 3y serssaag @
sprsuey 3 e swoyrjdepe Bue) jo 1
Lo R T b
AN B B 0y dmegE & W
a2y mpsaed gen ure) e 1
woeds pag Litsodany
s2 pasn ag 0g as) e ay) v s |6
pan) axseiue e w80) Bag y @

v B per buup u
waeyapeagn sy asedy by poe ueptian mintegy L

saryiaaun B 5o Basrpe et o
¥ (5o W) 0} JusUIE? 4 07 SlEnsteg

w05 o) wsane bsey @

oA G agendupe pur Sypa Buuida I By
paas PrEYaN| A STIN @Bad] DR L IR

Sateni 9 45 et pan @
sy 0 $200iop mhms e bunyrd ) @

upfoed o sbue) jTapm auy o) of AR ag o)
hirgrie; aape o yapn) Baeds Sund

ISN0H MIN NIHEIM 0300
SALTIVS 0K Fell L3417

NY¥1d $007d 1564

LURER- PR ]

BT Sty iy wasg siite) G
o i1 9 i i ]

—

() yva IS

Page 192

ot s g P o

s s o o g
o g st s 2 ] 1

sy o ay e
# tins o e o, s ety

et o ot by
L g o A
) 9 b |
otatl ded e ey

o i o Lt e i
it b sy
e 1 gy by

1 4y b g By




LAND ADJ TO NO. 1 CATHERINES ROAD,
RUISLIP, MIDDLESEX, HA4L 7RX

23 / 05 / 2013

FRONT AND SIDE ELEVATION

REAR ELEVATION

PHOTOGRAPHS OF EXISTING GARAGE TO BE DEMOLISHED

1161/ P3 /6

MR B LYNCH DUSEK DESIGN ASSOCIATES LTD

rage-1t9o




X4t 9¥H 'X353100IW ‘dSInY

YOI HIEND MMM .
m 1 Aorysnpdosu 3 Q_. m m +._ N c : 4 A HERALT ;cw:u. _Dﬁom SINIYIHLYD | 'ON OL rav¥ ONY1 :42aloud
E0LER 56840 L l l r p: \u_._. ‘umep [ 1/ Ed /1oL U m_.._xm._l NV 1d SYHOM 3LIS
. W 0L/ S/ €L o | &Y 00} s WS0d0Hd ONNNYTG~ sumep
00Z * 1 37V1S

NOISSINENS DNINNY 1d NY1d SY4OM 3LIS

uol433]j03 Joj yuey pabuswgns of
pagauuod fapnb ogur pajanp Buysem
133UM Joy PJEI0JE BAJE WOJY JBEM buiysem j3aym wouyy
JBJBM UIRJLUOY O} SPUNG Wioj
BAJY JUBWAAOY ANy asoy aJnssatd Buysem jpaym O¥0Y SINHIHLYI LS UoL3n4ySU03 Buanp Ss33%e 341
U32JUBT PUB BDNYJ0 BYIS PAYIEYS m_n_:a_u|/ 4o juiod wew ag o} ssane buiysixa

aueJ) Ag s|elsajel Jo uoynguysig

_ © A\ / \
_.. e e .Y N

S

Bunuay aniydajolg

M

JJOMBWELS PI0JJRIS W]

Page 194

punodwe? abedoys sielalel 2undag

:

aueds £q sjelajew

Bupiied §o uoynguysip

asoy ainssald buysepm jBaum haJoys om} of

I cz HIOMBWEL PIOJEIS W)
sdiyg Buipfoay g ajsepm B
ulji3mp
pasodedd jo julidjooy
uBajue) g Ay40 YIS %
/ pajiajoud ag
Buniamp panouddy m Bumamp Buiysixa 0} moJabpay buysixa

ONIDIT HHOM AdVHOdWIL Buauay anyrajoud

punodwod
afiedojs sjelsajew a.n3as

pajIajodd 3q of 583} Duysixa

p47 sajenossy ubissg yasng yybuddoy 3




Notes

Site boundary

For identification purposes only.

This copy has been made by or with
the authority of the Head of Committee
Services pursuant to section 47 of the
Copyright, Designs and Patents

Act 1988 (the Act).

Unless the Act provides a relevant
exception to copyright.

© Crown copyright and database
rights 2013 Ordnance Survey
100019283

Site Address

Land rear of
1 Catherine Street

Ruislip

LONDON BOROUGH
OF HILLINGDON

Residents Services

Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1UW
Telephone No.: Uxbridge 250111

Planning Application Ref: Scale
33892/APP/2013/1337 1:1,250
Planning Committee Date
North Page 195 August

2013

Y 2
HILLINGDON

LONDON




This page is intentionally left blank

Page 196



	Agenda
	3 To sign and receive the minutes of the previous meeting
	6 135 Swakeleys Road, Ickenham      380/APP/2013/1450
	7 Land to rear of 94-96, Green Lane, Northwood     66134/APP/2012/718
	8 Land rear of 41 and 43 The Drive, Northwood     68458/APP/2013/1405
	9 Garages adjacent to 27, Lees Parade, Northwood     69195/APP/2013/1310
	10 Land rear of 81-93, Hilliard Road, Northwood     64786/APP/2013/1434
	11 Land adjacent to 1, St Catherines Road, Ruislip      33892/APP/2013/1337
	12 Enforcement Report
	13 Enforcement Report
	Plans for North Planning Committee

